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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
SEC FORM 17-A
ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 17

OF THE SECURITIES REGULATION CODE AND SECTION 141
OF THE CORPORATION CODE OF THE PHILIPPINES

1. For the fiscal year ended: December 31. 2015
2 SEC Identification Number: 39745 3. BIR Tax Identification No.: 002-837-461

4. TExact name of registrant as specified in-its charter: CROWN EQUITIES, INC.

5. Philippines 6. [::] (SEC Use Only)

Province, Country or other jurisdiction of Industry Classification Code:
incorporation or organization

7 Crown Center, 158 N. Garcia corner Jupiter Street, Bel-Air, Makati Citv 1209
Address of principal office Postal Code

8 (632) 899-0081. (632) 899-0455
Registrant's telephone number, including area code

9. Not applicable
Former name, former address, and former fiscal year, if changed since last report.

10. Securities registered pursuant to Sections 8 and 12 of the SRC, or Sections 4 and 8 of the RSA

Nﬁmber of Shares of Common Stock
Title of Each Class Outstanding and Amount of Debt Outstanding

Common shares ©13,599,999,960 shares
11. Are any or all of these securities listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange.
Yes [ X] No [ ]
" 192, Check whether the registrant:

(a) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 17 of the SRC and SRC Rule 17.1
thereunder or Section 11 of the Revised Securities Act (RSA) and RSA Rule 11(a)-1 thereunder, and
Sections 26 and 141 of The Corporation Code of the Philippines during the preceding 12 months (or
for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports);

Yes [X] No []
- (b) has been subject to such ﬁﬁng requirements for the past 90 days.
Yes [X] No [ ]

13. Aggregate market value of the voting stock held by non-affiliates: P1,781,600,000.00
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PART I - BUSINESS AND GENERAL INFORMATION

Item 1. Business
(1) Business Development

Crown Equities, Inc. (CEI or the Corporation) was incorporated and registered with the Philippine
Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on October 24, 1969 as Leyte Base Metal
Corporation. On May 22, 1995, the stockholders approved the strategic shift in the Corporation’s
primary business activity to investment holding. The Corporation started its healthcare business
by operating its ambulatory care clinic in Makati City in 1997 and in Sta. Rosa, Laguna in 1998.
Also in 1998, the Corporation started the. development of a property in Bifian, Laguna into a
middle-class residential subdivision called Palma Real. The following year, the Corporation
acquired a significant interest in a toll road project, which was eventually divested in 2005. In
2003, by virtue of an agreement with Sta. Lucia Realty and Development, Inc., development of
the Palma Real project was pursiied. Marketing and sales started in 2004.

The Corporation started the development of Cypress Towers, a mid-rise residential condominium
project in joint venture with DM Consunji Inc. in 2005. By 2007, the Cypress Towers started
marketing and selling condominium units. The cash flows from Palma Real and Cypress Towers
projects, coupled with the proceeds from the divestment of the toll road project, allowed the
Corporation to start construction in 2009 of its own office building called Crown Center, the
corporate offices of the Corporation and FortMed Clinics. In 2010, the Corporation started leasing
out excess office spaces of Crown Center. In the same year, the two FortMed Clinics were merged
to achieve operational efficiencies.

The Corporation did not make any significant business acquisition during the past three years. Its
major investments are still in the healthcare and in real estate businesses, the latter via joint
venture with major companies in the industry.

- (2) Business-of Issuer

The Corporation is a Filipino-owned publicly-listed investment holding corporation. Through its
subsidiaries, the Corporation acquires various real estate properties to be developed into
commercial, industrial, residential, or mixed-use areas. The Corporation also has investments in
healthcare business particularly in two medical ambulatory eare clinics.

~ The subsidiaries of the Corporation tha‘t_a'r_g‘_gl_{.ea}g!yﬂ_i_r}‘pggr‘a_t"i_ql are Healthcare Systems of Asia
" Philippines, Inc., through its subsidiary FortMed Medical Clinics Makati Inc.,and Crown Central
Properties Corporation. The other subsidiaries are still in the pre-operating stage.

The Corporation’s main business is the acquisition, development and sale of real estate properties,
. either through its own subsidiaries or through tie-ups with major real estate and property
development companies in the field. The Corporation markets the real estate properties either
through its in-house marketing group or through third party brokers and agents. The Corporation
also delivers medical and health services to outpatients through its ambulatory care centers. Lease
of office spaces and equipment also contributes to the revenues of the Corporation. All of the
Corporation’s revenues are generated domestically.

Competition in the property development business has increased in prior years due to the
increasing interest in high-rise residential condominiums and the growing business process
outsourcing (BPO) market. There are also several players in the industry competing for
developments in prime areas. Historically, the industry has been led by highly-capitalized firms.
Although these companies have been leading the industry, the Corporation has been focusing on

-
2




a.

residential development through its niche markets. The Corporation aims to continue developing
real estate where opportunities for growth are identified. At present, the location and price of the
residential units offered by the Corporation give it an edge in the competition.

Property development businesses involve significant risks including the risks that construction
may not be completed on schedule or within the allocated budget; and that such projects may not
achieve the anticipated sales. In addition, real estate development projects typically require

substantial capital expenditure during construction and it may take years before the projects
generate cash flows. : : '

Increasing threat from competition has been the main risk in the healthcare business. Growth in
the number of healthcare providers delivering similar services has been reducing profits across
companies. Moreover, the business is characterized by substantial recurring capital expenditure
for medical technology in order to provide a comprehensive healthcare service. However, being a
basic necessity, the healthcare business could likewise provide sustainable revenues.

As a business in the real estate and health care services, the Corporation does not rely on a few
customers ensuring the continuity of revenue streams for the company. Furthermore, the
Corporation does not also rely on a limited number of suppliers in providing products and
services that may contribute to risks of non-performance of the Corporation. The Corporation also
does not have any major supply contracts.

The Corporation does not have any patents, trademarks, copyrights, licenses, franchises,
concessions, or royalty agreements held. As it currently stands, there are no govermnment
regulations specifically covering the Corporation’s business. There is a possibility that the
government may impose certain regulations which ‘may include securing special permits,
imposing regulatory fees and controls over the Corporation’s products and services but these
types of regulations would not be a hindrance to the Corporation’s business. Furthermore, the
costs incurred for purposes of complying with environmental laws consist primarily of payments
for mandated fees for the issuance of business permits which are standard in the industry and
minimal.

The Corporation did not spend significant amount on developmental activities during the last

three (3) fiscal years.

The Corporation currently employs 116 officers and staff, including 86 medical and
administrative staff in the healthcare operations. There is no existing Collective Bargaining
Agreement between the Corporation and its employees. There are no supplemental benefits or
incentive arrangements with the employees, aside from those provided by law.

Real Estate and Property Development

1. Crown Eqﬁities, Inc.

The Cypress Tower is a residential condominium complex composed of three buildings:
the Altiva Tower, the Belmira Tower, and the Celesta Tower. Residents enjoy a good view
of the Laguna Lake to the east as well as the Manila Bay to the west. The Cypress Tower
boasts of its perfect accessibility from either the north or the south of Metro Manila via the
Circumferential Road 5.

The Corporation also owns over 30 hectares of real estate property in Sto. Tomas,
Batangas. Some of the properties are still in the process of titling. The properties are
mostly located in Brgy. San Miguel, Sto. Tomas, Batangas, about 56 kilometers from the
central business district of Makati City. It is accessible by any land transport from Manila
via the South Luzon Expressway and the Maharlika highway.
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For the year ended December 31, 2015, the Corporation generated aggregate revenue of
P111.87 million, mainly from recognized sale of Cypress condominium units and Palma
Real house units and from the sale of a portion of the Batangas property.

Crown Central Properties Corporation

Crown Central Properties Corporation (CCPC) was incorporated on September 3, 1996 as
a joint venture between the Corporation and Solid Share Holdings,, Inc., an affiliate of a
major banking group. In October 2003, CCPC entered into a Memorandum of Agreement
(MOA) with Sta. Lucia Realty and Development, Inc. whereby the former shall contribute
land and its improvements while the latter shall be responsible for completing the
development of a subdivision project. The agreement called for a 60%-40% sharing of
revenues in favor of CCPC. The project was completed and marketing is in progress.

The subdivision, named Palma Real Residential Estates, is strategically located near the
boundary of Sta. Rosa and Bifian, in the province of Laguna, a few minutes away from
educational institutions such as Don Bosco and De La Salle University. Among residential
subdivisions in its class, Palma Real is one of those nearest to these educational
institutions. Although competition is considered tight given the number of residential
subdivisions within its five-kilometer radius, Palma.Real enjoys considerable advantage
given its proximity to the schools, the industrial park, the booming commercial district in
the area, and access via the Mamplasan exit of the South Luzon Expressway connecting to
the Sta. Rosa-Tagaytay highway.

CCPC contributed 20% to the total revenue of the Corporation in 2015 having aggregate
revenue of P39.58 million from Palma Real Residential Estates sales.

. Parkfield Land Holdings, Inc.

Parkfield Land Holdings, Inc. (PLHI), a 75%-owned subsidiary of the Corporation, was
incorporated on April 11, 2001 primarily to acquire, develop, and sell real estate
properties. PLHI owns 92 hectares of land located in San Jose del Monte, Bulacan.

PLH] has not started its commercial operations and has no significant business
developments involving the properties. PLHI does not intend to develop its properties
within the next twelve months.

Sky Leisure Properties, Inc.

Sky Leisure Properties, Inc. (SLPI) was registered with the SEC on February 18, 1998 as a
result of a joint venture between the Corporation and Perfect Sites, Inc., a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Shang Properties, Inc. SLPI was organized primarily to acquire, develop and
sell real estate properties. SLP1 owns real properties with a total area of 107 hectares in
Tagaytay City.




SLPI is a 50%-owned associate of the Corporation. It is being managed by Perfect Sites,
Inc. and has not yet started operations. It has no significant business developments during
the last four years and has no definite plans to develop significant projects within the next
twelve months.

Heualthcare

1. Healthcare System of Asia Phils., Inc.

Healthcare System of Asia, Phils. (HSAPI), Inc. was established on July 26, 1996 1o
deliver medical and heaith care services and healthcare systems, in general. Presently,
HSAPI has two operational ambulatory care clinics: the FortMED Medical Clinics —
Makati, which started operations in 1997, and FortMED Medical Clinics — Sta. Rosa,
which started operations in 1998. o

The two FortMED Clinics provide a wide range of medical services at reasonable prices.
These clinics house state-of-the-art diagnostic and ambulatory treatment apparatus
including a 4-D ultrasound machine and modern laboratory equipment.. The clinic offers
cardio-pulmonary testing, contemporary day. surgery, and full-service sub-specialist
consultation.

Competition in this type of business is generally dictated by factors such as the reputation
of doctors associated with and actually practicing in the clinic, availability of highly
effective facilities, and quality of professional health service. Location and accessibility
are also critical competitive factors in this industry.

FortMED-Makati is strategically located within the vicinity of Bel-Air Village, which is
easily accessible to both residents and employees in the Makati business district, while
FortMED-Sta. Rosa is in Greenfield Business Park, Sta. Rosa, 2 booming commercial
district in the vicinity of a light industrial park which is home to multinational companies.

The clinic offers a patient-centered professional service, which includes avoiding long
queues, the convenience of an in-house pharmacy, operating room for day surgeries, a

_ proprietary Management Information System and computerized equipment for faster

generation of results, and a shuttle service for the convenience of the patients. The clinic
also provides private duty nurses to address the need for professional health care in
patient’s own home.

The FortMED Clinics are accredited by the .I)»e;_p_z}"rgpwe_p_‘(“gf__}'—lagg}ﬁj (DOH). Necessary
" licenses have been secured from the DOH to operate the different x-ray facilities of the

clinics, while the laboratory facilities are licensed by the Dangerous Drug Board (DDB).
For the pharmacies, annual license to operate is secured from the Bureau of Food and
Drugs of the DOH.

The unique focus of medical practice at FortMED s to assist the patient and family in
obtaining comprehensive interdisciplinary health care that is both accessible and
acceptable. The concepts of patient participation, patient education, health promotion and
illness prevention are basic parts of the integrated treatment plan. The professional staff
recognizes the importance of technological and cultural dimensions of health and their
influences on the individual, families, and communities serviced. The physicians also
recognize their responsibility to respect each patient without bias, assisting the patient to
make sound decisions about their health care.

FortMED Clinics generated aggregate revenue of P93.52 million in 2015




(3)

(4)

Related party transactions

Transactions with related parties are made on arms-length basis in a manner similar 10
transactions with non-related parties. CEl Group’s significant transactions and accounts balances
with related parties as of December 31, 201 5 are as follows:

Name of Company Relationship Natux;e of Transaction 2015
Federal Land, Inc. Stockholder Due to related parties P15,114,650
Greenfield Development Corp. | Stockholder Due to related parties 98,237

Federal Land, Inc. (FL1) is a shareholder of CCPC which made cash advances to CCPC to finance
the acquisition and development of Palma Real located in Bifian, Laguna and for its working
capital requirements.

Due from related parties are non-interest bearing, unsecured and collectible/payable on demand.
Risks Relating to Business

Risk management rests on the Board of Directors who is responsible for establishing and
maintaining a sound risk management system. The Board of Directors assumes oversight over the
entire risk management process. The CEl Group has exposure to the following financial risks:

a. Credit Risk

Credit risk is a risk of financial loss to the CE] Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial
instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the CEI Group’s
receivables. Generally, the maximum credit risk exposure of financial assets is the carrying
amount of the financial assets as shown on the face of the consolidated statements of financial

position.

As of December 31, 2015, there were no significant concentrations of credit risk.
b. Liquidity Risk

CEl Group has exposure to liquidity risk, which pertains to the risk that the CEI Group will
encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities that are settled by
delivering cash or another financial asset.

The CEl Group’s objectives to manage its liquidity profile are: (a) to.ensure that adequate funding
is available at all times; (b) to meet commitments as they arise without incurring unnecessary
costs; (c) to be able-to access funding when needed at the least possible costs; and (d) to maintain
an adequate time spread of refinancing maturities.

c. Market Risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices will affect the values of the CEI Group’s

holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and
control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing return.




The CEl Group’s market risk is limited to its investments carried at fair value through profit or
loss and AFS financial assets. The CEl Group manages its risk arising from changes in value of
investments carried at fair value through profit of loss by monitoring the changes in the market
price of the investments.

. ltem 2. Properties

The Corporation owns a real estate property located at the corner of Jupiter and N. Garcia Streets in
Makati City where the Crown Center, a five-storey office building was built to serve as the main
office of the Corporation and its subsidiaries. Crown Center also houses other tenants including a
branch of BDO Unibank. Philippine Seven Corp. (7-11), and One Asia Center.

The Corporation also owns the Fortmed Clinic Building, a 1,747-square meter, two-storey bui]dihg
located in Greenfield Business Park, Santa Rosa, Laguna, which houses FortMED-Santa Rosa and
other tenants.

The investment properties of the Corporation include a 4,907-square meter of prime property in
Greenfield Business Park where the FortMED Medical Building now stands, over four hectares of
land in Taguig City, Metro Manila, over 30 hectares of land in Santo Tomas, Batangas, and a 92-
hectare land in San Jose Del Monte, Bulacan. However, no major Jand developments are being done
on these properties.

The Corporation does not lease from other parties real properties it uses for its business and
operations. ' :

Some of the properties owned by certain subsidiaries of the Corporation are still in the process of
titling and are free from liens or morigages. Except where there is very good opportunity, the
Corporation does not intend to acquire any other property in the next twelve months other than to
complete the consolidation of its existing land bank.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

In the ordinary course of business, CEl Group has pending legal proceedings, which are in various
stages with the courts and relevant third parties. Management believes that the bases of the CEIl
Group’s position are legally valid and the ultimate resolution of these proceedings would not have a
-material effect on CEl Group’s financial position and results of ‘operations. On the basis of the
information furnished by its legal counsel, management believes that none of these contingencies will
‘materially affect the CEl Group’s financial position and financial performance.

““Ttern 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote ofSecurifjf Holders

There is no matter submitted to a vote of security holders during the fourth quarter of the fiscal year
covered by this report. :




PART I - OPERATIONAL AND FINANCIAL INFORMATION

ltem 5. Market for Issuer's Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matiers

m Market Information

The Corporation’s securities are traded only in the Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE) and no
market for the shares is expected 10 be developed outside the Philippines. For the lastiwo years.

the highs and lows of stock market closing prices for CEl's equity shares are as follows:

HIGH LOW |

2016 | January — March 0.129 0.129
2015 | October — December 0.123 0.120
| July - September 0.101 0.100
April —June 0.151 0.128
January — March 0.150 - 0.147

2014 | October — December 0.165 0.130
July — September 0.182 0.132

April - June 0.096 -0.083
January — March 0.093 0.071

As of April 13. 2016, the closing price of the Corporati

share.
(2) Holders

There were 380 shareholders of CEl as of December 3
record as of December 31, 2015 are as follows:

on's common shares was P0.1310 per

1.2015. The fop 20 stockholders on

Number of Pet. To
Name of Shareholder Shares Total
| | PCD NOMINEE CORP. (Filipino) 8.753.133.904 | 64.3613%
2 | GUILD SECURITIES, INC. (Filipino) 3.774.995.712 | 27.7573%
3 | MARIE'LOUISE Y. TONG (Filipino) 223,550,000 1.6438%
4 | ROBIN Y. TONG (Filipino) 223.550,000 1.6438%
"5 | WELLINGTON Y. TONG (Filipino) 223,550,000 1.6438%
"6 | RENE DANIEL S. RIEZA (Filipino) 80,000.000 0.5882%
7| ARMANDO O. RAQUEL-SANTOS (Filipino) {-- -.-40,000.000 | - -0.2941%
g | DAVID GO SECURITIES CORP. (Filipino) 28,000.000 0.2059%
GCV MANAGEMENT & CONSULTING
9 | CORPORATION (Filipino) 21.896.000 0.1610%
10 | WILFRIDO V. VERGARA (Filipino) 19,296,000 0.1419%
1T | EMMANUEL E. ACUNA (Filipino) 18,376.000 0.1351%
12 | ALBERTO A. LINCO (Filipino) 15.905.440 0.1170%
13 | TRANS-ASIA SECURITIES, INC. (Filipino) 12,868.000 0.0946%
14 | ELLEN LAY (Filipino) 12.000.000 |~ 0.0882%
15 | ELISA T. PINPIN (Filipino) 12,000.000 0.0882%
16 | EDITHA ALCANTARA (Filipino) £.000.000 0.0588%
17 | RODERICK PHILIP ONG (Filipino) §.000,000 0.0588%
18 | SHIMIZU KATSUTOSHI (Non-Filipino) 5,600,000 0.0412%
19 | MARGARITA ONGSIAKO {Filipino) 4.944.000 0.0364%
0. | ANTHONY PETER BRYAN TIONG LEE 4.800,000 0.0353%

9




As of December 31, 2015, the number of common shares owried and held by non-Plﬁlippine
nationals is 22,220,800. ' -

(3) Dividends
(a) No dividends have been declared on common shares for the last three (3) years.

(b) There are no restrictions that limit the ability of the Corporation to pay dividends on common
equity and no such restriction is expected to arise in the future.

(4) Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities’

No sale of unregistered securities has been made by the Corporation within the period covered by
this report.

Item 6. Management's Discussion and Analysis

The Corporation has adopted all the relevant Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS) in
its financial statements; The Corporation's financial statements for 2015 and the comparatives
presented for 2014 and 2013 comply with all presentation and disclosure requirements.

Management's discussion of the Corporation's financial condition and results of operation
presented below should be read in conjunction with the attached audited consolidated financial
statements of the Corporation and its subsidiaries.

The Corporation is not aware of any events that will trigger direct or contingent financial
obligation that is material to the Corporation, including any default or acceleration of an
obligation. ‘

. There .are .no. material off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations (including
contingent obligation), and other relationships of the Corporation with unconsolidated entities or
other persons created during the recent fiscal year.

As of the date of this report, the Corporation has no material commitment for capital expenditure.
Management is not aware of any trends, event or uncertainties that have or will have material
impact on net sales or revenues or income from continuing operations neither of its operating
subsidiaries nor any seasonal aspects that a material effect on the financial condition or results of
operation of the Corporation. o : ’




(1) Changes inﬁFinancial Position and Results of Operation
Calendar Yeur Ended December 31, 2015 and 2014

Financial Position and Changes in Financial Position

The total assets as of December 31, 2015 fell slightly by P1.14 million to P1 939 billion compared to
the December 31, 2014 level. This was attributed to the increase in total current assets by P18.68
million as compensated by an increase in total non-current assets by P19.81 million.

From P536.64 million, total current assets increased to P555.32 million as of December 31, 2015
mainly dictated by increases in receivables classified as current. Inventories decreased by P20.14
million while on the other hand, financial assets at fair value increased by 42% resulting from
additional position and market values. Residual cash was likewise higher than the previous level by
P1.4 million.

Total noncurrent assets declined by P19.81 million or 1.41% primarily due to the disposal of a portion
of the investment property in Batangas in 2015. There was already a previous disposal of a portion of
this property in 2014. In addition, collection and ‘reclassification of loans receivable caused the
reduction in the non-current assets by P4.17 million or 8.33%. Property and equipment likewise
posted a decrease of P7.35 million or 2.58% to P277.87 million as of December 31, 2015 due to the
depreciation charges during the period. Also, the noncurrent portion of the installment contracts
receivables increased by P1.58 million as the real estate business continued to generate sales.

Total liabilities went down by P16.81 million or 7.55% to P205.70 million as of December 31, 20135
from P222.5 million as of December 31, 2014. This was mainly driven by the decreases in due to
related parties as payments continued during the period. Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
likewise decreased by P7.54 million or 5.27% as obligations continue to be met on time given the
regular cashflows.

Finally, total equity increased by P1 5.67 million to P1.73 billion as of December 31, 2015. There was
P2.92 million collected from the subscriptions receivable and a reported actuarial gain of P442,718
" during the period. Likewise, as the Corporation continued to generate positive bottom line, retained
_earnings increased by P6.34 million or 6.31% while non-control]ing interest increased by P5.96
million. : '

Results of Operation

The net income of the group for the period amounted to P12.30 million.

The Company generated total revenues of P191.69 millicn ih 2075 a8 against the P195.05 million
revenue realized in 2014: This was mainly driven by real estate sales which was slightly higher
compared to the 2014 level. Though revenues from sale of services went down by P5.5 million, real
estate sales remain to be the main contributor in the revenue streams contributing 61% of the total
revenue. Interest on installment contracts receivable increased significantly by P6.34 million or 78%
to P14.49 million.

Higher cost of sales for the period pulled up total costs and expenses. Cost of real estate sales
increased by P10.3 million to P61 million compensating for the decrease in cost of services which
went down by P3.76 million resulting from lower revenues for the period. Other operating expenses
increased by P9.15 million.

Other income significantly increased by P8.0 million or 11x the 2014 level of P776 thousand. This

came as a result of improvement in interest rates on bank placements of excess cash, unrealized
foreign exchange gain, realized gain on sale of financial assets, and reversal of liabilities.

11




Culendar Year Ended December 31, 2014 and 2013

Financial Position and Changes in Financial Position

Tota) assets slightly increased by P52.96 million or 2.81% to P1.94 billion as of December 31, 2014
from P1.89 billion as of December 31, 2013. This is mainly attributable to the considerable increase in
current assets by P89.74 million which compensated the P37.62 million decrease in the total
noncurrent assets during the period.

Total current assets registered a 18.16% increase to P583.99 million as of December 31, 2014 from
P494 .24 million as of December 31, 2013. This was primarily attributable to the substantial increase
in cash and cash equivalents by P114.41 million or 129.72% to P202.61 million as of December 31,
2014 from P88.20 million as of December 31, 2013.The increase in cash and cash equivalents came
from the sale of some parcels of lot in Sto. Tomas, Batangas and collections of receivables from
installment contracts and JV partners. Consequently, current portion of receivables decreased by
P22.25 million or 30.99% to P49.54 million as of December 31, 2014 from P71.79 million as of
December 31, 2013. Other current assets also decreased by P8.78 million or 13.67% to P55.42 million
as of December 31, 2014 from P64.19 million as of December 31, 2013 due to the utilization of
creditable withholding and input taxes as an offset against taxes due in connection with the sale of a

part of the Batangas property.

Total noncurrent assets declined by P37.62 million or 2.70% primarily due to the cost of the Batangas
property sold in 2014 causing the investment properties to drop by P32.25 million or 4.38% to
P703.52 as of December 31, 2014 from P735.78 million as of December 31, 2014. In addition,
property and equipment posted a decrease of P7.03 million or 2.41% to P285.22 million as of
December 31, 2014 from P292.25 million as of December 31, 2013 due to the depreciation charges
during the period. Also, noncurrent portion of the installment receivables fell by P3.07 million or
5.71% to P50.63 million as of December 31, 2014 from P53.70 million as of December 31, 2013 due
to bank financing entered into by some buyers. In contrast, other noncurrent assets increased by

P4.36 million to P8.13 million as of December 31, 2014 from P3.79 million as of December 31, 2013
- primarily because of the additional investment extended to BC Net, Inc. for wi-fi projects.

Total liabilities rose by P16.05 million or 7.78% to P222.50 million as of December 31, 2014 from
P206.45 million as of December 31, 2013. This was mainly driven by the increases in accounts
payable and other liabilities by P33.18 million or 30.23%. The Signiﬂcanf growth in accounts payable
and other liabilities was attributable to the increase in customers® deposits arising from the sale of a
portion of the Batangas property where 20% of the selling price was received as of December 31,
2014. This compensated the decrease in due to related parties account by Pl 8.00 million
corrésponding the payments of advances. '

Finally, total equity increased by P52.96 million or 2.81% to P] .72 billion as of December 31, 2014
as against P1.68 billion as of December 31, 2014 due to the P20.43 million net income posted during

the period. Also, there are collections of subscription receivables totaling P14.89 million.

Results of Operation

Net income posted a P17.48 million increase to P20.97 million as of December 31, 2014 from just
P2.37 million as of December 31, 2013.

The Company generated total revenues of P195.05 million in 2014 as against the P132.03 million
revenue realized in 2013. This was mainly driven by the sale of a portion of the Batangas property.
Also, the Company received dividends from Asian Alliance Holdings & Development Corp.
amounting to P7.20 million in 2014. There’s also an improvement in the interest on bank placementrs
which increased in 2014 by P3.84 million or 192.42%.
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The increase in revenues in 2014 primarily caused the cost of sales to increase by P22.54 million or
44.11% from P73.67 million in 2014 as against P51.12 million in 2013.

Total operating expenses also rose by P11 74 thillion or 14.71%n brought mainly by the expenses
incurred in connection with the merger of the Company and five of its wholly owned subsidiaries,
capital restructuring of the Company’s healthcare segment and other related costs.

Other income in 2014 amounted only to P0.78 million, P4.40 million or 85.00% lower from

P5.71 million in 2013. This was primarily attributable to the fair value loss on the marketable
securities which is marked to market on a regular basis. On the contrary, income tax expense went up
by P6.27 million or 161.27% compared to the same period last year owing to the sale of a portion of
the Batangas property.

Culendar Year Ended December 31, 2013 and 2012

Financial Position and Changes in Financial Position

Total assets rose by P8.15 million as of December 31, 2013, from P1.88 billion as of December 31,
2012 to P1.89 billion as of December 31, 2013 despite the decline in current assets of 5% or P23.78
million. This was mainly attributable to the increase in noncurrent assets by P31.94 million.

From P518.02 million to P494.24 million, total current assets dipped slightly by 4% due largely to the
33% decline in cash or P42.58 million resulting from the purchase of additional shares in AAHDC
and the conclusion of the loan facility agreement with Platinum 168, Inc. However, the decrease in
cash was cushioned by the 28% increase in available for sale investment or P8.85 million from the
purchase of additional shares in AAHDC. Also, receivables grew by 27% or P1 0.79 million. This was
due to an increase in unremitted collections by the project developers by P19.23 million and by the

collection of the Corporation’s receivable from Spring Action. Moreover, other current assets

increased by 13% or P7.13 million mainly due to increases in creditable input VAT and prepaid taxes.

Noncurrent assets posted a noticeable increase of 2% or P31.94 million as of December 31, 2013
though long-term installment contracts receivables, property and equipment and other noncurrent
assets declined by 4% or P2.01 million, 594 or P14.06 million and 49% or P3.68 million, respectively.
The increase in total noncurrent assets was mainly driven by the Joan receivable of P50 million from
Platinum 168, Inc. which more than compensated the decreases recognized during the year.

As of December 31, 2013, total liabilities recorded an upturn of 3% or P5.23 million as a result of the
39 increase in accounts payable and accrued expenses of P3.66 million. These were due to the
increases in Corporation’s unpaid purchase of goods and services from various suppliers and
contractors and in customers’ deposits. Likewise, retirement benefit obligation increased by 17% or
P1.57 million.

For the year ended December 31, 2013. the net income realized slightly pulled up total equity by
P2.93 million. '

Results of Operation

From P13.50 million in 2012, net income for the year ended December 31, 2013 only amounted to
P2.37 million, an 82% or a P11.13 million decrease. There was a significant drop in total revenues of
12% or P18.32 million and a 10% decrease in total cost and expenses or P14.92 million.

For the year ended December 31. 2013. total revenues amounted to P132.03 million, a drop of 12% or




P18.32 million compared to 2012. The decrease in both real estate sales and sale of medical services
of 18% or P11.99 million and 9% or P5.34 million, respectively were the primary reasons for this
decrease. Real estate sales and sale of medical services each contribute 42% share in the total
revenues. Further, these decreases in the main revenue drivers of the Corporation did not help the
declining interest on installment contracts receivable and sale of medical goods. Nevertheless, these
were marginally mitigated by the interest income from the loan to Platinum of P2 million and an

increase in rent income.

Total costs and expenses posted a 10% or P14.92 million decrease, due to the 14% decline in cost of
sales of P8.40 million as Company’s main revenue drivers declined. Similarly, operating expenses
lagged by 8% or P6.52 million compared to 2012. Manpower costs and depreciation declined by 3%
or P0.98 million and 4% or P0.60 million, respectively, due 1o the decreases in the revenues from real
estate business. Commission expense dropped by 28% or P1.40 million.

Net other income also decreased resulting to an after-tax net income of P2.37 million which is 82%
lower than the P13.50 million in2012.

(i) Key Performance Indicators

The Corporation measures its performance based on the utilization of assets and the return on its
investments. Most of the Corporation's investments are in ventures that are still at pre-operating

stages. Only Crown Central Properties Corporation, and FortMed Clinics are currently in operation.
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Indicator Formula
Dec 2015 Dec 2014 Dec 2013
. - Currant Asrsts
Current Ratio 2.87x 2.77x 2.52x
Currenr Ladiirtss
. _ . Cesh and Cash sguivalsnis
Cash Ratio 1.05x% 0.96x 0.45x -
Currens Liabilivies
'Deb‘t-Equjty Total Licbilitiss
Iy Uy Ty e Mchetohdstatatiod
Ratio 0.12x 0.13x 0.12x Toral Equicy
Debt-Asset Toral Liekilitiss
. 0.11x 0.11x 0.12x e
Ratio Toral Azssts
Assel-Equity Toral Asssr
quity 1.12x 1.13x 1.12x o

Ratio Teral Eguin)

Exrnings pefors intersst and Taxs

Interest . . . '

X nil nil nil Inrersst Lxpensgs
Coverage Ratio
Nel Income : Net Fcoms
. 6.42% 10.47% 1.79% I
Margin Ner Rsvsnuss
Investment - Tote! fnpssoment and Advancss
. 0.48x 0.48x 0.51x e -
Ratio . Toral dssat
Re\urn on ~ps " Nav Income
0.63% 0.99% 0.13% - -

Assets Average Tortal dssers
Earmi P Mzt Incoms afrer Minerity nteresg
-arnings rer - . - X X N

Shavre 0.00047 0.00139 (0.00002) Torc! Skarsz Subzcribsd




Liguidiry

Current ratio increased to 2.97x as of December 31, 2015 compared to 2.77x as of December 31,
2014. This was resulted by the reduction of due to related party wherein a payment t0 Federal
Land was made for the period. Cash ratio also increased to 1.05x as of December 31, 2015 from
96x as of December 31, 2014. ,

Current ratio declined to 2.77x as of December 31, 2014 compared to 2.52x as of December 31,
2013 as a result of the increase in cash levels resulting from the consummation of the sale of a
portion of the Batangas property. Cash ratio likewise increased to 0.96x as of December 31, 2014
from 0.45x as of December 31, 2013.

Current ratio declined to 2.52x as of December 31, 2013 compared to 2.70x as of December 31,
2012 as a result of the decrease in cash levels resulting from the consummation of the purchase of
additional shares in AAHDC and the conclusion of the loan facility agreement with Platinum 168,
‘Inc. during the period. Cash ratio likewise decreased to 0.45x as of ‘December 31, 2014 from
0.68x as of December 31, 2012.

Solvency/Leverage

The debt-equity ratio decreased to .12x as of December 31, 2015 compared to .13x as of
December 31, 2014 which implies a lower leverage. The debt-asset remains the same as of
December 31, 2015 and 2014. However, the asset-equity has decreased to 1.12x from 1.13x as of
December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. The Company has a nil interest coverage ratio as it
has zero loans and therefore no interest expense was realized in.2015 and 2014.

The deferred sale of a portion of the Batangas property caused an upswing to the Company’s
liabilities as of December 31, 2014 which in effect slightly increased the debt equity ratio to 0.13x .
from 0.12x as of December 31, 2013. Consequently, debt-asset decreased to 0.11x as of
December 31, 2014 from 0.12x as of December 31, 2013 and asset-equity ratios levels increased
to 1.13% as of December 31, 2014 from 1.12x as of December 31, 2013. The Company has a nil
interest coverage ratio as it has zero loans and therefore no interest expense was realized in 2014
and 2013.

Debt-equity ratio remained flat at 0.12x as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, which is a good
indication of a low leverage stance. On the other hand, debt-asset and asset-equity ratios levels
had been maintained at 0.11x and 1.12x, respectively as of December 31, 2013 and 2012. The
Company has a nil interest coverage ratio as it has zero loans and therefore no interest expense
was realized in 2013 and 2012.

Investment Ratio
The investment ratio remains .48x as of December 31, 2014 and 2015.

Investment ratio fall to 0.48x as of December 31, 2014 from 0.51x as of December 31, 2013 due
to the sale of a portion of the Batangas property.

Investment ratio fall to 0.51x as of December 31, 2013 from 0.52x as of December 31, 2012 due
to the P&.16 million increase in total assets which offset the minimal increase in investment and
advances of P1.73 million.

Profirabiliry
There is a significant decrease in net income margin from 10.47% as of December 31, 2014 to
6.42% as of December 31, 2015 due to unusual sales of Batangas propert made last 2014.

Due to the sales of a portion of the Batangas property, net income margin surged to 10.47% for




the year ended December 31, 2014 from only 1.79% for the same period in 2012.

In 2012, there is a significant decline in sales from real estate and healthcare businesses causing
the net income margin to go down 1o 1.79% for the year ended December 31, 2013 from 5.68%

for the same period in 2012.

Return on Assels
Return on assets decreased to .63% as of December 31, 2015 from .99% as of December 31,
2015, ‘ ’

As an effect of the sale of a portion of the Batangas property, réturn on assets increased to 0.99%
in 2014 from 0.13% in 2013.

As an effect of the decreases in the main revenue sources of the Company, earnings after minority
interest dropped considerably which led to the decline in return on assets to 0.13% in 2013 from
0.45% in 2012.

Earnings Per Share
Earnings per share decereased to .00047x as of December 31, 2015 from .00139x as of December

31,2014,

The sale of the portion of the Batangas property contributed a lot to generate a better earnings per
share of 0.00139 in 2014 as against loss per share of 0.00002 in 2013.

The continuous decline in the profitability was reflected on the further decrease of earnings per
share to 0.00013 in 2013 from 0.00063x in 2012 and 0.00151x in 2011. The Corporation’s
number of subscribed shares is maintained for the past four years.

(i1) Past and Future Financial Condition with Particular Emphasis-on the Prospects for the
Future

The Corporation continues to generate revenues from its real estate projects, particularly Cypress

“Towers and Palma Real Residential Estates. Aggregate revenue of real estate sales amounted to

P116.93 million. The healthcare business also generated P46.48 nﬁ]]_iﬁon_durjng the year.

The condominium project which is composed of three condominium buildings was completed early
2010 with Altiva Tower, the last tower, being ready for occupancy at the end of the first quarter in
2010. The revenue stream from this project is expected 10 continue over - the next few years, albeit at a
slower pace. Only a few units are available for sale in this project, although units sold on terms
continue to generate interest income for the Corporation..

The Palma Real Residential Estates, on the other hand, is expected to improve sales. The project
continues to market house and lot packages intended to promote community build-up. The project
generated P77.24 million revenues in 2015 accounting for 40% of total revenue. Future sales are still
expected to improve as Palma Real is now accessible both from the Sta. Rosa-Tagaytay road and from
the Mamplasan exit of the South Luzon Expressway. Moreover, the project is seen to benefit from the
booming Sta. Rosa residential market and the upcoming construction of Cavite-Laguna Expressway.

The Corporation foresees a satisfactory business outcome in the coming year. It has no known trends,
demands, commitments, events or uncertainties in the present operations of the Company that is likely
to result in the Company’s liquidity increasing or decreasing in any material way. It is not aware of
any events that will trigger direct or contingent financial obligation that is material to the company.,
including any default or breach of any note, Joan, lease, or other indebtedness or other financing
arrangements requiring to make payments. Furthermore, there is no significant amount in trade
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payables that has not been paid within the stated trade terms. There are no material off-balance sheet
transactions, arrangements, obligations (including contingent obligation), and other relationships of
the company with unconsolidated entities or other persons created during the reporting period.

As of this report, the Company has no material commitment for capital expenditure. Management is
not aware of any trends, events or uncertainties that have or will have material impact on net sales or
revenues or income from continuing operations neither of its operating subsidiaries nor of any
seasonal aspects that had a material effect on the financial condition or results of operation of the
Company. '

The Corporation and its subsidiaries have neither issued nor invested in any financial instruments or
complex securities that will make them susceptible to the effects of the global financial condition.
They have neither foreign currency denominated nor local peso denominated loans. The Corporation's
financial risk exposure is limited 10 its investments in the equities market reported as "Financial
Assets at Fair Value through Profit and Loss" in its balance sheet. But this exposure is insignificant
compared to the Corporation's total asset base. Moreover, these investments are always marked 10
market thus reflecting the most verifiable values available. The Corporation's risk ‘management

- policies are religiously observed and fair values of investments are reviewed by the

Executive Committee on a weekly basis.
Item 7. Financial Statements
The audited financial statements of the Corporation are included in this report as Annex A.

Item 8. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial
Disclosure

The Corporation continued to engage the auditing firm, R.G. Manabat & Co. to handle the
independent audit of the Corporation for 2015 and is also being considered 1o handle the independent
audit of the Corporation for year 201 6. There were no disagreements with the independent auditor on

accounting principles or practices, financial statement disclosure, or auditing scope or procedure.

For the audit of the Corporation’s financial statements, the aggregate fee billed by the independent
auditors was P0.80 million in 2015 and 2014. There were no other professional fees billed by the
independent auditors during the year. The Audit Committee reviews all proposals for services to be
rendered by the independent auditor. :

PART 11l - CONTROL AND COMPENSATION INFORMATION
Jtem 9. Directors and Executive Officers of the Corporation
a. Directors and Executive Officers

George L. Go 74 years old, Filipino, is presently the Chairman of the Board of Directors of the
Corporation. He has been a Director of the Corporation since 1995 and was elected Chairman of the
Nominations Committee in May 2011. He is also a Member of the Executive Committee and the
Compensation and Remuneration Committee. Mr. Go is also the Chairman of Healthcare Systems of
Asia Philippines, Inc. and Asian Alliance Holdings. Mr. Go is also 2 Director of Asian Alliance
Investment Corporation. He has held the foregoing positions within the last five years. Mr. Go earned
his bachelor's dégree in Economics from Youngtown University, U.S.A and completed an Advanced
Management Program in Harvard Business School, U.S.A.

Wilfrido V. Vergara 70 years old, Filipino, has been the Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors of
the Corporation since May 2002 and was elected Chairman of the Executive Committee in May 2011.
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Mr. W.V.'Veréara i< the Vice Chairman of Fortmed Medical Clinics Makati, Inc. and Healthcare
Systems Asia Philippines, Inc. He is also a Director of Parkfield Landholdings Corp. Mr. Vergara
obtained his Bachelor’s Degree in Economics from the Ateneo de Manila Univeristy.

Ramon A. Recto 83 years old, Filipino, has been an Independent Director of the Corporation since
May 2002. He has been a Member of the Audit Committee and the Nominations Commitiee since
May 2003. Mr. Recto was the President of Marcventures Holdings, Inc. and Lepanto Consolidated
Mining Corporation. Mr. Recto obtained both of his Bachelor’s Degrees in Electrical Engineering and
in Mechanical Engineering from the University of the Philippines. He also earned his Master’s Degree
in Industrial Management from the same University.

Mr. Victor C. Macalincag, 80 years old, Filipino, has been an Independent Director of the
Corporation since May 27, 2003. He is the Chairman of the Audit Committee and a Member of the
Executive Committee, Nominations Committee and the Compensation and Remuneration Committee
of the Corporation. He currently holds Directorship ion the following Subsidiaries: Healthcare
Systems of Asia Philippines, Inc. and FortMED Medical Clinics Makati, Inc. Mr. Macalincag is also
an Independent Director of Semirara Mining and Power Corporation, Republic Glass Corp., SEM
Calaca Power Corporation, ISM Corporation, Atok Big Wedge Corporation, Alphaland Corporation
and Philweb Corporation. He is also a director of One Wealth Nation (OWN) Balanced Fund and a
Director of Asian Alliance Investiment Corporation. He was the President of Trade & Investment
Development Corporation of the Philippines which is presently known as PHIL EXIM (formerly
PhilGuarantee) from 19971 until his resignation in 2001. He was the Deputy Minister of Finance from
1981 to 1986 and Undersecretary of Finance from 1986 to 1991. He also held the position of National
Treasurer from 1981 to 1988. Other positions he held were as follows: Director of Home Guaranty
Corporation, Philippine Overseas Construction Board, Philippine Long Distance Telephone Co.
(PLDT) from 1988 to 1995, National Power Corporation from 1978 to 1986 and the Philippine
Deposit Insurance Corporation from 1983 to 1991. He was also Chairman of Pilipinas Bank and
Executive Vice- President of Land Bank of the Philippines. Mr. Macalincag is a Certified public
Accountant. He has a Bachelor of Science in Business. Administration from the University of the East.
‘He also_completed academic requirements for a Masteral Degree in Economics from the same
University. He finished a fellowship program conducted by Economic Development Institute of the

World Bank, Washington D.C. in 1971.

Antonio B. Alvarez 72 years old, Filipino has been a member of the Board of Director’s since 1995
and the Treasurer of the Corporation since 1997. He has also been a member of the Executive:
Committee, the Nomination Committee and of the Compensation, and Remuneration. Committee since
May 2003. Mr. Alvarez is the Director and President of Healthcare Systems of Asia Philippines, Inc.
and Fortmed Medical Clinics Makati, Inc. He is also a Director of Parkfield Landholdings, Corp..
Prior to becoming the President/Nominee of Guild Securities, Inc. from1979 to presént. Mr. Alvarez
was the Executive Vice President of Securities Specialists, Inc. He obtained Bachelor of Science in
Commerce Major in Accounting from Far Eastern University.

Conrado G. Marty 70 years old, Filipino, has been a member of the Board of Directors of the
Corporation since 2006. Mr. Marty is also a member of the Audit Committee of the Corporation. He
is the President of Universal LMS Finance and Leasing Corporation and is also the Vice Chairman of
Hyundai Asia Resources, Inc. Mr. Marty holds a Bachelor in Business Administration Major in
Accounting from University of the East and is a Certified Public Accountant. He obtained his Master
in Business Administration major in Finance from the Wharton School, University of Pennsylvania.




Mr. Patrick D. Go, 48 years old, Filipino, has been a Director of the Corporation since 1995 and the
Compliance Officer since 2008. Mr. Go is also the Managing Director of Healthcare Systems of Asia
Phils.. Inc. since August 2009 and in June 2010 became the Managing Director of FortMED Medical
Clinics Makati, Inc. Prior to that, Mr. Go is a graduate of San Francisco State University, U.S.A.in
1992 with a Bachelor of Science in both Finance and Real Estate. He is the son of Mr. George L. Go.

Mr. Eugene B. Macalalag, 48 years old, Filipino, has been a member of the Board of Directors of the
Corporation since May 2003. He is the First Vice President for Finance of the Corporation. Mr.
Macalalag is a Director and Treasurer of Healthcare Systems of Asia Philippines, Inc. and FortMED
Medical Clinics Makati, Inc. He is also the Presidem of Parkfield Landholdings, Inc. and Crown
Central Properties Corp. He joined Crown Equities, Inc., in April 1996. Mr. Macalalag earned his
master’s degree in Business Administration from De La Salle University, Manila.

Mr. David O. Chua, 48 years old, Filipino, has been 2 member of the Board of Directors of the
Corporation since 2007. He is the President of Cathay Pacific ‘Steel Corporation and Asia Pacific
Capital Equities and Securities Corporation. He is currently 2 Director of the Philippines Stock
Exchange, Hardware Foundation of the Phils., and Galleria Corporate Center Condominium Corp. He
is also an Advisory Board Member of Metropolitan Bank and Trust Company and Vice President of
the Federation of the Filipino Chinese Chambers of Commerce and Industry, Inc. He is a Trustee of
University of the East and University of the East Ramon Magsaysay Memorial Medical Center. He
has held the positions for the last five years. Mr. Chua is also the President of the Philippine
Steelmakers Association, Chairman of the 2011 Philippine Business Conference Philippine Chamber
of Commerce and Industry, and was the President of the Kellogg/ Northwestern University Alumni
Association of the Philippines. He was formerly a Director of the Philippine Savings Bank (PSB),
First Metro Investments Corp., and the Chairman of the Philippine Institute of Quezon City (P1QC)
and the National Employer’s Conference of the Employers® Confederation of the Philippines (ECPO).
Mr. Chua has a Bachelor of Science in Financial Services Management, Honors Degree from St.
Mary’s College in California, U.S.A. and a Master in Business Administration (MBA) from the
~Kellogg School of Business of Northwestern University, Evanston, Illinois, U.S.A. and the Graduate
School of Business of the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology.

Mr. Romuald Dy Tang, 64 years old, Filipino, has been a member of the Board of Directors of the
Corporation since 2008 and -was clected President of the Corporation in May 2010. Mr. Dy Tang is
also a Member of the Executive Committee, Nominations Committee and the Compensation and
Remuneration Committee. He is also a Member of the Board of Diréctors of various subsidiaries of
the Corporation namely, Healthcare Systems of Asia Philippines, FortMED Medical Clinics, Makati,
Inc. and Parkfield Landholdings, Inc. He is also a Director and Officer of other corporations namely,
Kok Tay Trading Corporation, Sedgewick Holdings, Inc. and DTV Realty and Development, Inc. He
was the Executive Vice President and Treasurer of Equitable PCI Bank and a Director of the various
subsidiaries of the bank. Mr. Dy Tang earned his Bachelor of Science in Business Administration

from De La Salle University, Manila

Mr. Salvador P. Escano, 64 years old, Filipino, was elected to the Board of Directors in June 2011.
Mr. Escano is a self-made entrepreneur-businessman with substantial interests in real estate and the
gases business, specifically liquefied petroleum gas (LPG) and industrial gases, with operations
mainly in the Visayas and Mindanao regions of the Philippines. He is concurrently Chairman of Pryce
Corporation and of its subsidiary, Pryce Gases, Inc. He was previously General Manager of Anselmo
Trinidad and Co.. (HK) Ltd., a Hongkong-based stockbrokerage firm from 1978 to 1981. He is also a
- Member of the Board of Governars of the Makati Stock Exchange from 1989 to 1991. Mr. Escano
started his professional career as a banker with then Far East Bank & Trust Co. (later absorbed by
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Bank of the Philippine Islands). Mr. Escano holds an Economics Degree from Xavier University and 2
Master Degree in Business Administration from the University of the Philippines.

Mr. Melvin O. Vergara, 44 years old, Filipino. has been a member of the Board of Directors since
May 2011. He is also currently a Director of Healthcare Systems of Asia Philippines, Inc. and
FortMED Clinics Makati, Inc. Mr. Melvin O. Vergara has been an Associate Person of Guild
Securities, inc. since 2002. He was a Consultant of the same company from 2000 to 2002. He earned
his Degree in Business Administration from the University of Sto. Tomas. He is the son of Wilfrido
V. Vergara. '

Mr. Christopher Brian C.. Dy, 31 years old, Filipino, is the Assistant Vice President of the
Corporation. Mr. Dy has been a member of the Board of Directors of the Corporation since May
2011. He is also the Vice President of Crown Central Properties Corporation. He also served as the
purchasing officer of FortMED Medical Clinics in 2010. He took up securities training in Guild
Securities, Inc. from 2009 to 2010 and worked for 3M Philippines for the Projections Systems and
Optical Systems divisions. He was also the General Manager of Gold Crest Holdings, Inc. from 2006
to 2008 and a Property Specialist of Ayala Land Premier in 2006. He earned his Bachelor of Science
in Management, Major in Management Communications Technology from the Ateneo de Manila

University. He is the son of Mr. Romuald U. Dy Tang. '

Mpr. Nixon Y. Lim, 45 years old, Filipino, has been a member of the Board of Directors since July 22,
2014. Mr. Lim is currently the Chairman of Steniel Manufacturing Corporation, serving as such since
2011. He is also the Chairman of Steniel Cavite Packaging Corporation and Steniel Land Corporation
since 2012. He is also the President of Steniel Mindanao Packaging Corporation, Green Siam
Resources Corporation, Greenstone Packaging Corporation, Greenkraft Corporation, Corbox
Corporation, and Golden Bales Corporation. Prior to this, he has had work experience in the
packaging business particularly in the fields of sales, marketing, manufacturing and finance. He holds
a degree in BS Physics from De La Salle University, Manila, having graduated in 1992.

b, Significant Employees

The Corporation has no employee who is not an executive officer but is expected to make a
significant contribution to the business.

¢. Family Relationships

Mr. Patrick D. Go, Compliance Officer and member of the Board of Directors, is the son of Mr.
George L. Go, Chairman of the Board of Directors. Mr. MelvinO. Vergarais the son of Mr. W ilfrido
V. Vergara, Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors while Mr. Christopher Brian C. Dy is the son of
Mr. Romuald U. Dy Tang, President. Aside from the foregoing, no other directors or executive officer
are related up to the fourth civil degree either by consanguinity or affinity.

The Corporation has no controlling or parent company.

d. Involvement in Certain Legal Proceedings

The Corporation has no knowledge of the ‘volvement of the current directors and executive officers.
in any legal proceedings as defined in the Securities Regulation Code for the last five years up to the
date of this report.

Item 10. Executive Compensation

In 2015, the Corporation’s Executive Officers consisted only of the following key personnel: the
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Chairman, the President, First Vice-President and the Treasurer.

The aggregate compensation paid or incur
in the ensuing fiscal year to the Executive

red during the last two fiscal years and estimated to be paid
Officers and Directors of the Corporation are as follows:

COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS AND EXECUT

IVE OFFICERS

Name and Principal Position Year Salary/Fees Bonus Other Annual Total
. . Compensation
Compensation of Executive Officers | 2016* | P4.5 million P1.75 million | P.80 million | P6.0 million
George L. Go, Chairman ’ — T e
Romt:ald U. Dy Tang, President 2015 P4.13 million P1.75 million | P.78 million .P6'66 million
Eugene B. Macalalag, First Vice
President 20141 p 50 million i
Antonio B. Alvarez, Treasurer ' )} } P6.80 million
All Other Directors and Officersas | 2016* P130million | P.6) million | P1.8 million | P3.35 million
a Group 2015 P1.20 million P.61 million P1.8 million | P2.90 million
2014 P1.9 million - - P1.9 million

* Estimare

Compensation of Directors

The members of the Board of Directors who are not executive officers are elected for a term of one

year.

As provided in the Corporation’s by-
their attendance at each meeting. Furthe
amount of not more than ten percent (10%
Such compensation

during the preceding year.

Directors in such mariner as the Board may deem proper.

Other Arrangements

Jaws, directors shall receive a reasonable per diem allowance for
r, as compensation, the Board shall receive and allocate an
) of the net income before income tax of the Corporation
shall be determined and apportioned among the

On ‘May 31, 2002, the stockholders approved a stock option plan for directors and executive officers
of the Corporation as may be desi gnated by the Board.

The Corporation’s stock option plan entit]

Corporation to purchase shares of stock of the Co

higher. The underlying shares subject to the stock option

representing 10% of the authorized capital stock of the Cor
to vesting according to such schedule as shall be approved by
vesting shall lapse after five years from entitlement date,
executive officers, vesting shall expire upon their resignat
underlying common shares in respect of
correspondingly adjusted in the event o
consolidation, or the similar or analogous change in t
Group. The terms and conditions of the stock option plan may
Board of Directors, except that any
exercise price shall require the approval of stockholders re

outstanding capital stock.

outstan

es, on grant date, the directors and executive officers of the
rporation at par value or book value, whichever is
plan covers 2.,400,000,000 common shares
poration: The stock-option shall be subject
the Board of Directors, provided that

and provided further that with respect to

ding options and/or th

increase in the maximum number of shares or any
presenting at least rwo-thirds of the

No stock option has been granted from the time the stock option plan was approved.

ion from the Corporation. The number of
e exercise price shall be
f any stock dividend declaration, stock split, merger.
he corporate structure or capitalization of the
be amended by the resolution of the
decrease in the




Item 11. Security Ownership of Certain Record and Beneficial Owners and Management
(1) Security Ownership of Certain Record and Beneficial Owners

As of December 31, 2015, the following stockholders own ‘more than 5% of the Corporation’s
outstanding capital stocks:

Title of Amount of shares
Name and Address of Stockholders [Record (r)/Beneficial | % Ownership
Class . ,
: {(b) Ownership]
Common PCD Nominee Corp. ' 8.753.133,904(r) 64.3613%
shares 37/F Tower | Enterprise Center
) Avyala Ave. cor. Paseo de Roxas,
Makati City
Common Guild Securities, Inc. (Filipino) 3,774,995,712 (1) 27.7573%
shares 1215 Tower One and Exchange Plaza,
Ayala Avenue, Makati City

"PCD Nominee Corp. (PCD). a wholly-owned subsidiary of Philippine Central Depository, Inc., is-the registered
owner of certain shares in the books of the Corporation’s transfer agéms in the Philippines. The beneficial owners of
such shares are PCD’s parlicipants, who hold shares on their behalf or in behalf of their clients. .PCD is a private
Corporation organized by the major institutions actively participating in the Philippine capital markels to implement an
automated bool-entry sysiem of handling securities transactions in the Philippines. The beneficial owners of PCD
shares that owns 5% and above are indicated as follows: i

Guild Securities, Inc. (Filipino) 3.774.995.712 27.7573%
Unit 1215 Tower One and Exchange Plaza
Avala Avenue, Makati City

Marian Securities, Inc. (Filipino) 977,066.000 7.18%
Unit' B 26-1-11 Floor Export Bank Plaza
e e (O RGES Ave. cor. Gil Puyat Ave., Makati City

Thé following have the right to vote of direct the voting or disposition of the CEI shares beneficially held by the
Corporations they respectively represent: Antonio B. Alvarez for Guild Securities, Inc. and Conrado G. Marty for
Marian Securities, Inc. :

To the best knowledge of the Corporation, no security holder has created a voting trust for the purpose
of conferring upon a trustee the right to vote pertaining to shares of stock of the Corporation.
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(2) Security Ownership of Directors and Management
Security ownership of Management and Directors as of December 31, 2015 is as follows:

Amount and nature of Percent of

Title of Cluss — [Nume of Beneficial Owner Beneficial Qwnership Citizenship ~ Ownership
A. Directors ' ‘
Common Shares  Patrick D. Go 181.420.000 %" Filipino 1.333%
Common Shares  George L. Go 136,950.800 dbz Filipino 1.007%
Common Shares ~ Wilfrido V. Vergara 22.576.000%"  Filipino 0.166%
Common Shares  Ramon A. Recto 10.880.000 ™ Filipino 0.080%
Common Shares ~ David O. Chua 400,000 d Filipino 0.003%
Common Shares  Conrado G. Marty 80.008 ° Filipino 0.001%
Common Shares  Christopher Brian C.Dy 20,000 ° Filipino nil
Common Shares  Salvador P. Escano 10.000 ° Filipino nil
Common Shares  Melvin 0. Verpara 10.000 ° Filipino nil
Common Shares  lsidro Consunji 8.000 ° Filipino nil
Common Shares  Victor C. Macalincag 80 ° Filipino nil
Common Shares  Nixon Y. Lim 364,140,000 ¢ Filipino 2.677%
B. Executive Officers
Common Shares  Antonio B. Alvarez 177.600 g Filipino 0.001%
Common Shares  Romuald Dy Tang 76,720,000%* - Filipino 0.564%
Common Shares  Eugene B. Macalalag 6.800,080%°  Filipino 0.050%
EDirectors and Officers as a Group 800,192,568 5.883%

4 _ these are directly owned by the aforementioned director or officer

dhl _ 44.4])2,000 of these are registered in one of the PCD member companies bur beneficially owned by the director
@3 _ 132,950,000 of these are registered in one of the PCD member companies bul beneficially owned by the direcior
dh3_ 3 280,000 of these are registered in one of the PCD member companies bul peneficialiv owned by the direcior
‘f"J_f ] ()S'OOQ,,(‘)_(_)_'(_)_of these are registered in one of the PCD member companies bui beneficially owned by the direcior
W3 _ 76,700,000 of these are registered in one of the PCD member companies bul peneficially owned by the direcior

dé_ 5 .800,000 of these are registered in one of the PCD member companies but peneficially owned by the director

(2) Voting Trust Holders of 5% or More

No persons known to the Corporation hold more than 5% of the common shares under a voting
trust or similar agreement.

(3) Changes in Control

There are no arrangements which may result in a change in control of the Corporation.

Item 12. Certain Relationships and Re}a?gﬂd__’frans'ac‘tions

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the
other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating
decisions. Parties are also considered to be related if they are subject to common control or common
significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating decisions. Parties are also
considered to be related if they are subject to common control or common significant influence.
Related parties may be individuals or corporate entities. Transactions between related parties are on
arm’s length basis in a manner similar to transactions with non-related parties.

N2
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.}-March 18, 2015 Submission of motice and agenda for CEl's 2015 Annual Stockholders’

During the last three years, there were no transactions or series of similar transactions with or
involving the Corporation or any of its subsidiaries in which a director, executive officer, nominee for
election as a director or stockholder owning ten percent (10%) or more of total outstanding shares and
members of their immediate family, had or is 1o have a direct or indirect material interest.-

PART IV — CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

ltem 14. Corporate Governance

Please refer to the attached Annual Corporate Governance Report 2015

PART V - EXHIBITS AND SCHEDULES
ltem 14. Exhibits and Reports on SEC Form 17-C
(1) Exhibits |
Audited Financial Statements Annex A

(2) Reports on SEC Form 17-C from January 01 to December 31, 2015

February 26, 2015 | Approval of the following resolutions during the regular Board of
Director’s Meeting dated Feb. 24, 2015: (1) holding of the 2015 Annual
Stockholders’ Meeting on May 26, 2015; (2) setting of March 31, 2015 as.
the record date for stockholders who are entitled to attend and vote at the
2015 Annual Stockholders’ Meeting; and (3) amendment of the Fourth
Article of CEI's Articles of Incorporation extending the corporate term for
another 50 years.from Oct. 24, 2019. .

_ Meeting to be held on May 26, 2015. .

May 29, 2015 Results of the Annual Stockholder’s Meeting held on May 26, 2015
October 20, 2015 Resignation of Rowel B. Esteban and the Appointment of Hendrick S.

' Natividad as Manager of the Accounting Department




SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 17 of the Code and Section 141 of the Corporation Code, this
report is signed on behalf of the issuer by the undersigned; thereunto duly authorized,.in the City of
Makati.

By:
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ROMUALD U. DY TANG EUGENE" CALALAG
President ' Firsy Vice-President
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Corporate Secretary
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Hendrick Van S. Natividad 296-097-464
Antonio B. Alvarez " 107-049-888--
Doc. No. 104
Page No. 44~
Book No.
Series of 2016.

: PL{(,R,!SI}:NE s
?Z*:Q,}gq.m

‘Atterney’s Roll No, 60558
- 33rd Floor The Ornient Square,
“F¥Oruigas i1 Road. Ortigss Center Pasig City
PTR 01385890, 01.05 16; Pasig City
IBPN0.1018258,01.06.16; RS

1~
w




CROWN EQUITIES

INCORVPORATED

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The management of CROWN EQUITIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES (the Group) is
responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements as at
and for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, in accordance with the
prescribed financial reporting framework indicated therein. This responsibility
includes designing and implemeriting internal controls relevant 10 the preparation and
fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies,

and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

The Managementn reviews and approves the financial statements and submits the same to the
stockholders.

R. G. Manabat & Co., the independent auditors appointed by the stockholders, bas audited the
consolidated financial statements of the Group in accordance with Philippine Standards on
Anditing, and in its report 10 the stockholders, has expressed its opinion on the faimess of
presentation upon completion of such audit.
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ROMUALD U. DY TANG

% President

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before mefRR 1 1 2[ffpant exhibiting to me their
Tax Identification Number, as follows:

NAMES TIN
George L. Go 100-929-738
Rommuald U. Dy Tang 115-321-304

Amntonio B. Alvarez
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CROWN EQUITIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013




R.G. Manabat & Co. Telephone  +63 {2) 8857000

The KPMG Center, 9/F ’ Fax +63 {2) 894 1985
6787 Ayala Avenue : intemet www.kpmg.com:ph
Migkati City 1226, Metro Manila, Philippines E-Mail pheinquiry@kpmg.com

Branches: Subic - Cebu - Bacalod - lioflo

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

- The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Crown Bquities, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Crown Center, 158 Jupiter corner N. Garcia Streets
Makati City

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Crown Equities, Inc.
and Subsidiaries, which comprise the consolidated statements of financial position as at
December 31, 2015 and 2014, and the consolidated statements of comprehensive income,
consolidated statements of changes in equity and consolidated statements of cash flows for each
of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2015, and notes, comprising a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory'iﬂformation.

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is Tesponsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated
financial statements in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards, and for such
internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
'ﬁnancial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on

“our audits. We conducted our andits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Aunditing.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from
material misstatement. '

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
anditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement.of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditors consider internal conirol relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair
presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
offectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evalnating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion. '

- L Aecobat U 0 (! hinand a war firmof tha KPMG PRC-BOA Repistration No. 0003, valid untll Decembar 31, 2016
A I e AR Braun A valid untl November 10, 2017




Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of Crown Equities, Inc. and Subsidiaries as at December 31, 2015
and 2014, and its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for each of
the three years in the period ended December 31, 2015 in accordance with Philippine Financial

* Reporting Standards. .

R.G. MANABAT & CO.

(Sl WA WA S

DINDO MARCO M. DIOSO
Partner ‘ :
CPA License No. 0095177 :
SEC Accreditation No. 1387-A, Group A, valid until February 5, 2017
Tax Identification No. 912-365-765
BIR Accreditation No. 08-001987-30-2013
Issued December 2, 2013; valid until December 1, 2016
PTR No. 5320746MD
Tssued Jarmary 4, 2016 at Makati City

April 12,2016
Makati City, Metro Manila




CROWN EQUITIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

December 31

Note . 2015 2014
ASSETS
Current Assets .
Cash and cash equivalents 6, 32,33 P204,010,289 P202,611,044
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 7,32, 33 31,951,632 22,438,641
Installment contract receivables - current portion ' 9 17,829,446 17,864,864
Receivables - net 10 45,676,878 31,678,490
Loans receivable - current portion 12,32, 33 12,500,000 -
Inventories 11 186,489,381 206,632,002
Other current assets 17 56,860,240 55,416,354
Total Current Assets 555,317,866 536,641,395
Noncurrent Assets -
Available-for-sale financial asset 7,34 47,344,659 47,344,659
‘Installment contract réceivables - net of current v
portion 9 52,213,086 50,630,188
Loans receivable - net of current portion 12, 32, 33 45,833,333 50,000,000
Investment in and advances to a joint venture - net 13 234,438,556 234,438,556
Goodwill ‘ 14 21,746,604 . 21,740,604
Property and equipment - net 15 271,872,718 285,221,798
Investment properties - net 16 695,413,822 703,523,468
Deferred tax assefs 27 1,630,836 2,303,644
Other noncurrent assets 17 7,030,045 8,127,607
Total Noncurrent Assets 1,383,517,659 1,403,330,524
‘ P1,938,835,525  P1,939,971,919
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Accounts and other payables 18 . P135,415,322 P142,954,188
Due to related parties 21 15,212,887 25,812,887
*Subscriptions payable 19 42,158,700 42,158,700
Income tax payable 791,469 -
Total Current Liabilities 193,578,378 210,925,775
Noncurrent Liability N
Retirement liability 30 12,119,432 11,577,711
Total Liabilities 205,697,810 222,503,486
Equity
Capital stock : 20 1,348,035,906 1,345,110,906
Additional paid-in capital 118,570,274 118,570,274
Retained earnings 106,933,349 100,588,825
Retirement benefits reserve , 30 1,636,864 1,194,146
Total Equity Attributable to Equity Holders of
the Parent Company 1,575,176,393 1,565,464,151
Noncontrolling Interests J 157,961,322 152,004,282
Total Equify 1,733,137,715 1,717,468,433
P1,938,835,525  P1,939,971,919

See Noles to the Consolidated Financial Statements.




CROWN EQUITIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Years Endéd December 31

. ' Note 2015 2014 2013
REVENUES .
Real estate sales 22,28 P116,928,065 Pl 16,107,646 P55,672,823
Sale of services 46,195,790 51,699,802 55,988,325
Interest on installment contract v

receivables 9 - 14,485,828 8,149,438 9,581,365
Interest on loans receivable 12 6,075,090 5,843,127 1,998,194
Rent incoms 29 7,713,869 5,624,685 8,236,887
Sale of goods 293,038 426,662 553,918
Dividend income 8 , - 7,200,371 -

191,691,680 195,051,821 132,031,512
COST AND EXPENSES . :
Cost of sales and setvices 23 80,065,513 73,666,409 51,119,491
Operating expenses 24 100,719,140 V 91,571,002 79,828,635
180,784,653 165,237,411 130,948,126
OTHER INCOME - Net 26 8,779,757 776,036 © 5,174,338
INCOME BEFORE INCOME

TAX ' 19,686,784 30,590,446 6,257,724
INCOME TAX EXPENSE 27 7,388,341 10,161,254 3,889,121
NET INCOME P12,298,443 P20,429,192 P2,368,603
Net income attributable tb
Equity holders of the Parent R

Company P6,344,524 P18,897,630 (P282,825)
Nonconﬂfolling nterests 5,953,919 1,531,562 2,651,428
NET INCOME 12,298,443 20,429,192 2,368,603
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE

-INCOME
Ttem that will not be reclassified

subsequently to profit or loss
Remeasurement gain on .

retirement benefits 30 445,839 676,440 560,644
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE

INCOME P12,744,282 P21,105,632 P2,929,247

Forward




Years Ended December 31

Note - 2015

2014 2013

Total comprehensive income
attributable to
Equity holders of the Parent
Company P6,787,242

P19,748,761 P60,190
1,356,871 2,869,057

Noncontrolling interests 5,957,040
’ ' ’ P12,744,282

P21,105,632 P2,929,247

BASIC/DILUTED EARNINGS
(LOSS) PER SHARE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO
EQUITY HOLDERS OF
THE PARENT COMPANY 31 P0.000467

P0.00139 (P0.00002)

See Notes o the Consolidated Financial Statemenls.
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CROWN EQUITIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

"CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31
Note 2015 2014 2013
CASH FLOWS FROM '
OPERATING
~ ACTIVITIES :
Income before income tax P19,686,784 P30,590,446 P6,257,724
Adjustments for:
Interest income 9, 12,26 (23,178,847) (15,412,609) (11,921,903)
Depreciation and amortization 15,16 15,362,474 15,248,946 15,633,990
Impairment losses on: '
Installment contract receivables 9 2,869,901 - -
Investment property - 2,197,072 -
Unrealized loss (gain) in the
change in value of financial
assets at FVPL 7 2,708,098 (836,415) 4,245311
Unrealized foreign exchange :
gain 26 (2,529,198) (116,119) (344,425)
Retivement. expense 30 1,937,560 1,665,396 2,135,538
Loss (gain) from cancelled
contracts and forfeited
customers’ deposits 26 (329,889) 321,856 960,693
Gain on disposal of property
and equipment (93,429) - -
Operating income before ' ‘
working capital changes 16,433,454 33,658,573 16,996,043
Decrease (increase) in: ' ‘
Financial assets at fair value - :
through profit or loss (12,221,089) 824,257 (3,621,767)
Installment contract receivables (4,417,381) 1,265,104 212,984
Receivables (13,998,388) 18,727,918 (10,852,206)
Inventories 20,472,510 5,017,263 9,162,462
Other current assets (6,842,793) 8,771,788 (8,620,603)
‘Increase (decrease) in accounts
“and other payables 18 (7,538,866) 27,344,290 2,683,640
Cash generated from (absorbed .
by) operations (8,112,553) 95,615,193 5,961,438
Interest received 23,178,847 15,141,098 11,515,511
Benefits paid 30 (950,000) (119,462) -
Income taxes paid (525,157) (10,282,819) (1,894,895)
Net cash provided by operating
activities 13,591,137 100,354,001 15,582,054

Forward




Years Ended December 31

Note

2015

2014

2013

CASH FLOWS FROM
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from disposal of
property and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of
investment properties
Acqnisition of property and

equipment I5 .

Acquisition of investment
properties 16
Decrease (increase) in:
Loans receivables
Other noncurrent assets
Available for sale financial
" assets 8

P206,388
20,189,556
(6,566,623)

(13,640,140)

(8,333,333)
1,097,562

28,859,170

(7,544,191)

(4,336,592)

P -
876,703

(2,380,813)

(1,831,645)

(50,000,000)
3,683,561

(8,849,602)

Net cash provided by (used in)
investing activities

(7,046,090)

16,978,387

(58,501,796)

CASH FLOWS FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

-Collection of subscriptions
receivable

Decrease in due to related parties

2,925,000
(10,600,000

14,964,080

(3,035,910)

Net cash provided by (used in)
‘ financing activities

(7,675,000)

11,928,180

EFFECT OF FOREIGN
' CURRENCY EXCHANGE
RATE CHANGES ON
CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

12,528,198

116,119

344,426

NET INCREASE (DECREASE)
IN CASH AND CASH
. EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH
" EQUIVALENTS AT
BEGINNING OF YEAR

1,399,245

202,611,044

114,412,606

88,198,438

(42,575,316)

130,773,754

CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS AT

END OF YEAR 6

P204,010,289

P202,611,044

P88,198,438

Sec Noles to the Consolidated Tinmncial Statements.




CROWN EQUITIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ~

1. Reporting Entity

Crown Equities, Inc. (“CEI” or the “Parent Company”) is an investment holding
company incotporated and registered with the Philippine Securities and Exchange
Commission (SEC) on October 24, 1969. The Parent Company’s registered office
address is located at the Crown Center, 158 Jupiter corner N. Garcia Streets, Makati City.

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Parent
Company and its Subsidiaries (collectively referred o as the “Group”). The Parent
Company’s shares of stock are listed and traded at the Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE).

The Group operates within the Philippines and is mainly involved in real estate business,
healthcare services and investment holding. As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, the
Parent Company has ownership interests in the following subsidiaries and associates; all

incorporated in the Philippines:
Effective
Percentage of
Ownership
2015 2014
Subsidiaries
Real Estate
Crown Central Properties, Corp. (CCPC) @ 48% 48%
Parldield Land Holdings, Inc. (PLET) ® 75% 75%
Healthcare ,
Healthcare Systems of Asia Phils., Inc. (HSAPI) 97% 97%
Fortmed Medical Clinics Makati, Inc. (FMCMI)F/ ‘ 97% 97%
- Joint Venture
Sky Leisure Properties, Inc. (SLPD) : 50% 50%

(a) Managemen! has determined that the Company has control over lhe financial and operating policies of CCPC
through representation on the Board of Direclors (Note 2).
(b) This compmy has nol yet started commercial operations.
 (c) This represents direct and indirect ownership in 2015 and 2014, respectively.

2. Basis of Preparation

Statement of Compliance ,

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in compliance with Philippine
Financial Reporting Standards (PFRSs). PFRSs are based on International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by the Tnternational Accounting Standards Board
(IASB). PFRS consist of PFRSs, Philippine Accounting Standards (PASs), and
Philippine Interpretations issued by the Financial Reporting Standards Council (FRSC).

The accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Group were approved for
issue by the Executive Committes on April 12, 2016, as authorized by the Board of
Directors (BOD) on February 23, 2016. '




Basis of Measurement :
The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared on the historical -
cost basis except for the following items which are measured on an alternative basis on
each reporting date:

Ttems Measurement Bases.

Available-for-sale (AFS) financial assets Fair value

Fair assets at fair value through profit or Fair value

loss
Embedded derivative Fair value

Functional and Presentation Cuzrency

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Philippine peso, which is also the
Parent Company’s functional currency. All financial information presented is rounded to
the nearest peso, except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of Consolidation ,

The Group obtains and exercises control through voting rights. The Group’s consolidated

financial statements comprise the accounts of the Parent Company, and its subsidiaries as
enumerated in Note 1, after the elimination of intercompany balances and transactions

with subsidiaries, including income, eXpenses and dividends. Unrealized profits and

Josses from intercompany transactions are also eliminated in full.

The consolidated financial statements are prepared for the same reporting period as the
Parent Company, using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other events
in similar circumstances.

Non-controlling interests represent the portioﬁ of profit or loss and net assets not held by
the Group and are presented in the consolidated statements of financial position,
separately from equity attributable to equity holders of the Parent Company.

Non-controlling inferests consist of the interests not held by the Group in PLHI, HSAPI
and CCPC in 2015 and 2014 (Note 5).

Use of Estimates and Judgments

The Group’s consolidated financial statements prepared in accordance with PERS
requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect amounts
reported in the consolidated financial statements and related notes, at the reporting date.
However, uncertainty about these estimates and assumptions could result in outcome that
conld require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the affected asset or
liability in the future.

Judgments .
Tn the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the

following judgments, apart from those involving estimations, which have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognized in the consolidated financial staternents:

Distinction between Investment Properties, Inventory and Owner-occupied Properties.
The Group determines whether a property qualifies as investment property. In making its
judgment, the Group considers whether the property generates cash flows largely
independent from the other assets held by an entity. Owner-occupied properties generate
cash flows that are attributable not only to property but also to other assets used in the
production or supply process.




~ Some propetties comprise a portion that is held to earn rental or for capital appreciation

and another portion that-is held for user in the supply of services or for administrative
purposes. If these portions can be sold separately (or leased out separately under finance
Jease), the Group accounts for the portions separately. If the portion cannot be sold
separately, the property is accounted for as investment property only if an insignificant
portion is held for use in the production or supply of goods or service or administrative
purposes. Judgment is applied in determining whether ancillary services are so significant
that a property does not qualify as investment property. The Group considers each
property separately in making its judgment. '

The Company classified the parcels of land in T aguig City, Metro Manila, Sto. Tomas,
Batanges and San Jose del Monte Bulacan as investment properties as they are held by
the Company for future development or appreciation.

The Company classifies the building in Sta. Rosa, Laguna as an investment property. The
building is being leased out to FMCMI under operating lease.

The Company classified saleable house and lot as inventories.

Part of the building owned by the Company is owner-occupied for administrative
purposes.

The carrying value of investment properties amounted to P695,413,822 and
P703,523,468 in as at December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively (Note 24).

Operating Lease Commitments - Group as Lessor/Lessee. The Group has entered into
various lease agreements either as a lessor or a lessee. The Group had determined that it
retains all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the properties leased out on
operating leases while the significant risks and rewards for properties leased from third
parties are retained by the lessors.

Rent expense included as part of operating expenses amounted to P34,189, P35,689 and
P34,189 in 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively (Note 24).

" Rent income recognized in 2015, 2014 and 2013 amounted to P7,713,869, P5,624,685,

and P8,236,887, respectively (Note 29).

Evaluation of Control over CCPC, The Group has 48% equity interest in CCPC.
Management has determined that the Group has control over the financial and operating
policies of CCPC through majority representation on the BOD.

Assessing Joint Arrangements

The Group determines the type of joint arrangement in which it is involved by
considering its rights and obligations. An entity assesses its rights and obligations by
considering the structure and legal form of the arrangement, the contractual terms agreed

" to by the parties to the arrangement and, when relevant, other facts and circumstances.

Joint arrangements are classified into two types: joint operations and joint ventures. A
joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the
arrangement (i.e., joint operators) have rights to the assets, and obligations for the
liabilities, relating to the arrangement. A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement (i.e., joint venturers) have rights to the
net assets of the arrangement.




The Group has determined that its investment in joint arrangements are classified as
investments in joint ventures and joint operation.

The Group has 50% equity interest in SLPL, Management has determined that the Group
has equal control with the other venture over the financial and operating policies of SLPI
(Note 28).

The Gréup has established separate joint operations with SLRDI and DMCL

SLRDI and the Group entered to an agreement that the latter will contribute land and
improvements while the former will be the “Developer” of the land. The Group shall be
paid 60% in the in sales proceeds.

DMCI and the Group entered to an agreement that the latter will contribute land and
improvements while the former will be the “Developer” for the condominium, the
Cypress Towers. the Group share in the project is equivalent to 15.6% of the cost of the
- total condominium units and parking slots. (Note 28).

Embedded Derivatives. The Group: reviews: financial instruments for embedded
derivatives. The loans receivable includes options to convert it to equity and allows the
borrower to repay the debt before the end of its full contractual term. The management
assessed that-these options are embedded derivatives because if exercised they will or
may modify the cash flows of the loans receivable (Note 12).

Evaluation of Legal Contingencies

The Group is a party to certain lawsuits or claims arising from the ordinary course of
business. The Group’s management and legal counsel believe that the eventual liabilities
under these lawsuits or claims, if any, will not have material effect on the consolidated
- financial statements. Accordingly, no provision for probable losses arising from legal
contingencies was recognized in 2015 and 2014, respectively (Note 34).

Estimates ,

The key estimates and assumptions used in the consolidated financial statements are
based on management’s evaluation of relevant facts and circumstances as of the date of
the Group’s consolidated financial statements. Actual results could differ from such
estimates.

Estimating Allowance for Impairment Losses on Receivables, Installment Contract

Receivables, Loans receivable and Advances to Joint Venture.
Allowance is made for specific and groups of accounts, where objective evidence of
jmpairment exists. The Group evaluates these accounts based on available facts and
circumstances, including, but not limited to, the length of the Group’s relationship with
the debtors, the current credit status based on third party credit reports, if any, and known
market forces, average age of accounts, collection experience and historical loss
experience.

As at December 31,2015 and 2014, the carrying value of accounts receivables amounted
to P45,676,878 and P31,678,490, respectively (Note 10). Allowance for impairment
losses on accounts receivables amounted to P10,555,243 as at December 31, 2015 and
2014 (Note 10).

As at December 31, 2015 and 2014, the carrying value of installment contract receivables
amounted to P70,042,532 and P68,495,052, respectively (Note 9). Impairment losses on
installment contract receivables amounted to P2,869,901 in 2015 (Note 9.



As at December 31,’2015 and 2014, the carrying value of loans receivable amounted to
P58,333,333 nad P50,000,000, respectively. ’ :

Estimating Impairment of the AFS Financial Asset. The unquoted AFS financial asset is
considered impaired when management believes that future cash flows generated from
the investment is expected to decline significantly. In determining if impairment exists,
significant estimates and assumptions are made on the future cash flows expected and the
appropriate discount rate. :

For an AFS Financial Asset, objective evidence of impairment includes a signiﬁcant.or
prolonged decline in its fair value below its cost. The Group considers a decline of 20%
to be significant and a peviod of twelve months to be prolonged. e

As at December 31, 2015 and 2014, the carrying value of the AFS financial asset
amounted to P47,344,659. No impairment loss was- recognized in 2015 and 2014

(Note 8).

Estimating the Net Realizable Value of Real Estate Inventories. The Group writes-down
the carrying amount to reduce real estate inventories to net realizable value whenever net
realizable value becomes lower than cost due to changes in price levels or other causes.

Bstimates of net realizable value are based on the most reliable evidence available at the
time the estimates are made of the amount the inventories are expected to be realized.
These estimates take into consideration fluctuations of price or cost directly relating to
events occurring after reporting date to the extent that such events confirm conditions
existing at the end of reporting date. The Company reviews real estate inventories for
probable decline in value. Where the carrying amount of real estate inventories exceeds

its net realizable value, the real estate inventory is considered jmpaired and is written
down to its net realizable value. ‘

Management believes that there are no indications that the net realizable value of real
estate inventories is lower than its cost of P186,489,381 and P206,632,002 as at
December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively (Note 1.

Estimating Useful Lives of Properly and Equipment and Investment Properties. The
Group estimates the useful lives of property and equipment and investment properties
based on the period over which the assefs are expected to be available for use. The
estimated useful lives of propeity and equipment and investment properties are reviewed
periodically and are updated if expectations differ from previous estimates due to
physical wear and tear, technical or commercial obsolescence and legal or other limits on

the use of the assets.

Tn addition, estimation of the useful lives of property and equipmient and investment

_properties is based on collective assessment of industry practice, internal technical

evaluation and experience with similar assets. It is possible, however, that future results
of operations could be materially affected by changes in estimates brought about by
changes in factors mentioned above. The amounts and timing of recorded expenses for
any period would be affected by changes in these factors and circumstances. A reduction
in the estimated useful lives of property and equipment and investment properties would
increase recorded cost of services and operating expenses and decrease noncurrent assets.

Property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation and amortization, amounted to
P277,872,718 and P285,221,798 as at December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively
(Note 15), while the carrying value of investment properties amounted to P695,413,822
and P703,523,468 as at December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively (Note 16).




Estimated fair values of investment properties amounted to P1,150,521,700 as at
December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively (Note 16).

Realizability of Deferred Tax Assets. The Group reviews its deferred tax assets at each
reporting date and reduces the catrying amount to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset
to be utilized. The Group’s assessment on the recognition of deferred tax assefs on
deductible temporary difference and carryforward benefits of MCIT and NOLCO is
based.on the projected taxable income in the following periods.

The Group has not recognized the net deferred tax assets on temporary differences
amounting to P157,026,263 and P143,255,147 as at December 31, 2015 and 2014,
respectively, as management believes that there will be no enough future taxable income
available to utilize the deferred tax assets. The carryforward benefits of NOLCO and
MCIT of FMCMI amounting to P23,418 and P1,607,418 as at December 31, 2015 and
2014, respectively, have been recognized as management expects these to be utilized
prior to their expiration (Note 27).

Impairment of Non-financial Assets. PFRS. requires that an impairment review ‘be
performed on investments in a joint venture, property and equipment, investment
properties and other noncurrent assets when events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. Determining the net recoverable value
of assets requires the estimation of cash flows expected to be generated from the
continued use and ultimate disposition of such assets. While it is believed that the
assumptions used in the estimation of fair values reflected in the consolidated financial
statements are appropriate and reasonable, significant changes in these assumptions may
materially affect the assessment of recoverable values and any resulting impairment loss

could have a material adverse impact on the financial performance.

The carrying amount of the Group’s non-financial assets, net of accumulated depreciation
and amortization and allowances for impairment losses, amounted to P1,244,638,892 and
P1,263,273,041 as at December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively (Notes 13, 15, 16
and 17). .

Impairment of Goodwill. The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least
annually. This requires the estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units to
which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating value in use requires management to make
* an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the cash-generating unit and to choose
a suitable discount rate to calculate the present value of those cash flows.

The carrying amount of goodwill as at December 31, 2015 and 2014 amounted to
P21,740,604 (Note 14).

Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation. The present value of the retirement ligbility
depends on a number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a number
of assumptions. These assumptions are described in Note 30 to the consolidated financial
statements and include discount rate, and salary increase rate. Actual results that differ
from the assumptions are accumulated and amortized over future periods and therefore,
generally affect the recognized expense and recorded obligation in such future periods.

The Group determines the appropriate discount rate at the end of each year, It is the
interest rate that should be used to determine the present value of estimated future cash
outflows expected to be required to settle the retirement liability. In determining the
approptiate discount rate, the Group considers the interest rates on government bonds
that are denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid.




Other key assumptions for retirement liability are based in part on current market
conditions. ' ‘

While it is believed that the Group’s assumptions are reasonable and appropriate,
significant differences in actual experience or significant changes in assumptions may
materially affect the Group’s retirement Hability.

The Group’s retirement liability amounted to P12,119,432 and P11,577,711 as at
December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively (Note 30). -

Estimating the Fair Value of Embedded Derivatives :
The management used valuation techmiques in determining the fair value of embedded
derivatives on the loans receivable.

The fair value of the prepayment option is determined by calculating the present value of
the prepayment penalty using the nominal interest rate which approximates the prevailing
market interest rate. The fair value is minimal and accordingly the difference in
prepayment value and amortized cost is not significant. Therefore, the option is closely

related to the host contract, and as such, bifurcation is not needed. -

The option.to convert the loans receivable to equivalent common shares has no value at

this time as the option is currently out of the money.

Determination of Fair Value of Financial Instruments

“Where the fair value of financial assets and liabilities recorded in the consolidated
statements of financial position cannot be derived from active markets, they are
determined using valuation techniques including the discounted cash flows model. The
inputs to the models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is
not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in establishing the fair values. The
judgments inclode considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk and credit risk. Changes
in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial
instruments.

The fair values of FVPL and AFS were based on the level 1 and 3 of the fair iralue
hierarchy, respectively.

Estimating Provisions ‘

Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and are adjusted to reflect the current best
estimates. These estimates are based on consultations with independent outside parties,
historical experience and other available data. While management believes that the bases
of these estimates are reasonable and appropriate, significant differences in actual
experience or assumption may materially affect the recorded provision. Accordingly, no
provision for probable losses arising from legal contingencies was recognized in the
separate financial statements as at December 31, 2015 and 2014. It is possible, however,
that future results of the operations could be materially affected by changes in the
estimates on the effectiveness of the strategies relating these proceedings (see Note 34).




3., Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently by the Group to all
periods presented in the consolidated financial statements, except for the changes as
explained below.

Adoption of New or Revised Standards, Amendments to Standards and Interpretations
The Group has adopted the following amendments to standards and new interpretation
starting January 1, 2015 and accordingly, changed its accounting policies. Except as
otherwise indicated, the adoption of these amendments to standards and interpretation did
not have any sighificant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

s Annual Improvements to PFRSS: 2010 - 2012 and 2011 - 2013 Cycles - Amendments
were made to a total of nine standards, with changes made to the standards on
business combinations and fair value measurement in both cycles. Most amendments
will apply prospectively for annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2014. Earlier
application is permitted, in which case the related consequential amendments to other
PFRSs would also apply. Special transitional requirements have been set for
amendments to the following standards: PFRS 2, PAS 16, PAS 38 and PAS 40. The
following are the said improvements or amendments to PFRSs, none of which has a

.

significant effect on the consolidated financial statements of the Company:

o Scope exclusion for the formation of joint arrangements (Amendment to PFRS 3).

" PERS 3 has been amended to clarify that the standard does not apply to the
accounting for the formation of all types of joint arrangements in PFRS 11, Joint
Arrangements - i.e. including joint operations - in the financial statements of the
joint arrangements themselves.

o Disclosures on the aggregation of operating segments (dmendment to PFRS 8).
PERS § has been amended to explicitly require the disclosure of jndgments made
by management in applying the aggregation criteria. The disclosures include: a
brief description of the operating segments that have been aggregated; and the
economic indicators that have been assessed in determining that the operating
segments share similar economic characteristics. In addition, this amendment
clarifies that a reconciliation of the total of the reportable segments’ assets to the
entity’s assets is required only if this information is regularly provided to the
entity’s chief operating decision maker. This change aligns the . disclosure
requirements with those for segment liabilities.

o Definition of ‘related party’ (Amendment to PAS 24). The definition of a
‘yelated party’ is extended to include a management entity that provides key
management personnel (KMP) services to the reporting entity, either directly or
through a group entity. For related party transactions that arise when KMP
services are provided to a reporting entity, the reporting entity is required to
separately disclose the amounts that it has recognized as an expense for those
services that are provided by a management entity; however, it is not required to
‘look through’ the management entity and disclose compensation paid by the
management entity to the individuals providing the KIMP services. The reporting
entity will also need to disclose other transactions with the management entity
under the existing disclosure requirements of PAS 24 - e.g. loans.




' Standards Jssued but Not Yet Adopted |
A number of new standards and amendments to standards are effective for annual periods

beginning after January 1, 2015. However, the Group has not applied the following new
or amended standards in preparing these consolidated financial statements. Unless
otherwise stated, none of these are expected to have a significant impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements. '

Effective January 1, 2016

s Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortization (Amendments
to PAS 16 and PAS 38). The amendments to PAS 38, Intangible Assets introduce a
rebuttable presumption that the use of revenue-based amortization methods for
intangible assefs is inappropriate. This presumption can be overcome only when
revenue and the consumption of the economic benefits of the intangible asset are
‘highly correlated’, or when the intangible asset is expressed as a measure of
revenue. : :

The amendments to PAS 16, Propert, Plant and Equipment explicitly state that
revenue-based methods of depreciation cannot be used for property, plant and
equipment. This is becanse such methods reflect factors other than the consumption
of economic benefits embodied in the asset - e.g. changes in sales volumes and
prices.

The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2016, and are to be applied prospectively. Early application is permitted.

e Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements (Amendments to P4S 27). The
amendments allow the use of the equity method in separate financial statements, and
apply to the accounting not only for associates and joint ventures, but also for
subsidiaries. ‘ o

The amendments apply retrospectively for annual periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2016. Barly adoption is permitted.

= [Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation Exception Mmehdments to PFRS 10,
PFERS 12 and PAS 28) clarifies that:

o A subsidiary that provides investment-related services should not be consolidated
if the subsidiary itself is an investment entity.

o The exemption from preparing consolidated financial statements for an
intermediate held by an investment entity, even though the investment entity
does not consolidate the intermediate.

o When applying the equity method to an associate- or a joint venture, a non-
investment entity investor in an investment entity may retain the fair value
measurement applied by the associate or joint venture: to its interests in
subsidiaries.

The amendments are to be applied retrospectively for annual periods beginning on or
after Jamuary 1, 2016. Barly adoption is permitted.
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s« Disclosure Initiative (Amendments to PAS 1) addresses some concerns expressed
about existing presentation and disclosure requirements and to ensure that entities are
able to use judgment when applying PAS 1. The amendments clarify that:

o Information should not be obscured by aggregating or by providing immaterial
information.

o Materiality considerations apply to all parts of the financial statem:'ents,’ even
when a standard requires a specific disclosure.

o The list of line items to be presented in the statement of financial position and
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income can be disaggregated
and aggregated as relevant and additional guidance on subtotals in these
statements.

o An entity’s share of OCI of equity-accounted associates and joint ventures
should be presented in aggregate as single line items based on whether or not it
vyill subsequently be reclassified to profit or loss. '

The amendments are to be applied retrospectively for annual periods beginning on or
after January 1, 2016, Barly adoption is permitted. :

Effective January 1, 2018

= PFRS 9, Financial Instruments (2014). PERS 9 (2014) replaces PAS 39, Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement and supersedes the previously published
versions of PFRS 9 that introduced new classifications and measurement
requirements (in 2009 and 2010) and a new hedge accounting model (in 2013).
PFRS 9 includes revised gnidance on the classification and measurement of financial
assets, including a new expected credit loss model for calculating impairment,
guidance on own credit risk on financial Habilities measured at fair value and
supplements the new general hedge accounting requirements published in 2013.
PFRS 9 incorporates new hedge accounting requirements that represent a major
overhaul of hedge accounting and introduces significant improvements by aligning
the accounting more closely with risk management.

The new standard is to be applied retrospectively for annual periods beginning on or
after January 1, 2018 with early adoption permitted.

The Company is assessing the potential impact on its consolidated financial
statements resulting from the application of PFRS 9.




Effective January 1, 2019

PFRS 16, Leases supemsedes PAS 17, Leases and the related Philippine
Interpretations. The new standard introduces a single lease accounting model for
lessees under which all major leases are recognized on-balance sheet, removing the
lease classification test. Lease accounting for lessors essentially remains unchanged
except for a number of details including the application of the new lease definition,
new sale-and-leaseback guidance, new sub-lease guidance and new disclosure
requirements. Practical expedients and targeted reliefs were introduced including an
optional lessee exemption for short-term leases (leases with a term of 12 months or
less) and low-value items, as well as the permission of portfolio-level accounting
instead of applying the requirements to individual leases. New estimates and
judgmental thresholds that affect the identification, classification and measurement
of lease transactions, as well as requirements: to reassess certain key estimates and
judgments at each reporting date were introduced.

PERS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019. Earlier
application is not permitted until the FRSC has adopted PFRS 15. The Company is
currently assessing the potential impact of PFRS 16 and plans to adopt this new
standard on leases on the required effective date once adopted locally.

Pending Approval of Local Adoption of PFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with

Customers

PFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers replaces PAS 11, Construction
Contracts, PAS 18 Revenue, IFRIC 13 Customer Loyally Programmes, IFRIC 18
Transfer of Assets from Customers and SIC-31 Revenue - Barter Transactions
Involving Advertising Services. The new standard introduces a new revenue
recognition model for contracts with customers which specifies that revenue should
be recognized when (or as) a company transfers control of goods or services to a
customer at the amount to which the company expects o be entitled. Depending on
whether certain criteria are mef, revenue is recognized over time, in a manner that
best reflects the company’s performance, or at a point in time, when control of the
goods or services is transferred to the customer. The standard does not apply to
insurance contracts, financial instruments or lease contracts, which fall in the scope
of other PFRSs. It also does not apply if two companies in the same line of business
exchange non-monetary assets £0 facilitate sales to other parties. Furthermore, if a
contract with a customer is partly in the scope of another TFRS, then the guidance on

separation and measurement contained in the other PFRS takes precedence.

However, the FRSC has yet to issue/approve this new revenue standard for local
adoption pending completion of a study by the Philippine Interpretations Committee
on its impact on the real estate industry. If approved, the standard is effective for
annual periods beginning on of after January 1, 2018, with early adoption permitted.




Deferral of the Local Implementation of Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 15 Agreements

Jor the Construction of Real Estate

= Philippine Tnterpretation IFRIC 15, Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate
applies to the acconnting for revenue and associated expenses by entities that
undertake the construction of real estate directly or through subconfractors. It
provides guidance on the recognition of revenue among real estate developers for
sales of units, such as apartments or houses, ‘off plan’; ie., before construction is
completed. It also provides guidance on how to determine whether an agreement for
the construction of real estate is within the scope of PAS 11, Construction Coniracts,
or PAS 18 Revenue, and the timing of revenue recognition. :

Financial Assets and Liabilities

The Group’s financial assets and liabilifies consist of cash and cash equivalents, accounts
receivable, installment contract receivables, loans receivables, advances to joint venture, -
refundable deposits and construction bond, financial assefs at FVPL, AFS financial

assets, accounts payable and other payables (excluding payable to government agencies),

due to related parties and subscriptions payable.

Date of Recognition. The Group recognizes a financial asset or a financial liability in the
consolidated statements of financial position when it becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument, Tn the case of a regular way purchase or sale of financial

assets, recognition and derecognition, as applicable, is done using setilement date

accounting.

Initial Recognition of Fl inancial Instruments. Financial instruments are recognized
initially at fair value, which is the fair value of the consideration given (in case of an
asset) or received (in case of a liability). The fair value of the consideration given or
received is determined by reference to the fransaction price or other market prices. If
such market prices are not reliably determinable, the fair value of the consideration is
estimated as the sum of all future cash payments or receipts, discounted using the
prevailing market rate of interest for similar instruments with similar maturities. The
initial measurement of financial instruments, except for those designated at fair value
through profit or loss (FVPL), includes directly attributable transaction cost.

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories: held-to-maturity
(HTM) investmens, AFS financial assets, financial assets at FVPL and loans and
receivables. The Group classifies its financial Habilities as either financial liabilities at
FVPL or other financial liabilities. The classification depends on the purpose for which
the investments are acquired and whether they are quoted in an active market.
Management determines the classification of its finencial assets and financial liabilities at
initial recognition and, where allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates such designation at
every reporting date. The Company has no HTM investments as at December 31, 2015
and 2014.

Determination of Fair Value. The fair value for financial instruments traded in active
markets at the reporting date is based on their quoted market price or dealer price
quotations (bid price for long positions and ask price for short positions), without any
deduction for fransaction costs. When current bid and asking prices are not available, the
price of the most recent transaction provides evidence of the current fair value as long as
there has not been a significant change in economic circumstances since the time of the
{ransaction.




For all other financial instruments not listed in an active market, the fair .value is
determined by using appropriate valuation techniques. Valuation techniques include the
discounted cash flow method, comparison to similar instruments for which market
observable prices exist, options pricing models and other relevant valuation models.

‘Day 1’ Profit. Where the transaction price in a non-active market is different from the
fair value of the other observable current market transactions in the same instrument or
based on a valuation technique whose variables include only data from observable
market, the Group recognizes the difference between the transaction price and fair value
(a ‘Day 1’ profit) in profit or loss unless it qualifies for recognition as some other type of
asset. In cases where data used is not observable, the difference between the transaction
price and model value is only recognized in profit or loss when the inputs become
observable or when the instrument is derecognized. For each transaction, the Group
determines the appropriate method of recognizing the ‘Day 1° profit amount.

Financial Assels

Financial Assets af FVPL. Financial assets at FVPL include financial assets held for
trading and financial assets designated upon initial recognition at FVPL and those
classified under this category through the fair value option. Derivative instrument
(including embedded derivatives), except those covered by hedge accounting
relationships, are classified under this category.

Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of
selling in the near term. '

Financial assets may be designated by management at initial recognition at FVPL or
reclassified under this category through fair value option, when any of the following
criteria is met: h

. the designation eliminates or significantly reduces the inconsistent treatment that
. would otherwise arise from measuring the assets or recognizing gains or losses on a
different basis; or

s the assets and liabilities are part of a group of financial assets, financial liabilities or
both which are managed and their performance are evaluated on a fair value basis, in-
accordance with a documented risk management or investment strategy; or

v the financial instrument contains an embedded derivative, unless the embedded

derivative does not significantly modify the cash flows or it is clear, with litfle or no
analysis, that it wounld not be separately recognized.

The Group carries financial assets at FVPL using the fair values. Fair value changes and
realized gains and losses are recognized as part of “Other income (charges)” in profit or
loss. Any interest or dividend income is recognized as part of “Other income (charges)”
in profit or loss when the right of payment has been established.

The Group’s held for trading marketable equity and debt securities are classified under
this category.

Loans and Receivables. Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments and maturities that are not quoted in an active market.
These are not entered into with the intention of immediate or short-term resale and are
not designated as AFS financial asset or financial asset at FVPL.




. Subsequent to initial measurement, loans and receivables are carried at amortized cost
using the effective interest rate method, less any impairment in value. Any interest earned
on loans and receivables shall be recognized as part of “Other income (charges)” in profit
or loss on an accrual basis. Gains or losses are recognized in profit or loss when loans
and receivables are derecognized or impaired, as well as through the amortization

ProCess.

The Group’s cash and cash equivalents, installment contract receivables, accounts
receivables, loans receivable, advances to a joint venture, and refundable deposits and
construction bond are included in this category.

Cash includes cash on hand and in banks which are stated at face value. Cash
equivalents are shori-term, highly liquid investmenits that are readily convertible to
known amounts of cash with original maturities of three months or less and are subject to
an insignificant risk of change in value. ‘

AFS Financial Assets. AFS financial assets are non-derivative financial assets that are
either designated in this category or not classified under any of the other financial asset
categories. Subsequent 10 initial recognition, AFS financial assets are carried at fair value
or cost less impairment, when the equity instruments does not have a quoted market price
in.an active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured, in the consolidated
statements of financial position. The effective yield component of AFS debt securities is’
reported in profit or loss. Any interest earned on AF S debt securities shall be recognized
in profit or loss on an accrual basis. Dividends earned on holding AFS equity securities
are recognized as “Dividend income” when the right of collection has been established.
Any unrealized gains or losses for the period arising from the fair valuation of AFS
financial assets are reported as part of other comprehensive income, while the
accumulated unrealized gains or Josses are reported as a separate component of the
Group’s equity. When individual AFS financial assets are either derecognized or
impaired, the related accumulated unrealized gains or losses previously reported in equity
. are transferred to and recognized in profit or loss.

f an AFS financial asset is impaired, an amount comprising the difference between the
cost (net of any principal payment and amortization) and its current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognized in profit or loss, is
transferred from equity to profit or loss. Reversals in respect of equity instruments
classified as AFS financial assets are not recognized in profit or loss. Reversals of
impairment losses on debt instruments are recognized in profit or loss, if the increase in
fair value of the instrument can be objectively related to an event occurring after the

impairment loss was recognized in profit or loss.

In the case of an unguoted equity instrument the amount of impairment loss is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the estimated recoverable
amount using either the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the
current market rate of return for 2 similar financial asset or other valuation techniques.

The Group’s investments in unquoted equity instruments arc classified under Available-
for-sale financial asset.




Financial Liabilities

Other Financial Liabilities. This category pertains t0 non-derivative financial liabilities
that are not designated or classified as at FVPL. After initial measurement, other
financial liabilities are carried at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method.
Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any premium or discount and any
transastion costs that are considered an integral part of the effective interest rate of the
liability.

The Group’s accounts payable and accrued expenses (excluding payable to government
agencies and customers” deposits), due to related parties and subscriptions payable are
included in this category. .

Derivative Financial Instruments. Derivative financial instruments (including bifurcated
embedded derivatives) are initially recognized at fair value on the date on which a
derivative confract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured at fair value.
Derivatives are carried as assets when the fair value is positive and as liabilities when the
fair value is megative. Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value on
derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are taken directly to profit or loss.

Derecognition of Financial Assets and Liabilities
Financial Assets. A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part
of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognized when:

= . the right to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;

= . the Group retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an
obligation to.pay them in full without material delay to a third party under a
‘pass-through’ arrangement; Of :

»  the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and either:
(2) has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset; or (b) has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but
has transferred control of the asset.. :

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognized to the extent of the Group’s
continuing involvement in the asset.

Financial Liabilities. A financial liability is derecognized when the 'obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled or has expired.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on .
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
Jiability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective
catrying amounts is recognized in profit or loss.

Offsetting of Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
separate statements of financial position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable
legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. This is not generally
the case with master netting agreements, and the related assets and liabilities are
presented at gross in the separate statements of financial position.




Joint Arranpements

Joint Operation

A joint operation is 2 joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the
arrangement have rights to the assets, and obligations for the labilities, relating to the
arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an
arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities require
unanimous consent of the parties sharing control. The Group accounts for the assets,

lizbilities, revenues and expenses relating to its inferest in a joint operation in accordance
with the PFRSs applicable to the particular assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses.

Joint Venture

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the
arrangement have rights to the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when
decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing
control.

Interest in fhe joint venture is accounted using the equity method. Tt is recognized
initially at cost, which includes transaction costs. -Subsequent to initial recognition, the
consolidated financial statements include the Group’s share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of equity-accounted investees, umtil the date on which significant
influence or joint control ceases.

Inventories
Tnventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value (NRV).

Lots

This pertains to the remaining balance of the land and improvements which CCPC, a
subsidiary, contributed to a joint operation with a third party, The third party is engaged
in developing and marketing a real estate project. Cost of lots includes acquisition cost of
the land plus other development costs. Costs represents price determined using “specific
identification method".

Condominium Units and Parking Slots :

This pertains to the share in the joint operation allocated by and between DM Consunji,
Inc, (DMCI) and the Parent Company in respect of their memorandum of agreement
(Note 28). The Parent Company used the cost of land contributed to the joint ventare as
cost of the inventory divided by the total square meters of the units and parking slots
allocated. The Company used the cost of land contributed to the joint venture as cost of
the inventory divided by the total square meters of the units and parking slots allocated.
Costs represents price determined using “specific identification method”.

Houses

Cost of houses includes cost of construction and other direct costs of bringing the asset to
its intended purpose. Costs represents price determined using “specific identification
method”. :

NRYV is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Medical Supplies
This pertains to the medical, laboratory and pharmacy supplies of FMCMI. Costs
represents purchase price determined using first-in, first-out method.




NRYV is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost met of accumulated depreciation and
amortization and any impairment losses except for land. Land is carried at cost, less
accumulated impairment losses. The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and
directly atiributable costs of bringing the asset o working condition for its intended use.
Expenditures for additions, major improvements and renewals are capitalized;
expenditures for repairs and maintenance are charged fo expenso as incurred. When
assets ‘are sold, retired or otherwise disposed of, their cost and related accumulated
" depreciation and amortization and impairment losses are removed from the accounts and
any resulting gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss.

Depreciation is computed on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the
assets. '

Building and leasehold improvements are amortized over the estimated useful lives of the
improvements of ten years or the term of the lease, whichever is shorter.

Number of Years
Building 25-50
Building equipment 5
Building and leasehold improvements 10 or term of the

lease, whichever
is shorter

Medical equipment 5-7
Office equipment, furniture and fixtures 3-5
Transportation equipment 3.5

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

The residual values and estimated useful lives of property and equipment are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date.

An item of property and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or
{oss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is included in profit or loss in the
year the item is derecognized.

Investment Properties

Investment properties consisis of property held either fo earn rental income, for capital
appreciation or for future development. - This is carried at cost including directly
atiributable transaction costs, less any impairment in value. Cost includes purchase price,
commissions, taxes, licenses, and ofher direct costs of bringing the asset to its intended
purpose. Subsequently, investment properties are carried at cost, less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Acquisition costs include capitalized other costs and expenses incurred to effect the
transfer of title of the property o the Group.
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Depreciation of commercial space, which is part of the investment properties, is
computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful life of the asset. The
estimated useful life of the commercial space is 50 years. .
Tnvestment properties also include land held for future development consisting of raw
" Jand intended for future development. This includes acquisition costs and other costs and
expenses incurred to effect the transfer of title of the property to the Group. These costs
are reclassified to real estate inventories when the development of the properties start.

An investment property is derecognized when either the asset has been disposed of, or
when it is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits is expected
from its disposal. Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognized in profit or loss in the year of retirement or disposal. When the
use of a property changes such that it is reclassified as property and equipment, its
catrying amount at the date of reclassification becomes its cost for subsequent
accounting. ~

Transfers are made to investment properties when, and only when, there is 2 change in
use, evidenced by the end of owner-occupation, commencement of an operating lease to
another party or by the end of construction or development. Transfers are made from
investment properties when, and only when, there is a change in use, evidenced by
commencement of owner-occupation or commencement of development with a view to
sell.

Impairment of Assets .

Financial Assets. A financial asset is assessed at reparting date to determine whether
there is any objective evidence that it is impaired. A financial asset is considered to be
impaired if objective evidence indicates that one or more events have had a negative

effect on the estimated future cash flows of that asset.

An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortized cost i8
calculated as the difference between its carrying amount, and the present value of the

estimated future cash flows discounted at the original gffective interest rate.

Significant financial assets are tested for impairment on an individual basis. The
remaining financial assets are assessed collectively in groups that share similar credit risk
characteristics. : ’

Al] impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss.

Assets Carried at Amortized Cost. If there is an objective evidence that an impairment
loss on loans and receivables carried at amortized cost has been incurred, the amount of
the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not
been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e., the
effective interest rate computed at initial recognition). The carrying amount of the asset
shall be reduced through the use of an allowance account and the amount of the loss is
recognized in profit or loss. Tnterest income continues to be accrued on the reduced
carrying amount based on the original effective interest rate of the asset. The financial
assets, together with the associated allowance, are written-off when there is no realistic
prospect of future recovery and all collateral, if any, has been realized or has been
transferred to the Group.




The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for
financial assets that are in jvidually significant, and individually or collectively for
finaricial assets that are not individually significant, If it is determined that no objective
evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether
significant or not, the asset is included in a group of financial assets with similar credit
risk characteristics and that group of financial assets is collectively assessed for
impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an
impairment loss is or continues to be recognized are not inchuded in the collective
assessment of impairment. For the purpose of specific evaluation of impairment, the
“Group assesses whether financial assets are impaired through assessment of collectibility
of financial assets considering the debtor’s capacity to pay, history of payment, and the
availability of other financial support. For the purpose of collective evaluation of
impairment, if necessary, financial assets group on the basis of such credit risk
characteristics such as debtor type, payment history, past-due status and terms.

If in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease.
can be related objectively to an extent occurring after the impairment was recognized, the
previously recognized impairment loss is reversed, cither directly or by adjusting an
.allowance account. Any subsequent reversal is recognized in profit or loss to the extent
that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its amortized cost as at the reversal
“date.

Assets Carried at Cost. If there is objective evidence that an impairinent loss is incurred
on an unguoted equity instrument that is not carried at fair value because its fair valoe
cannot be reliably measured, the amount of the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset.
The carrying amount is reduced throngh the use of an allowance account.

AFS Financial Assets. Tmpairment losses on AFS financial assets are recognized by
reclassifying the losses accumnulated in the fair value reserve in equity to profit or loss.
The cumulative loss that is reclassified from equity to profit or loss is the difference
between the acquisition cost, net of any principal repayment and amortization, and the
current fair value, less any impairment loss recognized previously in profit or loss.
Changes in impairment losses attributable to application of the effective interest method
are reflected as a component of interest income. If, in a subsequent period, the fair value
of an impaired AFS debt security increases and the increase can be related objectively to
an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognized in profit or loss, then the
impairment loss is reversed, with the amount of the reversal recognized in profit or loss. -
However, any subsequent recovery in the fair value of an impaired AFS equity security is
- recognized in other comprehensive income.

Non-financial Assets. Non-financial assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be
recoverable. If any such indication exists and where the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its recoverable amount, the agset or cash-generating unit is written down to its
recoverable amount. ‘




The estimated recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less cost of
disposal and value in use. The fair valie less cost of disposal is the amount obtainable
from the sale of an asset in an arm’s length transaction less the cost of disposal while
value in use is the present value of estimated future cash flows expected to arise from the
continuing use of an asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. For an asset that does not generate largely independent cash
inflows, the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs. Impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss.

Recovery of impairment losses recognized in prior years is recorded when there is an
indication that the impairment losses recognized for the asset no longer exist or have
decreased. The recovery is recorded in profit or loss. However, the increase in carrying
amount of an asset due to a recovery of an impairment loss is recognized to the extent
that it does not exceed the carrymg amount that would have been determined (net of
depreciation and amortization) had no impairment loss been recognized for that asset in
prior years,

Equity

Capital Stock and Additional Paid-in Capital. Capital stock and capital in excess of par
value are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of shares
are recognized as a deduction from equity, net of any tax effect, When shares are sold a
premium, the difference between the proceeds and the par value is credited to
« A dditional Paid-in Capital” account.

Ret&inea’ Earnings. Retained earnings includes cumulative balance of periodic profit/loss
and reduced by dividends, if any, on capital stock. Dividends on capital stock are
deducted from equity when they are declared by the Company’s stockholders. -

Retained earnings may also include prior year adjustments and the effect of changes in
accounting policies as may be required by the standards’ transitional provisions.

Operating Segments
The Group’s operating segments are organized and managed separately according to the

nature of the products and services provided, with each segment representing a strategic
business unit that offers different products/services and serves different markets.
Financial information on operating segments is presented in Note 4 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The measurement policies the Group uses for segment reporting under PFRS 8 are the

same as those used in its consolidated fanc statements. There have been no changes

‘from prior periods in the measurement methods used to determine reported segment

profit or loss.

~The Group’s Executivé Committee regularly reviews the operating results of its business

units separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and
performance assessment. Financial information on business segments is presented in
Note 4. ‘




Revenue and Cost Recognition .

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group, the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have
passed to the buyer and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably. Revenue is
measured by reference to the fair yalue of consideration received or receivable by the
Group for goods supplied and services provided, excluding value-added tax (VAT) and
discounts. .

Real Estate Sales - Revenue from the sale of real estate is recognized to the extent that it
is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group, the significant risks and
rewards of ownership of the goods have passed to the buyer and the amount of revenue .
can be measured reliably.

Real estate sales are generally accounted for under the full accrual method, Under this
method, revenue from the sale of real estate, including installment sales, is recognized
when: (a) the collectability of the sales price is reasomably assured; (b) the earnings
process is virtnally complete; and (c) the seller does not have a substantial continuing
involvement or obligations with the subject properties.

The collectability of the sales price is considered reasonably assured when a substantial
portion of the contract price is receiv :d and continuing payment is made by the buyer
giving the buyer 2 substantial stake in the property sufficient to motivate the buyer to

- fulfill its purchase commitment.

If the above criteria are not met, the deposit method is applied until all the conditions for
recording a sale are met. Pending recognition of sale, cash received from buyers are
presented under the “Customers’ deposits” under the “Accounts payable and accrued
expenses” account in the consolidated statements of financial position.

Sale of Services. Revenue is recognized when the performance of contractually. agreed
procedures have been rendered. Revenues from clinic services are shared proportionately
as agreed upon by the Group and the doctors and physicians.

Sale of Goods. Revenue is reCanized when the title to inventories passes to the buyer.

Interest - Income is recognized as the interest accrues, taking into account the effective
yield on the asset. :

Dividend - Income is recognized when the Group’s right to receive the -payment is
established.

* Rental Incbme - Tncome is recognized by the Group on a straight-line basis over the lease

{erm.

Cost and expenses are recognized in profit or loss upon receipt of goods or, utilization of
the service, consumption of goods or at the date these are incurred.

Operating Lease -
Group as Lessor. Leases where the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and

benefits of ownership of the assets are classified as operating leases. Rent income from
operating leases is recognized as income on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Initial divect costs incurred in negotiating an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset and recognized as an expense over the lease term on the same
basis as rent income. Contingent rents are reco ized as income in the period in which
they are earned. .




Group as Lessee. Leases which do not transfer to the Group substantially all the risks
and benefits of ownership of the asset are classified as operating leases. Opeérating lease
payments aré recognized as an €xXpense in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
lease term. Associated costs cuch as maintenance and msurance are expensed as
incurred.

Business Combination , :

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method of accounting as at
the acquisition date, which is the date on which control is transferred to the Group.
Control is the power to goveln the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to
obtain benefits from ifs activities. In assessing control, the Group takes into consideration

potential voting rights that currently are exercisable.

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is initially measured at cost being- the
excess of the cost a business combination over the Group’s interest in the net fair value of
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities. Following initial recognition,
goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment Josses. Goodwill is
reviewed for impairment apnually, or more frequently, if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.

Goodwill acquired in 2 business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated fo
each of the cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating units that are expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or
Jiabilities are assigned to those units or groups of units. Fach unit or group of units to
which the goodwill is so allocated: :

= represents the lJowest level within the Group at which the goodwill is monitored for
 internal management purposes; and

» i not larger than an operating segment determined in accordance with PFRS 8.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
upit or group of cash-generating units, to which the goodwill relates. Where the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit or group of cash-generating units is less
than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognized. Where poodwill forms part
of a cash-generating unit or group of cash-generating units and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is
included in the carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on
disposal of the operation. Goodwill disposed of in this circumstance is measured based
on the relative vatues of the operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating
unit retained. An impairment 1oss with respect to goodwill is not reversed.

Negative goodwill which is the excess of the Group’s interest in the net fair value of
acquired identifiable assets, Yiabilities and contingent liabilities over cost is credited
directly to profit or loss. ‘

Noncontrolling Interests

The acquisitions of noncontrolling interests are accounted for as transactions with owners
in their capacity as OWDers and therefore no goodwill is recognized as a result of such
transactions. Any difference between the purchase price and the pet assets of acquired
entity is recognized in equity. The adjustments to noncontrolling interests are based on a
proportionate amount of the net assets of the subsidiary.



Transactions that result in changes in ownership interests while retaining control are

accounted for as transactions with equity holders in their capacity as equity holders. No-

gain or loss on such changes is recognized in profit or loss; instead, it is recognized in
equity. Also no change in the carrying amounts of assets (including goodwill) or
Habilities is recognized as a result of such transactions.

Foreign Cutrency Transactions and Translations

The Group’s consolidated financial staternents are presented in Philippine peso, which is
also the Parent Company’s functional currency. Transactions in foreign currencies are
initially recorded using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets
and liabilities deneminated in foreign currencies are restated at the functional-currency
rate of exchange at reporting date. All differences are taken 10 profit or loss.
Nonmonetary items that are measured in terms of Tistorical cost in a foreign currency aré
translated using the exchange rates as at the dates of the initial transactions.
Nonmonetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined. Foreign currency gains
and losses are recognized on 2 net basis in profit or loss.

Defined Benefit Plan ‘

The Group has an umfinded retirement liability based on the provisions of Republic Act
(R.A) No. 7641, The Philippine Retirement Law, covering gubstantially all of its
employees. The Group’s net obligation in respect of the defined benefit plan is calculated
by estimating the amount of the future benefit that employees have earned in the current

and prior periods, discounting that amount and deducting the fair value of any plan
assets.

The calculation of defined benefit obligation i performed on a periodic basis by a
qualified actuary using the projected unit oredit method. When the calculation results in
a potential asset for the Group, the recognized asset is limited to the present value of
economic benefits available in the form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions
in future contributions to the plan.

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit lability, which comprise actuarial gains and
josses are recoguized immediately in other comprehensive income. The Group
determines the net interest expenso (income) on the net defined benefit lizbility for the
period by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the
beginning of the annual period to the then pet defined benefit lizbility, taking into
account any changes in the net defined Hability during the period as a result of
contributions and benefit payments. Net interest expense and other expenses related to
the defined benefit plan are recogized in profit or loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change
in benefit that relates t0 past service of the gain or loss on curtailment is recognized
immediately in profit or loss.

The Group recognizes gains and losses on the settlement of a defined benefit plan when
the settlement occurs.

Share-based Payments

The Parent Company grants share-based payments to the qualified directors and
gxecutive officers of the Group. These transactions are accounted for as equity settled
share-based payments.



Income Taxes ' _ .
Tncome tax expense comprises of current and deferred tax. Current and deferred tax are
recognized in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly
to equity or in other comprehensive income. :

Current Tax. Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to the faxation anthorities. The tax rates used to compute the
amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted at reporting date.

Deferred Tax. Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between
the carrying amount of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
amounts used for taxation purposes.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carryforward
benefits of unused tax credits - Minimum Corporate Income Tax (MCIT) and unused tax
losses - Net Operating Loss Carry Over (NOLCO), to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and
the carryforward benefits of MCIT and NOLCO can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced
to the extent that it is nolonger probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets
are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become
probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply
in the year when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at reporting date. Deferred tax assets and deferred
tax liabilities are offset, if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and they relate to income taxes ievied by the same tax
- authority.

Value-added Tax (VAT). Revenues, eXpenses and assets are recognized net of the amount
of VAT, except:

«  where the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the
taxation authority, in which case the tax is recognized as part of the cost of
acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item as applicable; and

s receivables and payables that are stated with the amount of tax included.

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included
as part of receivables or payables in the statements of financial position.

Related Parties '

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability, directly or indirectly, to
control the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making
financial and operating decisions. Parties are also considered to be related if they are
subject to common control or common significant influence. Related parties may be
individuals or corporate entities.




Provisions .

Provisions are recognized only when the Group has: (a) a present obligation
(legal or constructive) as a result of past event; (b) it is probable (i.e., more likely than
not) that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation; and (c) & reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. i
the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by
discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rafe that reflects current market

assessment of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the

ligbility. Where discounting is nsed, the increase in the provision due to the passage of '

time is recognized as interest expense. Where the Group expects 2 provision to be
reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset but only when the receipt
of the reimbursement is virtually certain.

Contingencies

Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the financial statements. They are disclosed

unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote.
Contingent assets are not recognized in the consolidated financial statements but are
disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial statements when an inflow of
economic benefits is probable.

Barnings Per Share _
Earnings per share is computed by dividing net income or loss for the period attributable

* to ordinary equity holders of the Parent Company by the weighted average number of

common shares oufstanding: during the year, afier retroactive adjustment for stock
dividend declared in the current year, if any. '

The Group has no dilutive potential common shares outstanding that would require
disclosure of diluted earnings per share in the consolidated statements of comprehensive
income.

" Bvents After the Reporting Date -

Post year-end events that provide additional information about the Group’s position at
the end of reporting date (adjusting events) are reflected in the consolidated financial
statements. Post year-end events that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes
to the consolidated financial statements when material.

4. Operating Segments

Business Segments .

For management purposes, the Group is organized info three major business segments,
namely real estate, healthcare services and investment holdings. These are also the basis.
of the Group in reporting its primary segment information.

(2) The real estate segnient involves acquisition of land, planning and developing
residential communities such as development and sale of condominium units and
parking slots, residential lots and housing units.

(b) Healthcare services is involved in delivering outpatient health care service through
ambulatory care centers. This includes the sale of goods and services.

(c) The investment holding creates project investments and later disposes these

investments after creating value. This also includes acquisition and sale of equity
securities. Included in this segment are the Group’s transactions on investments in
associates and trading of financial assets at fair value through profit and loss.



T

Segment Assets and Liabilities

Segment assets include all operating assets used by a segment and consist principally of
cash, installment contract receivables, trade receivables, inventories, property and
equipment and investment properties. Segment liabilities include all operating liabilities
and consist principally of accounts payable and accrued expenses and due to related
parties.

Geographical Areas
The Groups’ real estate and healthcare services business segments are located in the

Philippines.

Major Customer
The Group does not have a single external customer from which sales revenue generated
amounted to 10% or more of the total revenues of the Group.

The following tables present revenue and profit information regarding business segments
of the Group for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 and 2013 and certain
assets and liability information regarding industry segments at December 31, 2015, 2014

~and 2013 (in thousands).
Year Ended December 31, 2015
Henlthcare Investment
-~ Resl Estate Services Holdings _ Elimination Total
‘REVENUES ) »
External revenue P151,445 P46,489 P541 p - P198,475
Interseginent revenue - - 541 (P6,783) (6,783)
P151,445 P46,489 P541 (P6,783) 191,962
RESULTS '
Segment results P19,440 PI01 P874) P310 P19,777
Interest income . 2,602 16 - - 2,618
Change in fair value of financial assels )
atFVPL | (2,708) - - - (2,708)
Income tax expense (6,163) (1,226) .- - (7,389)
Net Income " P13,171 (P309) (P874) P310 $12,298
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Segment assets P2,178,671 P33,690 199,468 (P398,256) P1,917,094
Intangible assels . - - 21,741 - 21,741
Toial Assets P2,178,671 P33,690  P121,209 (P398,256)  P1,938,835
Segment Liabitities P213,821 P17,031 P78,962 (P124,116) 205,698
OTHER SEGMENT INF ORMATION
Depreciation and amortization P11,473 P1,772 P1,059 r - 114,304
Capital expenditure in property and
cquipraent ) 5,777 790 - - 6,567
Capital expenditure in investment
property ‘ 13,640 - - - 13,640

Investment and advances in a joint . i
venture - net 569,753 - 17,843 (353,158) 234,438




Year Bnded December 31, 2014

- Healincare  Investment -
) - Real Estate Services Holdings  Elimination Total
REVENUES )
External revenue P142,687 P52,364 P - P - P195,051
Intersepment revenuc 8,843 - - (8,843) -
P151,530 P52,364 P - (P8,843) P195,051
RESULTS . : :
Segment results : P32,983 (P4384)  (P4,733) P4,486 P28,352
Interest income - - 1,402 - 1,402
Change in fair value of financial assets
at FVPL ’ - - 836 - 836
Income tax expense - - - - (10,161)
Net Inoome P32,983 (P4,384)  (P2,495) P4,486 P20,429
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Segment assets P2,147,972 P36,437 P95,854 {P362,032) P1,918,231
Intangible assets - - 21,741 - 21,741
Total Assels P2,147,972 P36,437 P117,595 (P362,032) P1,939,972
Segment Liabilities P237,021 P15,002 P78,962 (P120,059) P210,926
OTHER SEGMENT INFORMATION '
Depreciation and amortization P9.986 P5.263 P - P - P15,249
Capital expenditure in property and
equipment 6,323 969 . - 7,292
Capital expenditure in investment
property 1,209 - - - 1,209
Tnvestment and advances in  joint :
venture -net 569,753 - 17,843 (353,158) 234,438
Vear Ended December 31,2013
Healthcare  Investment
Real Bstate - Services Holdings __Elimination Total
REVENUES :
External revenue P75,489 P56,543 P - P - P132,032
Intersegment revenue 14,324 - - (14,324) -
PEo813  PS6543 P - (P14,324)  P132,032
RESULTS '
Segment results (P6,021) (®2,778)  (PL754) P19,366 P7,813
Interest income - - 2,690 - 2,690
Change in fair value of financial assets
at FVPL : - - (4,245) - (4,245)
Income tax expense - - - - (3,889)
Net Income P6,021) ®2,778) (P4,309) (P19,366) P39,606
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Segment assels P2,924,551 P210,856 - P111,996 (P1,381,295) P 1,866,108
Intangible assets - - 21,741 - 21,741
Total Assets P2,924 351 P210,856 P133,737 (Pl ,381,205) PL 887,849
Sepment Liabilities P647,771 P235,899  P141,687 (P829,616) P195,741
OTHER SEGMENT BNFORMATION _ '
Depreciation and amortization P10,233 P5,401 P - P - P15,634
Capital expenditure in property and
equipment ) 174 1,058 - - 1,832
Capital expenditure in investment
propetty ) 2,381 - - - 2,381
Investment and advances in a joint
venture - net 1,349,182 145,751 56,835 (1,317,330)

234,438




5, Noncontrolling Interests

The following table summatiz
subsidiaries that has NCI, before any intra-

es the information relating to each of the Group’s

group elimination.

D ber 31, 2015

Iniva-group
HSAPL TMCMI CCPC PLHI Eliminati Total
_NClpercentage 3% 3% 52% 25%
Current assels P110,399 £20,996,365 P197,549,57% P147,068
‘Noncurrent assels 99,357 454 12,693,872 22,863,032 277,518,000
Curront liabilities (78,962,328) (12,578,431} (50,284,362) 6,834,331}
Noncurent linbilities - (4.452,471) - -
Nt assets (liabilities) 20,505,525 16,659,336 170,128,248 270,830,738
Share in net assets (iabilities) 615,166 499,780 88,456,63§ 68,037,841
Additional capilalization - - - 841,626
Carrying smount of NCI 615,166 499,780 88,466,689 68,879,467 (P409,780) P157,961,322
Revenue 541,108 46,488,828 39,579,558 -
Net income {Joss) (873,301) (309,587) 11,642,151 (295,203)
Othier comprehensive income 104,018 104,018 - -
Tota) comprehensive
income (loss) (873,301) (309,587 11,642,150 (295,203)
. Profitaliocated fo NCL (26,199) (9,'288) 6,053,919 {73,801) ’ 9,288 5,053,919
Other comprehensive income
allocated to NCI 3,121 3,121 - - (3,121) 3,121
Cash flows from operating '
aclivities 467,15% 2,222,012 22,252,926 (398,391)
Cash flows from invesling
activities (83,000) 1,221,237) (22,758) -
Cash fiows from financing
getivities (384,001) 273,561 (21,430,337) 398,391
_ Net lncrense in cash and
cash equivalents P51 P1,274,336 P799,830 P -
December 31,2014
Intra-group
HSAPT FMCMI CcCeC PLHI Elimination Total
NCI percentage 3% 3% 52% 25%
Current assets P82,368 P19,958,179 P200,757,713 143,880
‘Noncurrent assels 100,258,786 16,478,931 24,631,872 277,518,000
Current Hebilities (78.962,328) (15,002,031) (66,673,150) (6,547,428)
N rent linbilities - {4,570,175) - -
Net assels (liabilities) 21,378,826 16,864,904 158,716,435 271,014,452
Share in net assets (lizbilities) 4,301,815 478,963 82,217,491 67,936,571
Additional capitalization - - - {2,451,595)
Carrying smount of NCI 4,301,815 478,963 82,217,491 65,484,976 (P478,963) P152,004,282
Revenuo ) - 52,126,554 22,705,262 -
Nt income (1955) (4,708,583) (4,487,122) 3,397,221 {405,078)
Other comprehensive i 674,872 674,872 - -
Total comprehensive
income {loss) (4,033,711) (3,812,250) 3,397,221 (405,078)
Profit allocated 1o NCI (133,723) (108,268) 1,766,555 (101,270) 108,268 1,531,562
Other comprehensive income
allocated to NCI (174,691) (174,691) - - 174,691 (174,691)
Cash:flows from operating
actvitics 24,763 2,222,012 23,798,312 {405,078)
Cash flows from investing
activities - (1,221,237) (982) -
Cash flows from financing
activilies - 273,561 (31,540,184) 405,078
el increase in cash and cash
equivalents P24,763 P1,274,336 (P7,742,854) P -




December 31, 2013

~ Inira-group
HSAPI FMCMI CCPC PLHI Eliminotion Tolal -
NCi porcentage 26% 26% 52% 25%
Current assets P57,605 . P18,798,139 P227,627,283 P43,880
Noncurrent assels 111,241,722 43,365,123 26,128,806 27151 8,000
Current liabilities (128,716,104) (149,776,467) (98,436,974) {6,142,350)
‘Noncurrent Jiabilitics (12,500,000) 4,431,229) - -
Net assets (liabilities) (29,916,777) (52,044,434) 155,319,215 271,419,530
Share in net asseis (liabilities) (1,558,914) (23,925,797) 80,450,936 68,037,84 lv
Additional capitalization - - - 2,451,595 .
Camying amount of NCI (7,558,914) (23,925,797) 80,450,936 70,489,436  P23,525,797 P143,381,458
Revenue - 56,758,592 32,419,386 -
Net income (loss) (3,319,584) (3,312,920) 6,906,737 (307,936)
Other comprehensive income 837,036 837,036 - -
Total comprehensive
income {loss) (2,482,548) (2,475,884) 6,906,737 (307,936)
Profit alipcated to NCI ’ (863,092) (861,359) 3,591,504 (76,984) 861,359 2,651,428
Other comprehensive income
aliocated 1o NCI 217,629 217,629 - - (217,629) 217,629
Cash flows from oporating
activities {6,664) 1,680,225 13,519,460 (307,936)
Cash flows from investing
activities 6,779 (1,058,479) (12,583) -
Cash flows from financing .
aclivities - (6,780) {4,500.000) 307,936
Net increase in cash and cash
equivalents PI15S PG14,966 - P9,000,877 P -
6. Cash and Cash Equivalents
This account consists of:
Note 2015 2014
Cash on hand P58.497 P71,500
Cash in banks 51,651,792 106,589,544
Short-term investments 152,300,600 95,950,000

32,33 P204,010,289  P202,611,044

Cash in banks earn interest based on daily bank deposit rates, Shori-term investments are
made for varying periods of between 30 to 35 days and eamn effective annual inferest
ranging from 0.45 to 1.52% in 2015, 0.75 to 0.88% in 2014, and 1.0% to 1.7% in 2013.
Total interest earned on cash in banks and short-term investments in 2015, 2014, and
2013 amounted to P2,617,929, P1,420,044 and P2,690,259 respectively (Note 26).

7. Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

This account consists of marketable equity and debt securities. The equity securities are
listed and traded in the PSE, while the debt securities are government instruments. The
fair value of the marketable equity securities amounted to P29,084,854 and P19,676,939
as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. The fair value of the debt securities
amounted to P2,866,778 and P2,761,702 as at December 31, 2015 and 2014,
respectively. The fair values have been determined based on closing bid prices at
reporting date.



The Group recognized an increase (decrease) of (P2,708,098), P836,415 and
(P4,245,311) in fair value of these financial assets in 2015 2014, and 2013, respectively -
(Note 26). Actual gains realized from the sale of these securities amounted to
P2,383,973, P1,159,554, and P5,898,813, in 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively
(Note 26)..

8. Available-for-Sale Financial Asset

The available-for-sale financial asset consists of the Parent Company’s investment in the
unquoted shares of stock of Asian Alliance Holdings & Development Corp. (AAHDC).

Tn 2014, the Company bought additional shares of stock of AAHDC from Asian Alliance
Investment Corporation, a wholly owned subsidiary of AAHDC, for 16,594,150 to be
paid from the future dividends from AAHDC. The outstanding balance on the said
iransaction was presented under ‘Accounts and other payables’ in the consolidated
statement of financial position. - '

Dividend income from AAHDC amounted to P7,200,371 in 2014,

The 2014 balance was reclassified from current assets 1o noncurrent assets to conform
with the 2015 presentation, Management does not have any plans to sell or dispose the
shares twelve months after December 31, 2015.

¢, Instaliment Contract Receivables

Tnstallment contract receivables pertain to real estate sales. These are collectible in
various installment periods between 1 to 12 years and earn inferest per annum based on
contract. Interest income earned in 2015, 2014, and 2013 amounted to P14,485,829,
P8,149,438, and P9,581,365, respectively.

The breakdown of installment confract receivables by contractual maturity dates follows:

Note 2015 2014
Due in one year or less P17,829,446 P17,864,864
Due after one year : 52,213,080 50,630,188

32,33 P70,042,552 P68,495,052

Impairment losses on instaliment contract receivables amounted to P2,869,901 in 2015.




10, Accounts Receivables

This account consists oft

Note 2015 2014

Due from project developets 28 24,207,082 P10,903,642
Receivables on patient services 19,728,284 18,598,332
Receivables from buyers ' 3,843,843 4,232,679
Rent receivables 2,480,199 4,089,080
Interest receivables 1,536,419 114,840
Receivable from Guild Securities, Inc. (GSD 2] 43,010 18,760
Others ‘ 4,393,284 4,276,400
56,232,121 42,233,733

Less allowance for impairment . 10,555,243 10,555,243
32 33  P45,676,878  P31,678,490

Receivables on patient services are normally due within 30 to 60 days, unsecured and do

not bear any interest. The aging of trade receivables follow:

2015 2014
Gross Gross
Amount Impairment Amount  Impairment
Current P10,401,259 P - 72,590,906 P -
Past due 1-120 days 1,071,445 - 3,742,045 -
More than 120 days 8,255,580 10,183,116 12,265,381 - 10;183,116
' P10,183,116 P18,598,332 P10,1 83,116

P19,728,284

Due from project developers relate to collections of instafllment contract receivables
which are not yet remitted to the Group by the project developers (Note 28).

Receivable from real estate buyers include among others the real property taxes paid by

the Company chargeable to the buyers.

Others consist of receivable from employees, contractors and suppliers.

11. Toventories

Tnventories are stated at cost and consist oft

2015 2014
Real Estate
Houses and lots P159,540,601 P177,269,653
Condominium units and patking slots 25,760,240 217,925,666
Healthcare
Medical supplies 1,188,540 1,436,683
P186,489,381 P206,632,002




Certain houseé and lots pertain to units in Palma Real Residential Estates under a joint
operation arrangement with Sta. Lucia Realty and Development, Inc. (SLRDT) (Note 28).
The movements in houses and lots inventories follow:

Note 2015 2014
Balance at beginning of year P177,269,653 P178,918,468
Recovery from cancelled contracts 1,055,350 1,239,526
Construction costs -19,276,267 14,269,429
197,601,270 194,427,423
Cost of houses and lots sold 23 (38,060,669) (17,157,770)
Balance at end of year P159,540,601 P177,269,653

Condominium units and parking slots pertain to the units in the Cypress Towers Project
under a joint operation arrangement with D.M. Consunji, Inc. (DMCI) (Note 28). The
movements in condominium units and parking slots follow:

, Note 2015 : 2014

Balance at beginning of year - ~ P27,925,666 P26,586,207

~ Additional rectification costs - 696,093 109,024
Recovery from cancelled accounts - 4,870,272

28,621,759 31,565,503
Cost of condominium units and parking
slots sold 23 (2.861,519) (3,639,837)

Balance at end of year P25,760,240  P27,925,666

Medical supplies charged to cost of services amounted to P6,557,176, P7.440,698 and
P8,199,465 in 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively (Note 23). :

12. Loans Receivable

a) On July 3, 2013; the Parent Company entered into a Loan and Security Agreement
(the “Agreement”) with Platinum 168, Inc. (the “Borrower”), wherein the former
granted a loan facility to the latter amounting to P50,000,000 for the purpose of
working capital and to refinance the existing loan of amother party (the .“Loan
Beneficiary”) with a bank. A full drawdown on the loan facility was made in 2014.
The interest rate is 10% on the first year and 11% on the succeeding years, The loan
shall have & term of seven (7) years inclusive of two (2) years grace period on the
principal from drawdown date, payable in sixty (60) consecutive monthly principal
installments commencing on the third year after the drawdown date. The loan is fully -
secured by the Borrower’s teal estate and other properties. Interest income earned
from the loan amounted to P6,075,090, P5,843,127 and P1,998,194 in 2015, 2014
and 2013, respectively.

As a precondition for the grant of the loan and security for the payment thereof, the
Borrower grants the Parent Company an option to convert the loan into the common
shares of stock of the Loan Beneficiary based on a strike price provided in the
Agreement.

The Parent Company can exercise the option anytime within seven years
commencing from the drawdown date as defined in the Agreement.




b) OnT uly 14, 2015, the Parent Company entered info 2 Exchangéable Loan Agreement

(the “Exchangeable Agreement”) with Premiere Alliance Corporation (“Alliance™),
wherein the former granted an unsecured loan facility to the latter amounting 10
P10,000,000 for the purpose of acquisitions and expansion projects. A full drawdown
_on the loan facility was made during the year. The loan has an annual interest rate of
8% and a term of three (3) years from the date of drawdown. Interest income earned

from the loan amounted to P428,889 in 2015.

The loan has exchangeable future which can be converted into the common shares of
stock at an exchange price of One peso (P1.00) per shares based on the Exchangeable
Agreement. :

13, Investmeht in and Advances fo a Joint Venture

This account consists of investment and advances in SLPL:

Investment ' ' P100,000,000

- Accumulated equity in net Josses (100,000,000)
Advances o | 1,436,026
- Deposits for future stock subscriptions 233,002,530
P234,438,556

¥The fair value of the investment of the property is based on the unandited financial statements of SLPL

The breakdown of the Group’s advances to joint venture and ‘deposits for future stock
subscriptions follows: ‘

Allowance for
. Amount Impairment Net Amount
Advances : P1,436,026 P - P1,436,026
Deposits for future stock
subscription 317,688,141 (84,685,611) 233,002,530

319,124,167  (P84,685,611) P234,438,556

SLPI holds a substantial investment property. The recoverability of the investment
property with fair value of PO64,843,000% and P750,433,600 as at December 31,2015
and 2014, respectively, is dependent upon the ability of SLPI 1o successfully execute and
implement its projects and, ultimately, to attain profitable operations. The joint venture
measures its investment property using fair value method. In applying uniformity of
accounting policy, the Group did not recognize its share in net income of the joint
yenture since it arises from the increase in fair value of investment property.

The accumulated unabsorbed net income of the joint venture amounted to P86,497,918
P20,115,660 as at December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. This pertains to the
changes in fair value of the investment property, net of tax. Therefore, to be consistent
with Group policy of carrying the investment property at cost, the Company does not
recognize the changes in FV of the investment property.



The following summarizés the financial position and financial performance of the jo{nt

venture:
2015* 2014%#
Percentage ownership 50%
Current assets P4,504,000 P3,327,204
Noncurrent assets 964,843,000 750,433,600
Current liabilities 131,641,918 113,143,058
Noncurrent liabilities 749,026,646 684,703,826
Net assets (liabilities) P88,678,436 (P44,086,080)
Increase in fair value of investment property 214,410,900 P1,093
Income tax 64,323,120 - (219)
Income (loss) or fotal comprehensive income (loss) 141,316,241 (6,792,682)
Total comprehensive income (loss) 141,316,241 (P6,792,682)
_Group’s share in total comprehensive income '
(loss) P75,043,890 (P3,396,341)
- *ynaudited
**audited

The following summarizes the reconciliation of carrying amount of interest in joint

venture to carrying value:

2015 2014
Net liabilities P88,678,436  (P44,086,080)
Subscription receivable 84,317,400 84,317,400
Adjusted net assets - 172,995,836 40,231,320
Multiply by share in net assets . 50% 50%
Share in adjusted net assets 86,497,918 20,115,660
Unabsorbed net income (86,497,918) (20,115,660)
Carrying value of interest in joint venture ‘ P - P -

14, Goodwill

The goodwill is attributed to the Group’s acquisition of control over HSAPI and FMCML
Based on management’s assessment of the goodwill, it is not impaired since the
recoverable amount of the related net assets of HSAPT and FMCMI for which the
goodwill was attributed still exceeds its carrying amount, including goodwill, as at

December 31, 2015 and 2014.

The recoverable amount of goodwill has been determined based on a valuation using
cash flow projections covering a five-year period based on fong range plans approved by
management, Cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using a constant
growth rate determined per individual cash-generating unit, This growth rate is consistent
with the long-term average growth rate for the industry. The discount rate applied to after
tax cash flow projections is 8% in 2015 and 2014, The discount rate also imputes the risk
of the cash-generating units compared to the respective risk of the overall market and

equity risk premium,
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16. Investment Properties

The Group’s investment properties pertain to several parcels of land located in Taguig,
Batangas and Bulacan and a commercial space in Cypress Towers which are held for
future development. E

The fair values of thé parcels of land are as follows:

Location Appraisal Date . Fair Value
Taguig City, Metro Manila ‘ January 5, 2015 . P569,475,000
Sto. Tomas, Batangas January 5, 2015 © #257,906,700
San Jose del Monte, Bulacan January 5, 2015 323,140,000

*hyclisive of the parcel of land sold in 2015 for P20,189,555 million.

As at December 31, 2015 and 2014, the Group’s fair value of investment properties is
categorized under Level 3.

Aggregate fair value of the investment properties based on the selling prices of
comparable assets in the area as well as based on the appraisal values of the parcels of
land, as determined by an independent appraiser with relevant professional qualification

and has recent experience in the location and cafegory is P1,150.5 million as ai
December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

The Group uses the cost model in determining the valuation of investment properties.
The cost of the property consists of the purchase price, commissions, taxes, licenses, and
other directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to ifs intended purpose. The
movement in the carrying amount of investment properties and land held for future
development is shown below:

Note . 2018 2014
Cost '
Balance at beginning of year P769,796,991 P801,375,211
Additions and capitalized expenditures 13,640,140 1,209,170
Disposal 23 (20,189,556) (30,068,340)
Write-off . - +(2,719,050)
Balance at end of year - 763,247,575 769,796,991
Allowance for Tmpairment (63,783,573) (63,783,573)
Accumulated Depreciation
Balance at beginning of year (2,489,950) (1,814,609)
Depreciation for the year 24 {1,560,230) (675,341)
Balance at end of year . (4,050,180) (2,489,950}

P69SA13,822  P703,523,468

Impairment loss recognized in 2014 amounted to P2,197,072 (Note 26).

The unpaid balance on the acquisition of land of P16,851,530 as at December 31, 2015
and 2014, is included in “Accounts payable” under the “Accounts payable and accrued
expenses” account in the consolidated statements of financial position (Note 18). The
liability is non-interest bearing and payable upon issuance of new titles by Register of
Deeds. As at December 31, 7015 and 2014, some of the parcels of land are still in the
process of being titled in the name of the respective subsidiaries.




The investment property subject to depreciation pertains to the cost of building own by
HSAPL The building was previously owned by FMCMI -and was ‘transferred to' the
Company on December 29, 2014 as a settlement on FMCMUI’s return of capital approved

by SEC amounting to P22,963,937.

17. Other Current and Noncurrent Assets

Other current assets consist of:

2015 2014

Input VAT P35,560,176 P38,201,015
Prepaid taxes 15,717,930 12,539,739
Prepaid commission 3,560,176 2,059,842
Refundable deposits 591,934 1,024,110
Prepaid insurance 868,680 860,880
Construction bond 161,900 141,900
Others 399,444 588,868
P56,860,240 P55,416,354

Tnput VAT arises from the purchase of investment property,

other purchases of goods and services.

prior year excess tax credits.

Other noncurrent assets consist of:

consfruction costs and of

Prepaid taxes pertain to prepaid real property taxes, creditable withholdings taxes and

2015 2014
Tnvestment in a business venture P2,927,567 P4,442,867
Refundable deposits i 1,640,693 1,222,956
Input VAT - net of current portion 1,353,620 1,888,204
Others 1,108,165 573,580

P7,030,045 P8,127,607

18. Accounts and Other Payables

This account consists of:

Note _ 2015 2014
Accounts payable 16  P61,375,368 P65,719,286
Customers’ deposits 30,133,756 36,164,778
Accrued expenses 23,855,082 21,937,776
Payable to government agencies 4,953,306 4,093,731
Deposits fot document processing 8,476,598 8,476,598
Due to GCV management 6,012,633 6,012,633
Payable to officers and employees 608,579 549,386
32,33 P135415,322 P142,954,188

Accounts payable is non-interest bearing and normally have a 30 to 60-day terms.



Customers’ deposits represent the Group’s 'acpumulated collections from unrecognized
sales under the full accrual method.

Accrued expenses consist mainly of accrued physician’s fees, commission payable and
accruals for titling and registration of land.

19. Subscriptions Payable

As. at December 31, 2015 and 2014, subscriptions payable amounting to P42,158,700
refers to the unpaid subscription-of the Parent Company to SLPL, 2 joint venture.

20. Capital Stock

This account consists of:

. 2015 - 2014

Number of Shares: Amount___Number of Shares. - - - Amount
Common Stock
Authorized - P0.10 par value 24,000,000,000 P2,400,000,000 24,000,000,000 P2,4000,000,000
Subscxived and Paid-up «
Subseribed 18,415,232,430 P1,841,523,243 18,415,232,430 P1,841,523,243
Subscriplions receiveble (119,640,500) (11,964,090) (148,889,800) - (14,888,980}
Treasury stocks {4,815,232,470) (481,523, 47) . (4,815,232.470) (481,523,247)

13,480,359,060  P1,348,035,900 13451,110,160  P1,345,110,016

21. Related Party Transactions

Other than those disclosed in Notes 10, 13, 14 and 19, the Group’s significant
transactions and balances with related parties as of and for the years ended December 31,
2015 and 2014, respectively, are as follows: '

Amount Pue from Due to
' of the Related Related
Catepory/Transaction Year Nofe Transaction Parties Partics Terms Conditions
Under Common Control ’
Solid Shares Holdings, Inc.
(SSHD :
Expense reimbursements 20815 a P - P - p15,114,650  Non-interest Unsecured
and financing 2014 a - - 25,714,650  bearing; payable
: upon demand
Greenfield Development
Corp.
Expense reimbursements 2015 - R 98,237 Non-interest Unsecured
2014 : - - 98,237  bearing; payable
. ‘ upon demand
. Stockholder
Guild Securities, Tne, (GST) ‘
Comrmissions and 2015 b 52,292 43,010 - Non-interest - Unsecured;
receivables 2014 b 51,567 18,760 - bearing; payeble  no impairment
upon demand
2015 P52,292 P43,000  P15,212,887
2014 P51,567 PI8760  P25.812,887

a. Payable to SSHI consists of financing for the acquisition and development of the land
in Bifian, Laguna and expense reimbursements of CCPC.




b. GSL a stockholder, is also the Parent Company’s broker
assets at FVPL. In 2015, 2014, and 2013, commissions ch

in its trading of financial
arged by GSI amounted to

P52,292, P51,567, and P18,760, respectively. The said commission is included in the

other operating expenses of the Company

c. Salaries. and other benefits given to key management personnel

(Note 24).

Pg,138,211 and P7,765,637 in 2015 and 2014, respectively.

‘amounted o

27. Real Estate Sales

This account consists of:

2015 2014 2013
Sale of houses and lots P114,059,791 P105,271,753 P32,025,145
Sale of condominium units and
parking slots 2,868,274 10,835,893 23,647,678
P116,968,065 Pl 16,107,646 P55,672,823
23, Cost of Sales
This account consists of:
g 2015 2014 2013
Cost of real estate sales P61,111,744 P50,865,947 P26,254,053
Cost of services. 18,774,729 22,542,027 24,524,534
Cost of goods sold 179,040 258,435 340,904
P80,065,513 P73,666,409 P51,119,491
Cost of real estate sales consists of:
: Noy)ti_ev 2015 2014 2013
Cost of houses and lots
sold 11 P38,060,669 P17,157,770 P17,921,397
Cost of condominium
units and parking slots
sold 11 2,861,519 3,639,837 8,332,656
Cost of Batangas
property sold 16 20,189,556 30,068,340 -
P61,111,744 P50,865,947 P26,254,053




Cost of services consists of:

, Note 2015 2014 2013
Salaries and employee ‘ ‘ :

benefits A 25 P6,910,713 P8,837,237 P9,459,844
Medical supplies 11 6,577,176 7,440,698 8,199,465
Depreciation 15 2,068,110 2,288,194 2,321,580
Outside services : . §75,845 - -
Others 2,542,883 3,975,898 4,543,645

P18,774,729 P22,542,027 P24,524,534

Others mainly consist of utilities and on site medical cost and various expenses that are
individually insignificant. -

24, Operating Expenses
This account consists of:

Note 2015 2014 2013

Salaries and employee

benefits 25 P29,331,606 P28,020,757 P28,522,642
Depreciation and

amortization 15,16 13,294,365 12,960,752 13,312,410
Taxes and licenses 6,393,492 5,623,174 6,064,102
Commission 28 6,191,132 3,114,292 3,544,604
Directors’ fees 4,962,556 6,774,891 1,634,444
Outsourced services 4,891,362 4,507,721 4,278,902

- Meetings and seminars 4,379,054 4,280,571 3,379,105

Professional fees . 4,252,419 4,141,492 2,568,505
Transportation and travel 3,479,703 4,569,242 3,930,913
Cancelation costs 2,459,129 - -
Utilities , 1,853,811 2,137,253 2,356,102
Association dues 1,817,651 67,651 -
Repairs and mainienance 1,639,823 1,719,364 1,725,365
Advertising 1,521,830 336,576 266,602
Insurance : 1,146,481 1,193,019 - 1,239,473
Postage and communication 991,050 1,051,290 978,080
Representation and .

enterfainment 933,942 1,528,230 1,908,581
Supplies . 629,963 1,375,650 1,686,415
Rent 34,189 35,689 34,189
SEC filing fees 5,050 1,402,947 -
Land distribution cost - 2,165,000 -
Other operating

expenses - : 10,510,532 4,565,441 2,398,201

100,719,140 P91,571,002 P79,828,635

Other operating expenses consists of various employees’ reimbursable expenses,
registration fees, company events expense and penalties.



25. Salaries and Employee Benefits

This account consists of:

Note 2015 2014 2013
Salaries and wages P30,897,361 P32,108,483 P32,942,504
Retirement expense 30 1,937,560 1,665,396 2,135,538
Other employee benefits ' 3,407,398 - 3,084,115 2,904,444
36,242,319 36,857,994 37,982,486
Amount charged to cost
. of services 23 (6,910,713) (8.837,237) (9,459,844)
24 P29,331,606 P28,020,757 P28,522,642
26. Other Income (Charges)
This account consists of:
Note 2015 2014 2013
Interest income 6 P2,617,929 . P1,420,044 P2,690,259
Unrealized foreign
exchange gain 2,529,198 - 116,119 344,425
Realized gain on sale of
financial assets at
FVPL 7 2,383,973 1,159,554 5,898,813
Dividend income 317,107 318,439 228,456
Gain (loss) from cancelled
contracts and forfeited
customers’ deposits 329,889 (321,856) (960,693)
Impairment loss on
installment contract
receivables 9 (2,869,901) - -
Change in fair value of :
financial assets at
FVPL 7 (2,708,098) 836,415 (4,245,311)
Impairment losses on
investment property 16 - (2,197,072) -
Others 12 6,179,660 (555,607) 1,218,389
P8,779,757 P776,036 P5,174,338

Others in 2015 mainly consist of reversal of payables.

Others in 2014 and 2013 mainly pertain to surcharge income,

maintenance fees which are individually insignificant.

association dues and



27. Income Taxes

The components of income {ax are as follows:

2015 2014 2013

~ Current: .
Regular corporate income tax P4,480,147 P9,769,790 P2,577,837
MCIT ' 1,710,265 513,029 804,377
Final tax ' 525,121 271,510 472,458
6,715,553 10,554,329 3,854,672
Deferred 672,808 (393,075) 34,449
' P7,388,341 P10,161,254 P3,889,121

The reconciliation of the income tax computed at the applicable stafutory tax rates fo the
income tax as shown in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income is as

follows:
2015 2014 2013
Income before income fax P19,686,784 P30,590,446 P6,257,724
Tax computed at 30% ' P5,906,035 P9,177,134 P1,877,317
Tax effects of:
Non-deductible expenses 2,166,633 617,343 5,422,466
Non-taxable income (901,103) (2,854,433) (564,588)
Interest income subject to final
tax (784,838) (135,757) (220,842)
Expired NOLCO and MCIT 123,855 . 10,059,433 748,856
Change in unrecognized
deferred tax asset 877,759 (6,702,466) (4,923,255)
Applied NOLCO and MCIT - - 1,549,167
P7,388,341 P10,161,254 P3,889,121

The deferred tax assets consist of the carryforward benefits of the NOLCO and MCIT of

FMCMI as follows:
2015 2014
MCIT P1,607,418 P1,657,135
NOLCO 23,418 646,509
P1,630,836 P2,303,644




The deferred tax assets that have not been recognized in the consolidated statements of

' financial position, net of recognized deferred tax liabilities; are as follows:

2015 2014
Temporary Temporary
Difference Tax Effect Difference Tax Effect
‘Allowance for impairment on .
investments in joint venture P84,685,611 P25,405,568 P84,685,611 P25,405,568
Allowance for impairment on '
investment properties 63,783,573 19,135,072 63,783,573 19,135,072
Retirement lability 12,119,432 3,635,830 11,577,711 3,473,313
Allowance for impairment on .
accounts receivables 10,555,243 3,166,573 10,555,243 3,166,573
NOLCO 3,095,921 3,095,921 1,148,799 344,640
MCIT 1,159,656 1,159,656 - ' -
Accrued expenses 54,303 16,291 54,303 16,291
Unrealized gross profit (15,898,278) (4,769,483) (18,014,034) (5,404,210)
Unrealized foreign exchange :
gain ' {2,529.198) (758,759) (116,119) (34,836)
P157,026,263 P50,086,669 P153,646,087 P46,102,411
The details of MCIT are as follows:
Year _ Bxpired/

Incurred Amount Applied Balance Date of Expiration-_
2012 P724,221 (P724,221) P - December 31, 2015
2013 . 795,518 (251,738) 543,780 December 31, 2016
2014 513,029 - 513,029 December 31,2017
2015 1,710,265 - 1,710,265 December 31,2018
Total P3,743,033 (P975,959) P2,767,074

The details of NOLCO are as follows:

Year Expired/ :
Incurred Amount Applied Balance Date of Expiration
T 2012 P14,054,307 (P14,054,307) P - December 31, 2015
2013 15,561,130 (15,561,130) - December 31, 2016
2014 2,237,580 - (1,020,719) 1,216,861 December 31, 2017
2015 1,957,120 - . 1,957,120 December 31,2018
Total P33,810,137 (P30,636,156) P3,173,981

28. Joint Arrangements and Marketing Agreement

Joint Operation Arrangement with SLRDI

On October 23, 2003, CCPC entered into 2 Memorandum of Agreement (the Agreement)
with SLRDI (the Developer) wherein CCPC shall contribute land and the improvements
thereon, while the Developer shall be responsible for completing the development of the
Palma Real Residential Estates project in Bifian, Laguna (the Project) and for all

© expenses necessary in preparing the lots into its saleable units (Note 11).




~ The Agreement has the following significant provisions, among others:

a. The Developer shall be solely liable for any and all expenses to be incurred in the
construction and development to be introduced by SLRDI on the Project. SLRDI
shall also shield CCPC from any claim that may be raised by any government
agency, sub-contractor, supplier or third party in connection with the development of

. the Project.

b. CCPC shall be paid 60% of the sales proceeds while STRDI shall be paid 40% of the
sales proceeds. CCPC and SLRDI shall shoulder the corresponding taxes on their
respective share of the proceeds;

¢. The proceeds from the sale of lots shall be deposited in the joint bank account of the
CCPC and SLRDI; and

d. CCPC and SLRDI shall nominate a marketing manager that will handle the sale of

and SLRDL

lots in 2004.

lots in the Project. The marketing manager sh

Joint Operation Arrangement with DMCI

Tn 2005, the Parent Company an:
(the Agreement) with DMCI for the develop
Towers. The agreeme
e land; (b) DMCI shall
ale of condominium units;

alent to 15.6% of the cost

buildings to be called The Cypress
and FBMCI shall contribute
development, construction and ‘s
FBMCs share in the project is equiv

d FBMCI entered into a Memorandum of Agreement
ment and construction of three condominium
nt provides that: (a) the Group
be responsible for the
and (c) the Group and

of the total condominium

all present a marketing plan to CCPC

1

The development of the residential lots has been completed and the Proj ect started selling

units and parking slots.
The revenues and the corresponding cost of real estate sold from the joint operations are
shown below:
Joint Joint
Operation Operation
2015 with SLRDI with DMCI Total
- Real estate sales P32,424,341 P2,868,274 P35,292,615
Cost of real estate sold 13,938,392 2,861,518 16,799,910
P18,485,949 P6,756 P18,492,705
Joint Joint
Operation Operation
2014 with SLRDI with DMCI Total
Real estate sales P10,602,355  P10,835,893 . P30,438,248
Cost of real estate sold 10,358,108 3,639,837 13,997,945
P9,244,247 P7,196,056

P16,440,303



Joint Joint

Operation Operation
2013 with SLRDL with DMCI Total
Real estate sales P26,907,514 P23,647,678 50,555,192
Cost of real estate sold . 15,025,411 8,332,656 23,358,067
P11,882,103 P15,315,022 P27,197,125

As at December 31, 2015 and 2014, there were 1o outstanding contingent liabilities and
commitments with respect to the joint venture agreement. ‘

Joint Venture .

On December 1, 1997, CEI entered into joint venture agreement with Perfect Sites, Inc.
(PSI) to acquire, develop and sell real estate properties through SLPI, a joint venture
company. The parties shall each contribuie and own fifty percent (50%) of the equity of

PSI and shall be equally represented in the Board. The parties agree that PSI be. -

designated as Project Manager with full power and authority to manage and to undertake

the construction of the project, subject to limitations and restrictions.

Marketing Agreement .
Marketing of the projects are bandled by several brokers and agents at various

commission rates based on the selling price.

The Group recognized commission expense amounting to P6,191,132, P3,114,292, and

. P3,544,604 in 2015, 2014, and 2013, respectively (Note 24)

29, Operating Lease Commitments

The Parent Company leased out certain commercial spaces of its building to several
parties under various operating lease agreements for periods between 1 and 10 years, All
leases include an annual escalation clause on rental rates.

Future minimum rental receivables under the non-cancellable operating iease agreements
follows:

2015 . 2014 - 2013

Within one year P15,349,747 P9,013,863 P5,977,855
After one year but not more than '

five years 18,869,187 19,252,593 21,346,624

After five years - - 4,073,054

P34,218,934 P28,266,456 P31,397,533

Rent income Tecognized in 2015, 2014 and 2013 amounted to P7,713,869, P5,624,685,
and P8,236,887, respectively.




30. Retirement Benefits

The Group’s retirement benefits pertain to all regular employees. The notmal retirement
benefit is computed equivalent to 22.5 day-pay for every year of credited service
pursuant to R.A. No. 7641 or the The Retirement Pay Law. The actuarial valuation is
_ made on an annual basis. The Company’s {atest actuarial valuation was made on
December 18, 2015 using the projected umit credit method in accordance with the

amended PAS 19. -

- The movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are shown below:

2015 2014
Present value of defined benefit obligation at
beginning of year P11,577,711 P8,995,326
Actuarial gains (445,839) (731,905)
Current service cost : 1,370,131 1,436,394
* Interest costs 567,429 332,768
‘Benefits paid : (950,000) (119,462)
Present value of defined benefit obligation at a
end of year ~ P12,119,432 P11,577,711

The amount of retirement expense recognized in profit or loss consists of:

| 2015 2014 2013
Current service cost P1,370,131 P1,332,628 P1,774,319
Tnterest costs 567,429 332,768 361,219

P1,937,560 P1,665,396 P2,135,538

The expected contribution to the defined benefit retirement plan in 2016 is P1,256,504.

Principal actuarial assumptions at reporting date (expressed as weighted averages) are as

follows:
2015 2014 2013
Discount rates - 552% 4.98% 5.04%
Expected rate of salaty increases 3.00% 3.00% 3.00%

The mortality and disability rates used by the actuary were taken from the “1983 US
Group Annuity Mortality Table” and the 1952 Disability Table,” respectively.

Sensitivity Analysis o :
Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial

assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have affected the defined benefit
obligation by the amounts shown below:

. , Increase
Discount rate (0.5% decrease) P333,852
Future salary increase rate (1% increase) 760,131

Although the analysis does not take account of the full distribution of cash flows
expected under the plan, it does provide an approximation of the sensitivity of the
assumption shown.




These defined benefit plan exposes the Group to actuarial risks, such as longevity risk,
currency risk and inferest rate risk. - ‘

The management reviews the level of funding required for the retirtement fund. Such a
review includes the asset-liability matching (ALM) strategy and investment risk
management policy. The Group’s ALM obj ective is to match maturities of the plan assets
to the retirement benefit obligation as they fall due. The Group monitors how the

duration and expected yield of the investments are matching the expected cash outflows
arising from the retirement beneﬁt obligations.

Maturity analysis of the benefit payments:

2015
- 5 Years but
Carrying Contractual  Less than Less than More than
Amount _ Cash Flows 5 Years 10 Years 10 Years

Defined benefit obligation P12,119,432 138,419,417 P8,877,650 P1,320,617 P129,211,750

2014

» .~ . 5Yemsbut o
Carrying Coniractual  Less than Less than More than
Amount Cash Flows 5 Years 10 Years 10 Years

Deﬁnedbeneﬁtobligaﬁon - P1L,577,711 P121,090,878 P6,926,735 P1,036,075 P113,128,068

There are no wnusnal or significant risks to which the plan exposes the Group.

Funding Policy
The Company does not have a formal retirement plan. Benefit claims under that
retirement obligation are directly paid by the Company when they become due.

31. Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Share

. Basic and diluted earnings per share amounts are computed as follows:

. 2015 2014 - 2013
Net income (loss) attributable o
equity holders of the Parent : :
Company P6,344,524 P18,897,628 (P282,825)
Divided by weighted average
number of outstanding ,
.common shares 13,599,999,960 13,599,999,960 13,599,999,960
Basic/diluted earnings (loss) per -
share P0.000467 P0.00139 (P0.00002)

The Group does not have dilutive or potential dilutive shares as at December 31, 2015,
2014 and 2013.



32. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

Obijectives and Policies
The Group has exposure fo the following financial risks:

n  Credit Risk
a Liquidity Risk
= Markef Risk

presents information abont the Group’s objectives, policies and processes for

g and managing these financial tisks, and the Group’s management of capital.

up’s risk management is coordinated with the BOD, and focuses on actively

. the Group’s short-to-medium term cash flows by minimizing the exposure to

1 markets. The Group does not actively engage in the trading of financial assets

i ., -ulative purposes nor does it write options. Risks to which the Group is exposed to

are described below.

Also, the Group has low exposure i0 interest rate risk since the Group’s existing financial
assets have fixed interest., Risks to which the Group is exposed to are described below.

The Group’s financial assets and Habilities such as cash and cash equivalents, installment -
contract receivables, receivables, loans receivable, accounts payable and accrued
expenses (excluding payable to government agencies) and due to related parties arise
directly from and are used to facilitate its daily operations. The Group’s other financial
assets and liability includes refundable deposits and construction bond and subscriptions

payable, respectively.

Credit Risk _
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a
financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from
the Group’s receivables. Generally, the maximum credit risk exposure of financial assets
is the carrying amount of the financial assets as shown on the face of the consolidated
statements of financial position (or in the detailed analysis provided in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements), a5 summarized below: '

Note 2015 2014

Cash in banks and cash equivalents™ 6 P203,951,792 P202,539,544
Installment contract receivables 9 70,042,532 68,495,052

Accounts receivables - net 45,676,878 31,678,490

Loans receivable 12 58,333,333 50,000,000

Advances to joint venture - 13 1,436,026 1,436,026

Refundable deposits and construction _
bond** 17 2,394,527 2,388,966
P381,835,088 P356,538,078
% Excluding cdsh on hand.

w+ [ycluded under “Other current assels " and “Other noncwrrent assels™ account in the consolidated statemenis of
financial position.

As at December 31, 2015 and 2014, there were no significant concentrations of credit
risk,



The Group continuously monitors co:ipliance with the arrangements OF credit terms
granted to counterparties. Indication of default identified is discussed and resolved during
management meeting, Where available at 2 reasonable cost, external credit ratings and/or

reports on customers and other counterparties ate obtained and used. The Group’s policy
" -is to deal only with creditworthy counterparties

The table below shows the credit ‘quality by class of financial assets:

As at December 31, 2015
Nelther Past Due nor Specifically Tmpaired  Past Dueor
High Standard  Substandard Individually .
Grade Grade Grade . Ympaired Toial
Cash in bank and cash i
equivalents* P203,951,792 P - P - P - P203,95L,792
Installment contract receivables - 67,172,631 - 2869901 70,042,532
Accounts receivables - 40,777,683 4899196 10555243 56,232,122
Loaps receivable - 58,333,333 - - 58,333,333
Advances to joint venture - 1,436,026 - - 1,436,026
Refundable deposits and
performance bond** - 2,394,527 - - 2,394,527

P203,951,792 176,114,200 P4,899,196 P13,425,144 392,390,332

*ncluded under “Ofher current assels” and “Other noncurreit assets” account in the consolidated siatements’ of
financial position.

As at December 31, 2014

Neither Past Due not Sgeciﬁcaﬂy Impaired Past Dueor
High Standard Substandard Individually
Grade Grade Grade Tmpaired Total
Cash in bank and cash ‘
equivalents* ] P202,539,544 . P - P - P - P202,539,544
Instaliment contract receivables - 68,495,052 - - 68,495,052
Accoupts receivables - 24,963,921 6,714,569 10,555243 42,233,733
Loans recejvable ’ - 50,000,000 . - - 50,000,000
Advances to joint venure - 1,436,026 - - 1,436,026
Refundable deposits and ‘ .
“performance bond** - 2,530,866 - - 2,530,866

P202,530,544 P147425865 614,569 P10,555,243  P367,235,221

*Included vnder «Other current assels” and “Other noncurvent assets” account in the consolidated staiements of
Sinancial posttion. i : ’ p

Cash in bank and cash equivalents are considered High Grade as these pertain to cash
deposits and short-term investments in reputable banks.

Tnstallment contract receivables, receivables, Joans receivables, advances to associates,
refundable deposits and performance bond are considered Standard Grade as the amount
is typical and guaranteed in the related contract. Standard Grade includes receivables that
are collected on their due dates provided that they were reminded by the Group. Those
receivables which are collected consistently beyond their due dates and require persistent

effort from the Group are included under Substandard Grade.

Liquidity Risk ,
The Group has exposure to liquidity risk, which pertains to the risk that the Group will

encounter difficulty m meeting obligations associated with financial Habilities that are
settled by delivering cash or another financial asset.

The Group’s objectives to manage its liquidity profile are: (a) to ensure that adequate
funding is available at all times; (b) to meet commitments as they arise without incurring
unnecessary costs; (c) to be able to access funding when needed at the least possible cost;
and (d) to maintain an adequate time spread of refinancing maturities.




The following are the coniractual maturities of financial liabilities, including estimated
interest payments and excluding the impact of netting agreements:

Dueon  Within 6-12

2015 Demand 6 Months Months Total
Accounts payable and other ‘ :
current liabilities* P - P47,949,840 P38,582,287 P86,532,127
Due to related parties 15,212,887 - - 15,212,887
Subscriptions payable 42,158,700 - - - 42,158,700

P57,371,587 PA47,949,840 P38,582,287 P143,903,714

* Bxcluding payable to gm}'erml:lant agencies, customers® deposits and deposit for decument processing amounting to
P48,883,195 ’

Dueon Within . 6-12

2014 Demand - 6 Months Months Total
Accounts payable and other : '
current labilities™ p -, P22487,162 P71,731,919 704,219,081
Due to related parties 25,812,887 - - 25,812,887
Subscriptions payable 42,158,700 - - 472,158,700

P67,971,587 P22,487,162 371,731,919 P162,190,668

* Excluding payable to government agenoies, customers’ deposits and deposit for document precessing amounting to
P48,735,107 : .

The above confractual maturities reflect the gross cash flows, which may differ from the
carrying values of the liabilities at the reporting dates. '

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices will affect the values of the Group’s

-holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage
and- control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing return.

The Group’s market risk is limited to its investments carried at FVPL @ote 7). The
Group manages ifs risk arising from changes in value of investments carried at fair value
through profit or loss by monitoring the changes in the market price of the investments.

Foreign Currency Risk
The Group’s operations are largely in its functional currency and therefore translation
exposures on transactions with debtors and creditors are not material. The only foreign
currency dénominated financial instrument relate to cash that is denominated in U.S.
 dollar. Given this, the Group does not expect that there will be any significant currency
- risk associated with its financial assets and liabilities. Foreign currency risk is monitored
and analyzed gystematically and regularly and is managed by the Group’s Finance
Department.

Fair Value Hierarchy : -
The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value, by valuation method.

The different levels have been defined as follows:
= Tevel 1: quoted prices' (unadjusted) in active markets for jdentical assets oOr
liabilities. '

«  Tevel 2: inputs other than quoted prices inclnded within Level 1 that are obscrvable
for the asset or liability, gither directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly
(ie., derived from prices).




s Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data

(unobservable inputs).

Level 1 ‘ Level 2 Level 3 Total
Tinancial Assets at FVPL ; T
2015 31,951,632 P - P - P31,951,632
2014 22,438,641 - o - 22,438,641
AFS ; : :
2015 S - - 47,344,659 47,344,659
2014 - - 47,344,659 47,344,659

During the year, there were no transfers be_fween Level 1 and Level 2 fair value
measurements, and 1o transfers into and out of Level 3 fair value measurements. '

Sensitivity Analysis

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equities decrease as a result of changes

“in the levels of equity indices and the value of individual stocks. Equity price risk arises
from FVPL 'held for imvestment purposes. The market price risk emanates from
prevailing stock market. It is, and has been throughout the year under review, the

Group’s policy that no trading in financial instruments shall be undertaken considering
" its investments are of fair values. The Group monitors market price of its investment
periodically. , -

Tt is estimated that 2 general increase of five percent in fair value, with all other variable
held constant, would increase the Group’s other comprehensive income by approximately
P243,054 and P137,569 for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.
An equal change in the opposite direction would have decreased other comprehensive
income by the same amount,

Capital Management ‘

The Group’s objective in managing capital is to ensure that the Group maintains 2
versatile capital structure and utilizes the most cost-efficient financing available which is
capable of sustaining long term growth and maximizing shareholder value.

Debt and capital ratios are regularly monitored as a basis for measuring efficiency as well
‘as in seiting strategies. The capital structure is adjusted and revised in response. to
changes in economic condition and the risk profile of the Group’s business environment.
Free cash flows are managed to respond to working capital needs and to avoid long term .

funding.

Capital is measured on the basis of the carrying amount of equity and referred to in the
consolidated financial staterments as Total Equity. There were no changes in the Group’s
approach to capital management during the. year. The Group also meets regularly to

review the Group’s capital requirement and the reasonableness of the level of its capital
to be maintained. :

As at December 31, 2015, the Company is compliant with the minimum public float
requirement by the Philippine Stop]; Bxchange (PSE).



Debi-to-equity ratio is as folows:

' 2015 2014

Total liabilities P205,697,810 P222,503,486
Total equity 1,733,137,715 - 1,717,468,433
0.12:1 0.13:1

33. Determination of Fair Vﬁlues

Findncial Instruments whose Carrying Amounts Approximate Fair Values.

The Group has determined that carrying ‘amounts of cash and cash equivalents,
receivables, construction bond, advances to joint venture, accounts payable and accrued
expenses (excluding payable to government agencies and customers’ deposits), due to
related parties and subscriptions payable reasonably approximate their fair values
because these are mostly short-term in pature.

The fair value of installment coniract receivables and loans receivable approximétes its:
carrying amount as its interest rate approximates the market rate for a similar instrament.

The fair value of refundable deposits and construction bond approximates their carrying
amount because the difference of the present value and carrying amount of  these
financial instruments is insignificant.

Financial Assets at F VPL and AFS Fi inancial Assets

The fair values of publicly-traded instruments and similar investments are based on
quoted market prices in an active market. Unguoted equity securities are carried at cost
less impairment.

34, Other Mattexs

a. Contingencies ‘
In the ordinary course of business, the Group has pending legal cases which are in
various stages of discussion/protest/appeal with the courts and relevant third parties.

Management believes that the bases of the Group’s position are legally valid and the
ultimate resolution of these claims/assessments/litigation would not have 2 material
effect on the Group’s financial position and results of operations. On the basis of the
information furnished by its legal counsel, management believes that none of these
contingencies will materially affect the Group’s financial position and financial
performance.



b. Stock Option ,
_ The Group’s stock option plan entitles, on grant date, the directors and executive

officers of the Group t0 purchase shares of stock of the Parent Company at par valve
or book value, whichever is higher. The underlying shares subject to the stock option
plan covers 2,400,000,000 common shares represénting‘lo% of the authorized capital
stock of the Parent Company. The stock option shell be subject to vesting according
to such schedule as shall be approved by the BOD, provided that yesting shall lapse -
after five years from entitlement date, and provided further that with respect to
executive officers, vesting shall expire upon their resignation from the Group. The
pumber of underlying common shares in respect of outstanding options and/or the
exercise price shall be cotrespondingly adjusted in the event of any stock dividend
declaration, stock split, merger, consolidation, or the similar or analogous change in

- the corporate structure or capitalization of the Group. The terms and conditions of the

stock option plan may be amended by. the resolution of the BOD, except that any
increase in fhe maximum sumber of shares or any decrease in the exercise price shall
require the approval of stockholders representing at least two-thirds of the

outstanding capital stock.

No stock option has been granted from the time the stock option plan was approved.
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Crown Equities, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Schedule A - Marketable Securities -

{Current Marketable Equity Securities and

Other Short-term cash Investments)
December 31, 2015

Name of issuing
entity & association
of each issue

Fair Value Through Profit or Loss:

AGIATRUST DEVELOPMENT BANK (ASIA)
ASIA UNITED BANK

BELLE CORPORATION

BOULEVARD HLDGS

BLOOMBERRY

BASIC ENERGY CORP

COAL ASIA HOLDINGS, INC.
COSCO CAPITAL .

CYBER BAY CORPORATIO

CHINA BANKING CORPORATION
DA VINCI

D&L INDUSTRIES, INC.

ENERGY DEVELOPMENT CO.

IP E-GAMES VENTURES, INC.
EXPORT AND INDUSTRY BANL, INC

. EMPIRE EAST LAND INC

EMPERADOR INC.

EASTWEST BANK

GLOBAL ESTATE

GMA NET, INC. -

HOLCIM PHILIPPINES, INC
INTEGRATED MICRO

LAFARGE REPUBLIC

MANILA MINING

MANILA ELECTRIC COMPANY
METRO RETAIL GROUP INC
MANILA JOCKEY

MANILA WATER COMPANY, INC
NATIONAL REINSURANCE CORP
ORIENTAL PETROLEUM AND MINERAL "A"
ORIENTAL PETROLEUM AND MINERAL "B"
PHIL. BUSINESS BANK

PETRON CORP.

PREMIER HORIZON

PREMIUM LEISURE CORP

PHIL. STOCK EXCHANGE-
PHOENIX SEMI CONDUCTOR PHLS CORP
TRAVELLER'S INTL HOTEL GROUP
SWIFT FOODS

SHANG PROPERTIES INC

STA. LUCIA LAND

sAN MIGUEL CORP

55l GROUP, INC.

TRANS-ASIA OIL

TRANS-ASIA PETROLEUM CORP
PLDT

TOP FROTNIER

UNION BANK OF THE PHILS
VULCAN INDUSTRIAL CORP
XURPAS, INC.

ZEUS HOLDINGS

BYD COMPANY LIMITED(1211)
MUSCLE PHARM CORP
PLATFORM SPECIALTY PRODUCTS
usG CORPORATION

YOUKU TUDOU INC.

FIXED INCOME SECURITIES

Total

Number of
shares

15,000
9,000
B
6,000,000
7,000
3,333
300,000
33,000
1,400,000
11,664
20,000
19,000
40,000
10,000,000
3,310,000
100,000
10,000
18,078
150,000
170,000
37,800
110,000
2,680
11,808,988
© 200
150,000
18,480
35,000
1,266,000
117,021,003
30,000,000
130,000
115,000
500,000
370,000
3,600
50,000

50,000
300,000
417,277
256,000

13,000

55,000
188,000

3172
20
1,100
3,300
200,000
7,000
1,000,000
31,400
3,003
1,000
500
6,000

Amount shown

on the balance
sheet* .

P

105,000
415,350
218
246,000
31,780
700
174,000
221,400
16,000
433,901
32,000
118,950
248,000
53,000
860,600
77,000
89,500
342,397
154,500
1,173,000
538,272
620,400
24,120
118,090
64,000
199,000
36,960
868,000
1,177,380
1,099,997
© 294,000
2,759,250
803,850
245,000
236,800
990,000
80,500,
220,000
43,200
1,306,077
199,680
$48,700
189,750
218,000
7,232
41,200
74,360
188,265
216,000
45,660
255,000
8,130,303
329,278
600,486
574,603
248,145
2,866,778

31,951,632




Crown Equities, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Schedule C - '
Amounts Receivable from Related Parties which are Eliminated
During the Consolidation of Financial Statements
December 31, 2015

Balance at beginning of Balance at end of year

Name of Related Parties
year
Healthcare Systems Asia Phils. Inc. P 128,443,638 P 128,689,862
Crown Central Properties, Corp. 26,446,209 15,846,209
4 154,889,847 144,536,071
Allowance for impairment ( 54,623,137 ) ( 54,623,137 )
P 100266710 B 89912934




Crown Equities, Inc. and Subsidiaries

;December 31, 2015

Schedule D - Non-Current Marketable Equity Sectrities, Other Long-Term Investments in Sto

k, and Other Investments

Beginning balance Additians/(Deductions) Ending Balance

Equity in net Excess of . Dividends received
Name of issuing Number of shares losses of equity in Number of shares [raut investmenls

cnlity & the or principal amount Amoaunl invesice for the net lass or principal amount Amannl not accaunted by
description of investiment of securities in pesos period auer cast Qlliers of sccurities in pesas” equity methed
Investments al equity:
Asian Alliance Holdings . ) : _
& Development Corp. 90,004,634 shares F 47,344,659 - - - 90,004,634 shares P 47,344,659 -
luvestments at equily:
Sky Leisure Prop., Inc.
100,000,000 shares - - - - 100,000,000 shares - -
p__47.344,659 | P S| P . - p__ 47334659 | T

« Amonentd shownr is part of hio

cstments in and Advances fa Relaled Parlies and Auvniln

ble-for-Sale Financial Assel accounls i the balance

sheel.




Crown Equities, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Schedule E
Indebtedness of Unconsolidated Subsidiaries
and Related Parties (Other than Affiliates)
December 31, 2015

Balance at beginning of

~ Balance at end of

Name of Related Parties ,
year year
Sky Leisure Properties, Inc. P 1,436,026 P 1,436,026
Allowance for impairment - -
' P . 1,436,026 P 1,436,026

+ Ampount showm is part of Investments in and Advances to Rel

ated Parties account in the balance sheet.

*



Crown EQuities Inc. and Subsidiaries

Schedule F
Intangible Assets - Other Assets
fDecember 31, 2015

Dednction

] !“

: Other changes

o y .. Charaed ta cost and | Charged to R ,
Description Beginning balance Additions at cost @e l © additions Ending halance
GA.]DL’/I."(!I other acconnlts .

, (dednctions)

Goodwill 21,740,604 .| P - P - P - P - P 21,740,604




. Crown Equities,

December 31, 2015

. Inc. and Subsidiaries
Schedule J - Capital Stock

Number of shares lield by

Number of shares

Directors, officers

Number of shares issued
. Number of shares | and outstanding as slhown reserved for options, .
' . : . lated parties her
Title of Issue anthorized under the related balance warrants, conversion and Related parties and employees™ OF ers
sheet caption other rights
‘Common Stock 24,000,000,000 13,599,999,960 o - 435,052,568 13,164,947,392

* includes indirectly held bud beneficially

owned shares



Crown Equities, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Map of Conglomerate
December; 31, 2015

CROWN EQUITIES, INC.

r |

SUBSIDIARIES JOINT VENTURE
l ’ SKY LEISURE PROPERTIES,
NG, (SLP1}
PARIFIED LAND HEALTHCARE SYSTEMS 50%
HOLDIMEGS, C. {PLHE - OF ASIA PHILS., INC.
5% {HSAPI}
97.16%

FORTMED MEDICAL CUNICS
: N MAKAT!, INC.{FMCMY)
CROWM CENTRAL PROPERTIES CORP. {CCPC) 100%
48% :
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Crown Equities, Inc.
Schedule M — Key Performance Indicators
December 31, 201 5

Current Ratio 2.52%
Cash Rafio~ | 1.05x 0.45%

Formula

Indicator

Current Assets

Ikttt
Current Liabilities

Cash and Cash equivalents

Current Liabilities

-Equi Total Liabilities
DebtEquity | x| 0.13x | 012 Tota? 2 ——
Ratio Total Equity

Total Liabilities

Debt-Asset 0.11% 0.12x
Ratio

Total Assets
_ Asset-Equity ; Total Asset
Ratio 1.12x% 1..]3} ' 1.12x MTotal Equity

Earnings before Interest and Taxes

Earnings o€/ 77~

Interest . o \
. ' ]
Net Income Net Income
. 6.42% 10.47% 1.79% : [t
lnvestr’nem 0.48% 0. 4;8x 0.51x Total Investment and Advances
Ratio -~ __|. . Total Asset
Return on Assets 0.99%" m

Net Income
0.00047 | 0.00139 (0.00002)

e
Average Total Assets

Net Income after M inority Interest
Total Shares Subscribed

Earnings Per
Share

15




~_ CROWNEQUITIES,INC. |
SCHEDULE OF RECONCILIATION OF RETAINED EARNINGS
AVAILABLE FOR DIVIDEND DECLARATIOR |
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2015

Unappropriated Retained Barnings, beginning - P55,829,958

Adjustments: :
less: Prior year adjustment ' P2,542,934

Unappropriated Retained Earnings, as adj usted, _
 beginning - N 53,287,024

NetIncome - | 1 1,826,037

Less: Non-actualfunrealized income net of tax
Equity in net income of associatefjoint venture -
Unrealized actuarial gain : o -
Tair value adjustments (M2M gains) ‘ -
Fair value adjustments of Tnvestment Property :

resulting to gain -
Adjustment due to deviation from PFRS/GAAP -

gain
Deferred tax benefit _ -
Other unrealized gains or adjustments o the :
retained earnings as a fesult of certain v
transactions accounted for under the PERS ‘ -

Add: ‘Non-actual losses ‘ :

Deferred tax expense: -
Unrealized foreign e change loss - net (except -

those attributable to Cash and Cash Equivalents) ‘ -
Depreciation on revaluation increment (after tax) -

~ Adjustment due {0 deviation from PFRS/GAAP -
" loss .

Loss on fair value adjustment of investment

property (afier tax) ’ -

Net Income Actual/Realized ' 1,826,037

Less: Appropriations of Retained Earningé, during the
period -

Unappropriated Retéiued Earnings, as adjusted, A
ending ‘ . ‘ P55,113,061
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A. BOARD MATTERS

1) Board of Directors

l
|

(a) Composition of the Board

Complete the table with information on the Board of Directors:

George L. Go NED N/A Noel 1995 2014 Annual 21
Bundalian
Wilfrido V. Vergara ED N/A Noel 2002 2014 Annual 14
Bundalian
Ramon A. Recto D N/A Noel 2002 2014; 3 years Annual 14
Bundalian;
no
relationship
Victor C. Macalincag ID N/A Noel 2003 | 2014;3years | Annual 13
Bundalian;
no
relationship
Antonio B. Alvarez ED N/A Noel 1995 2014 Annual 21
Bundalian
Conrado G. Marty NED N/A Noel 2006 2014 Annual 10
Bundalian
Isidro A. Consunji NED N/A Noel 2012 2014 Annual 4
Bundalian
Patrick Warren D. Go NED N/A Noel 1995 2014 Annual 21
Bundalian
Eugene B. Macalalag ED N/A Noel 2003 2014 Annual 13
Bundalian
David 0. Chua NED N/A Noel 2007 2014 Annual 9
Bundalian
Romuald U. Dy Tang ED N/A Noel 2008 2014 Annual 8
Bundalian
Salvador P. Escano NED N/A Noel 2011 2014 Annual 5
Bundalian
Melvin O. Vergara NED N/A Noel 2011 2014 Annual 5
Bundalian
Christopher Brian C. NED N/A Noel 2012 2014 Annual 5
Dy Bundalian
Nixon Y. Lim NED N/A N/A 2014 2014 Regular 2
Board
Meeting




(b) Provide a brief summary of the corporate governance policy that the board of directors has adopted.
Please emphasize the policy/ies relative to the treatment of all shareholders, respect for the rights of
minority shareholders and of other stakeholders, disclosure duties, and board responsibilities.

The following are summaries of the corporate governance policies that the board of directors (the “Board”) of
Crown Equities, Inc. (the “Company”) has adopted:

Reportorial or Disclosure System of Company's Corporate Governance Guidelines

All material information, i.e. anything that could potentially affect share price, shall be publicly disclosed.
Such information shall include earnings results, acquisition or disposal of assets, board changes, related
party transactions, shareholdings or directors and changes to ownership.

The Board commits at all times to fully disclose material information dealings. it shall cause the filing of
all required information for the interest of the stakeholders.

shareholders’ Benefits, Rights and Protection

It is the duty of the Board to promote the rights of the stockholders, remove impediments to the exercise
of those rights and provide an adequate avenue for them to seek timely redress for each breach of their
rights.

The Board shall take appropriate steps to remove excessive or unnecessary costs and other
administrative impediments to the exercise of those rights and provide an adequate venue for them to
seek timely redress for each breach of their rights.

The Board committed to respect the following rights of the stockholders:
1. Voting Rights

Shareholders shall have the right to elect, remove, and replace directors and vote on certain
corporate acts in accordance with the Corporate Code.

Cumulative voting shall be used in the election of directors.

A director shall not be removed without cause if it will deny the minority shareholders
representation in the Board.

2. Pre-emptive Rights

All stockholders shall have pre-emptive rights, unless the same is denied in the articles of
incorporation or an amendment thereto. They shall have the right to subscribe to the capital stock of
the Corporation. The Articles of Incorporation shall lay down the specific rights and powers of
shareholders with respect to the particular shares they hold, all of which shall be protected by law so
long as they shall not be in conflict with the Corporation Code.

3, Power of inspection

All shareholders shall be allowed to inspect corporate books and records including minutes of Board
meetings and stock registries in accordance with the Corporation Code and shall be furnished with
annual reports, including financial statement without cost or restrictions.

4, Rights of Information’

The shareholders shall be provided, upon request, with periodic reports which disclose personal and
professional information about the directors and officers and certain other matters such as their
holdings of the company’s shares, dealings with the company, relationship among directors and key
officers and the aggregate compensation of directors and officers.




The minority shareholders shall be granted the right to propose the holding of a meeting, and rights
to propose items in the agenda of the meeting, provided the items are for legitimate business
purposes.

The minority shareholders shall have access to any and all information relating to matters for which
the management is accountable for and to those relating to matters for which the management shall
include such information and, if not included, then the minority shareholders shall be allowed to
propose to include such matters in the agenda of stockholders” meeting, being within the definition
of “legitimate purposes”.

5. Right to Dividends
Shareholders shall have the right to receive dividends subject to the discretion of the Board.

The company shall be compelled to declare dividends when its retained earnings shall be in excess of
100% of its paid-in capital stock, except: a) when justified by definite corporate expansion projects or
programs approved by the Board; or b) when the corporation is prohibited under any loan
agreement with any financial institution or creditor, whether local or foreign, from declaring
dividends without its consent, and such consent has not been secured; or c) when it can be clearly
shown that such retention is necessary under such special circumstances obtaining in the
Corporation, such as when thereis a need for special reserve for probable contingencies.

6. Appraisal Right

Shareholders shall have appraisal rights or the right to dissent and demand payment of fair value of
their shares in the manner provided for under Section 82 of the Corporation Code of the Philippines.

iii. Board Responsibilities

Compliance with the principles of good corporate governance is the primary responsibility of the Board.
It shall be the Board’s responsibility to foster the long-term success of the Company and secure its
sustained competitiveness in a manner consistent with its fiduciary responsibility, which it shall exercise
in the best interest of the Company, its shareholders and stakeholders. it shall also be the duty of the
Board to formulate the Company’s vision, mission, strategic objectives, policies and procedures that shall
guide its activities, including the means to effectively monitor Management’s performance. The Board
shall conduct itself with utmost honesty and integrity in the discharge of its duties, functions and
responsibilities.

(c) How often does the Board review and approve the vision and mission?

The Company’s vision and mission are reviewed by the Board annually in the course of planning the
Company’s goals and objectives for the ensuing year.

(d) Directorship in Other Companies

(i) Directorship in the Company’s Group®

identify, as and if applicable, the members of the company’s Board of Directors who hold the office of
director in other companies within its Group:

George L. Go Healthcare Systems of Asia Non-Executive/Chairman
Philippines, Inc.
Fortmed Medical Clinics Makati, Inc. Non-Executive/Chairman

! The Group is composed of the parent, subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures of the company.




Parkfield Land Holdings, Inc.

Non-Executive/Chairman

Wilfrido V. Vergara

Fortmed Medical Clinics Makati, Inc.
Healthcare Systems Asia Philippines,
Inc.

Parkfield Land Holdings, Inc

Non-Executive /Vice Chairman
Non-Executive /Vice Chairman

Non-Executive

Victor C. Macalincag Healthcare  Systems of  Asia | Independent
Philippines, Inc.
Fortmed Medical Clinics Makati, Inc. Independent
Antonio B. Alvarez Healthcare  Systems of  Asia | Executive
Philippines, Inc.
Fortmed Medical Clinics Makati Executive
Parkfield Land Holdings, Inc. Non-Executive
Patrick Warren D. Go Healthcare Systems of Asia Phils., Inc. Executive
FortMED Medical Clinics Makati, Inc. Executive
Eugene B. Macalalag Healthcare Systems of Asia | Executive
Philippines, Inc.
Fortmed Medical Clinics Makati, Inc. Executive
parkfield Landholdings, Inc. Executive
Crown Central Properties Corp. Executive

Romuald U. Dy Tang

Healthcare Systems of Asia
Philippines, Inc.

Fortmed Medical Clinics, Makati Inc.
parkfield Landholdings, Inc.

Non-Executive

Non-Executive
Non-Executive

Melvin O. Vergara

Healthcare Systems of Asia
Philippines, Inc.,
Fortmed Medical Clinics Makati Inc.

Non-Executive

Non-Executive

Christopher Brian C. Dy

Healthcare Systems of Asia
Philippines, Inc.

Fortmed Medical Clinics, Makati Inc.
Parkfield Landholdings, Inc.

Non-Executive

Non-Executive
Executive

(i) Directorship in Other Listed Companies

Identify, as and if applicable, the members of the company'’s Board of Directors who are also directors of
publicly-listed companies outside of its Group:

Victor C. Macalincag

Semirara Mining Corporation
Republic Glass Holdings Corp.

Independent
Independent

Isidro A. Consunji

Semirara Mining Corporation
Atlas Consolidated Mining and
Dev. Corp.

Non-Executive
Non-Executive

David O. Chua The Philippines Stock Exchange Non-Executive
Salvador P. Escano Pryce Corporation Non-Executive/Chairman
Nixon Y. Lim Steniel Manufacturing Corp. Executive/ Chairman




(iii) Relationship within the Company and its Group

Provide details, as and if applicable, of any relation among the members of the Board of Directors,
which links them to significant shareholders in the company and/or in its group:

ignifi

Patrick Warren D. Go George L Go ' Son
Melvin O. Vergara Wilfrido V. Vergara Son
Christopher Brian C. Dy Romuald Dy Tang Son

(iv) Has the company set a limit on the number of board seats in other companies (publicly listed, ordinary
and companies with secondary license) that an individual director or CEO may hold simultaneously? In
particular, is the limit of five board seats in other publicly listed companies imposed and observed? If
yes, briefly describe other guidelines:

Executive Director
Non-Executive Director Please refer to the discussion below

CEO

The Company imposes and observes the qualifications and requirements on term limits and board
membership in related companies imposed by the rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange
Commission (SEC), in particular, those found under SRC Rule 38 and SEC Memorandum Circular No. 9,
Series of 2011, in respect of the Company’s independent directors.

{e) Shareholding in the Company

Complete the following table on the members of the company’s Board of Directors who directly and
indirectly own shares in the company:

t
Patrick D. Go 137,008,000 44,412,000 1.333%
132,950,000
George L. Go 4,000,800 through PCD Member 1.001%
company
76,700,000
Romuald Dy Tang 20,000 through PCD Member 0.564%
company
e 3,280,000
Wilfrido V. Vergara 19,296,000 through PCD Member 0.166%
company
10,000,000
Ramon A. Recto 880,000 through PCD Member 0.080%
company
Eugene B. Macalalag 6,800,000
80 through PCD Member 0.050%
company
David O. Chua 400,000 N/A 0.003%
Antonio B. Alvarez 177,600 N/A 0.001%
Conrado G. Marty 80,008 N/A 0.001%
Christopher Brian C. Dy 20,000 N/A -nil-
Salvador P, Escano 10,000 N/A -nil-




Melvin O. Vergara 10,000 N/A -nil-
Isidro Consunji 8,000 N/A -nil-
Victor C. Macalincag 80 N/A -nil-
Nixon Y. Lim 364,140,000 N/A 2.70%
TOTAL 526,050,568 274,142,000 5.883%

2) Chairman and CEO

(a) Do different persons assume the role of Chairman of the Board of Directors and CEO? If no, describe the

checks and balances laid down to ensure that the Board gets the benefit of independent views.

Yes

Identify the Chair and CEO:

No[ ]

George L. Go

Romuald Dy Tang

{b) Roles, Accountabilities and Deliverables

Define and clarify the roles, accountabilities and deliverables of the Chairman and CEO.

Role

The Chairman is responsible for
leadership of the Board and is tasked
to lead meetings of the Board

The President/CEQ is primary

responsible for leadership of the
business of the Company and
managing it within the authorities
delegated by the Board.

Accountabilities

Deliverables

Ensures that the meetings of the
Board are held in accordance with
the By-laws or as the Chairman may
deem necessary

Supervises preparation of the
agenda of the meeting in
coordination with the Corporate
Secretary, taking into consideration
the suggestions of the President,
Management and the directors
Maintains qualitative and timely
limes of communication and
information between the Board and
Management

Submits annual report of the
operations of the Company to the
Board

Presides at all meetings of the
stackholders, directors and
executive committee, in the
absence of both the Chairman and
the Vice-Chairman

Has general supervision and
management of the business affairs
and property of the Company
Executes on behalf of the Company
all contracts and agreements which
the Company may enter into
Prepares such reports of the
Company as may be required by law
Makes reports to the Board and the
stockholders

Signs certificates of stock

Exercises such other powers and
performs such other duties as the
Board may from time to time
entrust or delegate to him

3) Explain how the board of directors plan for the succession of the CEO/Managing Director/President and the top

key management positions?

Succession of officers is within the appointment powers of the Board.




4) Other Executive, Non-Executive and Independent Directors

Does the company have a policy of ensuring d

Please explain.

Yes. The Company ensures that members of the Board are composed of individuals experienced i

fields to allow diversity intended to benefit the Company.

Does it ensure that at least one non-

belongs to? Please explain.

The Company, under its Manual of Corporate Governance,
for membership to the Board, to possess a practical understanding of the business of the Co
Go served as a director of another property holding company, while a number of

directorships in holding companies such as the Company.

iversity of experience and background of directors in the board?

n their own

executive director has an experience in the sector or industry the company

requires all members of the Board, as a qualification
mpany. Mr. George L.
other directors hold

Define and clarify the roles, accountabilities and deliverables of the Executive, Non-Executive and Independent

Directors:
Ensures that Board Provides creative Broadly includes
policies are contribution to the improving corporate
implemented in the day- | Board by providing an credibility and
Role to-day operations of the | independent view of the | governance standards,
Company Company that is and playing a vital role in
removed from day-to- risk management
day running
perform the functions set out under the Company’s | Perform the functions
By-laws, Manual of Corporate Governance and set out under the
relevant laws, rules and regulations of the SEC Company’s By-laws,
required to be performed by directors as such Manual of Corporate
director or as a member of the various committees Governance and
of the Company relevant laws, rules and
regulations of the SEC
Accountabilities required to be

performed by an
Independent Director as
such Independent
Director or as a member
of the various
committees of the
Company

Deliverables

Furnish the Company information in the prescribed
form in respect of matters relating to the directors
required by law to be publicly disclosed

Furnish the Company
information in the
prescribed form in
respect of matters
relating to the
Independent Director
required by law to be

publicly disclosed

Provide the company’s definition of "independence” and describe the company’s compliance to the definition.

Independence is defined by the Com
other relationship which could, o

independent judgment in carrying out responsibilities.

pany as independence from management and freedom from any business or
r could reasonably be perceived to materially interfere in the exercise of
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As required under its Manual of Corporate Governance, the Corporation has atleast two (2) independent members of
the Board. The independent directors, through the Nomination Committee, are identified, screened, endorsed
and nominated for election to the Board of Directors in accordance with SRC Rule 38.

Does the company have a term limit of five consecutive years for independent directors? If after two years, the
company wishes to bring back an independent director who had served for five years, does it limit the term for no
more than four additional years? Please explain.

The Company imposes and observes the qualifications and requirements on term limits and board membership in
related companies imposed by the rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC), in
particular, those found under SRC Rule 38 and SEC Memorandum Circular No. 9, Series of 2011, in respect of the
Company’s independent directors.

5) Changes in the Board of Directors (Executive, Non-Executive and Independent Directors)
(a) Resignation/Death/Removal
No director resigned, died or was removed in 2015.
(b) Selection/Appointment, Re-election, Disqualification, Removal, Reinstatement and Suspension

Describe the procedures for the selection/appointment, re-election, disqualification, removal,
reinstatement and suspension of the members of the Board of Directors. Provide details of the processes
adopted (including the frequency of election) and the criteria employed in each procedure:

Proven competence,
integrity, prudence and track
record in his specific field

Election at the annual

i) Ex ive Di : .
(i) Executive Directors stockholders’ meeting

Proven competence,
integrity, prudence and track
record in his specific field
Proven competence,
integrity, prudence and track
record in his specific field

Election at the annual

(ii) Non-Executive Directors stockholders’ meeting

Election at the annual

(iii} Independent Directors stockholders’ meeting

I

Proven competence,
integrity, prudence and track
record in his specific field
Proven competence,
integrity, prudence and track
record in his specific field
Proven competence,
integrity, prudence and track
record in his specific field

Election at the annual

i) Executive Directo i
(i cutive Directors stockholders’ meeting

Election at the annual

i) Non-E . , .
(ii) Non-Executive Directors stockholders’ meeting

Election at the annual
stockholders’ meeting

(iii) Independent Directors

Grounds provided in the
Company’s Manual of
Corporate Governance
Grounds provided in the
Company’s Manual of
Corporate Governance
Grounds provided in the
Company’s Manual of
Corporate Governance

Approval of majority of the

N E R
(i) Executive Directors Board

Approval of majority of the

(ii) Non-Executive Directors Board

Approval of majority of the

(iii) Independent Directors Board
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(i} Executive Directors

Approval of majority of the
Board

Grounds provided in the
Company’s Manual of
Corporate Governance

(ii) Non-Executive Directors

Approval of majority of the
Board

Grounds provided in the
Company’s Manual of
Corporate Governance

(iii) Independent Directors
-]

(i) Executive Directors

Approval of majority of the
Board

Approval of 2/3 votes of the
shareholders at a meeting duly
called for the purpose

Grounds provided in the
Company’s Manual of
Corporate Governance

Grounds provided in the
Company’s Manual of
Corporate Governance

(i) Non-Executive Directors

Approval of 2/3 votes of the
shareholders at a meeting duly
called for the purpose

Grounds provided in the
Company’s Manual of
Corporate Governance

(iii) Independent Directors

(i} Executive Directors

Approval of 2/3 votes of the
shareholders at a meeting duly
called for the purpose

Election by the Board

Grounds provided in the
Company’s Manual of
Corporate Governance

Removal of ground for
suspension/disqualification

(ii) Non-Executive Directors

Election by the Board

Removal of ground for
suspension/disqualification

(iii} Independent Directors

(i) Executive Directors

Election by the Board

Approval of majority of the
Board

Removal of ground for
suspension/disqualification

Grounds provided in the
Company’s Manual of
Corporate Governance and
commission of acts
detrimental to the welfare of
the Company

{ii) Non-Executive Directors

Approval of majority of the
Board

Grounds provided in the
Company’s Manual of
Corporate Governance and
commission of acts
detrimental to the welfare of
the Company

{iii) Independent Directors

Approval of majority of the
Board

Grounds provided in the
Company’s Manual of
Corporate Governance and
commission of acts
detrimental to the welfare of

the Company

Voting Result of the last Annual General Meeting

George L. Go 10,843,274,473
Wilfrido V. Vergara 10,843,274,473
Ramon A. Recto 10,843,274,473
Victor C. Macalincag 10,843,274,473
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Antonio B. Alvarez 10,843,274,473
Conrado G. Marty 10,843,274,473
Isidro A. Consunji 10,843,274,473
Patrick Warren D. Go 10,843,274,473
Eugene B. Macalalag 10,843,274,473
David O. Chua 10,843,274,473
Romuald U. Dy Tang 10,843,274,473
Salvador P. Escano 10,843,274,473
Melvin O. Vergara 10,843,274,473
Christopher Brian C. Dy 10,843,274,473

Orientation and Education Program
(a) Disclose details of the company’s orientation program for new directors, if any.
N/A

(b) State any in-house training and external courses attended by Directors and Senior Management2 for the
past three {3) years:

N/A

(¢} Continuing education programs for directors: programs and seminars and roundtables attended during the
year.

B. CODE OF BUSINESS CONDUCT & ETHICS

e e e e et g et

1) Discuss briefly the company’s policies on the following business conduct or ethics affecting directors, senior
management and employees:

(a) Conflict of Interest

Prohibited

1 prohibited

Prohibited

(b) Conduct of
Business and Fair
Dealings

Allowed to authorize
use but not allowed to
use Company funds,
assets and information
for personal benefit

Has discretion to use
Company funds, assets
and information on
matters relating to the
Company

With proper authorization,
allowed to use Company
funds, assets and
information on matters
relating to the Company

{c) Receipt of gifts
from third parties

Ensure that

management complies
with employment and
labor laws and policies

Expected to ensure
compliance with
employment and labor
laws

Employees are assured that
the Company shall at all
times comply with
employment and labor laws
and policies

(d) Compliance with
Laws & Regulations

Subject to disciplinary
action based on
Manual of Corporate

Subject to disciplinary

action based on the Labor

Code of the Philippines

Subject to disciplinary
action based on the Labor
Code of the Philippines and

2 senior Management refers to the CEO and other persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing
and controlling the activities of the company.
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(e) Respect for Trade
Secrets/Use of
Non-public
Information

Governance and code of conduct code of conduct
The Company The Company encourages | The Company encourages
encourages full full disclosure of all full disclosure of all matters

disclosure of all
matters affecting the
Company and provides
full confidentiality on
whistleblower matters

matters affecting the
Company and provides
full confidentiality on
whistleblower matters

affecting the Company and
provides full confidentiality
on whistleblower matters

(f) Use of Company
Funds, Assets and
Information

Allowed to authorize
use but not allowed to
use Company funds,
assets and information
for personal benefit

Has discretion to use
Company funds, assets
and information on
matters relating to the
Company

With proper authorization,
allowed to use Company
funds, assets and
information on matters
relating to the Company

{g) Employment &
Labor Laws &
Policies

Ensure that

management complies
with employment and
labor laws and policies

Expected to ensure
compliance with
employment and labor
laws

Employees are assured that
the Company shall at all
times comply with
employment and labor laws
and policies

(h) Disciplinary action

Subject to disciplinary
action based on
Manual of Corporate
Governance

Subject to disciplinary

action based on the Labor

Code of the Philippines
and code of conduct

Subject to disciplinary
action based on the Labor
Code of the Philippines and
code of conduct

(i) Whistle Blower

The Company
encourages full
disclosure of all
matters affecting the
Company and provides
full confidentiality on
whistleblower matters

The Company encourages

full disclosure of all
matters affecting the
Company and provides
full confidentiality on
whistleblower matters

The Company encourages
full disclosure of all matters
affecting the Company and
provides full confidentiality
on whistleblower matters

(j) Conflict Resolution

The Company has
established and
committed itself to an
alternative dispute
resolution system so
that conflicts and
difference with
counterparties,
particularly with
shareholders and other
key stakeholders,
would be settled in a
fair and expeditious
manner

The Company has
established and
committed itself to an
alternative dispute

resolution system so that

conflicts and difference
with counterparties,
particularly with
shareholders and other
key stakeholders, would
be settled in a fair and
expeditious manner

The Company has
established and committed
itself to an alternative
dispute resolution system so
that conflicts and difference
with counterparties,
particularly with
shareholders and other key
stakeholders, would be
settled in a fair and
expeditious manner

2) Has the code of ethics or conduct been disseminated to all directors, senior management and employees?

Yes.

3) Discuss how the company implements and monitors compliance with the code of ethics or conduct.

The Company has a designated officer responsible for ensuring compliance with its code of ethics or conduct and
compliance with all relevant laws, rules and regulations.
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4) Related Party Transactions

(a) Policies and Procedures

Describe the company’s policies and procedures for the review, approval or ratification, monitoring and
recording of related party transactions between and among the company and its parent, joint ventures,
subsidiaries, associates, affiliates, substantial stockholders, officers and directors, including their spouses,
children and dependent siblings and parents and of interlocking director relationships of members of the
Board.

\

(1) Parent Company N/A

(2) Joint Ventures Management reviews the feasibility of the joint venture and
recommends to the Board its approval.

(3) Subsidiaries Transactions with subsidiaries are ensured to be arms-length
and must be authorized and approved by the Board.

(4) Entities Under Common Control Transactions with entities under common control are
ensured to be arms-length and must be authorized and
approved by the Board.

(5) Substantial Stockholders Transactions with substantial stockholders are ensured to be
arms-length and must be authorized and approved by the
Board.

(6) Officers including Transactions with officers and their relatives are kept to a

spouse/children/siblings/parents | minimum level and ensured to be arms-length and must be

authorized and approved by the Board.

(7) Directors including Transactions with directors and their relatives are kept to a
spouse/children/siblings/parents | minimum level and ensured to be arms-length and must be

authorized and approved by the Board.

(8) Interlocking director relationship | Interlocking director relationships are not encouraged but
of Board of Directors must be kept in arms-length and not detrimental to the

Company.

(b) Conflict of Interest
(i) Directors/Officers and 5% or more Shareholders

Identify any actual or probable conflict of interest to which directors/officers/5% or more shareholders
may be involved.

None.
S| ua
Name of Director/s N/A
Name of Officer/s N/A
Name of Significant Shareholders N/A

(ii) Mechanism

Describe the mechanism laid down to detect, determine and resolve any possible conflict of interest
between the company and/or its group and their directors, officers and significant shareholders.

ic g
Directors and officers are required to disclose to the
Company any actual or potential conflict of interest as these
Company are prohibited while conflicts of interest involving
shareholders are subject to voluntary disclosure. In case of
conflict of interest, Company welfare is of paramount
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5)

6)

concern and all actions are geared towards maintenance of
integrity of the Company.

Directors and officers are required to disclose to the
Company any actual or potential conflict of interest with
any member of the Group as these are prohibited while
Group conflicts of interest involving shareholders are subject to
voluntary disclosure. In case of conflict of interest, Company
welfare is of paramount concern and all actions are geared
towards maintenance of integrity of the Company.

Family, Commercial and Contractual Relations

(a) Indicate, if applicable, any relation of a family,’ commercial, contractual or business nature that exists
between the holders of significant equity (5% or more), to the extent that they are known to the company:

None.

(b) Indicate, if applicable, any relation of a commercial, contractual or business nature that exists between the
holders of significant equity (5% or more) and the company:

None.

(c) Indicate any shareholder agreements that may impact on the control, ownership and strategic direction of
the company:

None.

N/A

Alternative Dispute Resolution

Describe the alternative dispute resolution system adopted by the company for the last three (3) years in
amicably settling conflicts or differences between the corporation and its stockholders, and the corporation and
third parties, including regulatory authorities.

Disputes with stockholders are handled
internally through the Board of Directors.
Contracts with third parties contain
Corporation & Third Parties alternative modes of dispute resolution
such as mediation and arbitration.

Corporation & Stockholders

Conflicts with regulatory agencies are
handled by management through
effective communication with the
regulatory agency.

Corporation & Regulatory Authorities

® Family relationship up to the fourth civil degree either by consanguinity or affinity.
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C. BOARD MEETINGS & ATTENDANCE

1) Are Board of Directors’ meetings scheduled before or at the beginning of the year?
Board meetings are held at least once every quarter.

2) Attendance of Directors

Chairman George L. Go May 26, 2015 4 3 75%
Vice Chairman Wilfrido V. Vergara May 26, 2015 4 4 100%
Member Romuald U. Dy Tang May 26, 2015 4 4 100%
Member Antonio B. Alvarez May 26, 2015 4 4 100%
Member Eugene B. Macalalag May 26, 2015 4 4 100%
Member Patrick Warren D. Go May 26, 2015 4 4 100%
Member Isidro A. Consunji May 26, 2015 4 2 50%
Member Conrado G. Marty May 26, 2015 4 3 75%
Member David O. Chua May 26, 2015 4 4 100%
Member Melvin O. Vergara May 26, 2015 4 3 75%
Member Salvador P. Escano May 26, 2015 4 4 100%
Member Christopher Brian C. Dy May 26, 2015 4 4 100%
Independent Victor C. Macalincag May 26, 2015 4 4 100%
Independent Ramon A. Recto May 26, 2015 4 3 75%
Member Nixon Y. Lim May 26, 2015 4 3 75%

3) Do non-executive directors have a separate meeting during the year without the presence of any executive? If
yes, how many times?

No.

4) Is the minimum quorum requirement for Board decisions set at two-thirds of board members? Please explain.

For corporate actions requiring majority vote, a majority of the Board is sufficient. In cases required by the
Corporation law to have two-thirds majority, then 2/3 of the Board of Directors must approve and authorize said
corporate action.

5) Access to Information
{(a) How many days in advance are board papers’ for board of directors meetings provided to the board?

Notice and agenda is provided to the directors at least one week before the scheduled meetings. Materials
for the Board meetings are provided at the meeting.

{(b) Do board members have independent access to Management and the Corporate Secretary?

Yes. Directors are encouraged to approach management and corporate secretary on any matter concerning
the Company.

{c) State the policy of the role of the company secretary. Does such role include assisting the Chairman in
preparing the board agenda, facilitating training of directors, keeping directors updated regarding any
relevant statutory and regulatory changes, etc?

% Board papers consist of complete and adequate information about the matters to be taken in the board meeting.
information includes the background or explanation on matters brought before the Board, disclosures, budgets,
forecasts and internal financial documents.
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The Corporate Secretary is responsible in preparing and sending notices on the board agenda. He/She is
required to be aware of the laws, rules and regulations necessary in the performance of his duties and
responsibilities. The Corporate Secretary is the custodian of the Company’s corporate documents. He ensures
that all materials for Board meetings are in order, takes down the minutes of meetings, ensures compliance
with disclosure, reporting requirements of the Philippine Stock Exchange {PSE) and SEC.

(d) Is the company secretary trained in legal, accountancy or company secretarial practices? Please explain
should the answer be in the negative.

The Company’s incumbent Corporate Secretary is a lawyer.

(e) Committee Procedures

Disclose whether there is a procedure that Directors can avail of to enable them to get information
necessary to be able to prepare in advance for the meetings of different committees:

ves [ ] No

Executive N/A
Audit N/A
Nomination N/A
Remuneration N/A
Others (specify) N/A

6) External Advice

Indicate whether or not a procedure exists whereby directors can receive external advice and, if so, provide
details:

Legal Advice Directors can engage external lawyers to advice them on legality of
proposed corporate action to ensure the validity of their consent to such
actions.

Tax Advice Directors can engage external tax consultants to advice them on tax
matters.

7) Change/s in existing policies

Indicate, if applicable, any change/s introduced by the Board of Directors (during its most recent term) on
existing policies that may have an effect on the business of the company and the reason/s for the change:

For the year 2015, no change has been introduced by the Board on existing policies having a material effect
on the business of the Company.
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1)

2) Remuneration Policy and Structure for Executive and Non-Executive Directors

REMUNERATION MATTERS

Remuneration Process

Disclose the process used for determining the remuneration
compensated management officers:

(1) Fixed remuneration

Industry standards

Industry standards

(2) Variable remuneration

Company performance;
individual performance

Company performance;
individual performance

(3) Per diem allowance

Industry standards

Industry standards

Company performance;

Company performance;

(4) Bonus individual performance individual performance

(5) Stock O.ptIOI?S and Company performance; Company performance;
other financial I e
. individual performance individual performance
instruments

(6) Others (specify) N/A N/A

of the CEO and the four (4) most highly

Disclose the company’s policy on remuneration and the structure of its compensation package. Explain how
the compensation of Executive and Non-Executive Directors is calculated.

Executive Directors

Compensation shall
be determined and
apportioned among
the directors in such
manner as the
Board may deem
proper

Stock options may
be awarded based
on satisfaction of
performance
requirements

per diem allowance for
attendance at each
meeting of the Board

Stock options

Total per diem
received by all
members of the
Board shall not
exceed 10% of the
net income of the
Company during
the preceding year

Terms and
conditions of the
stock option plan
are determined by
the Board,
provided no
change in the
maximum number
of shares or any
decrease in
exercise price shall
be effected
without
stockholders’
approval

Non-Executive Directors

Compensation shall
be determined and

apportioned among
the directors in such

Per diem allowance for
attendance at each
meeting of the Board

Total per diem
received by all
members of the
Board shall not
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manner as the
Board may deem
proper

Stock options may
be awarded based
on satisfaction of
performance
requirements

Stock Options

exceed 10% of the
net income of the
Company during
the preceding year

Terms and
conditions of the
stock option plan
are determined by
the Board,
provided no
changein the
maximum number
of shares or any
decrease in
exercise price shall
be effected
without
stockholders’
approval. Terms
and conditions of
the stock option
plan are
determined by the
Board, provided no
change in the
maximum number
of shares or any
decrease in
exercise price shall
be effected
without
stockholders’
approval

Do stockholders have the opportunity to approve the decision on total remuneration (fees, allowances,

benefits-in-kind and other emoluments) of board of directors? Provide details for the last three (3) years.

Yes. The grant of stock options was presented to the stockholders for their approval.

Stock Options

May 31, 2002

3) Aggregate Remuneration

Complete the following table on the aggregate remuneration accrued during the most recent year (December

31,2015):

{a) Fixed Remuneration N/A N/A N/A
(b) Variable Remuneration N/A N/A N/A
(c) Per diem Allowance Php781,667.00 Php1,795,000.00
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(d) Bonuses N/A Php2,354,000.00 N/A

{e) Stock Options and/or

other financial N/A N/A N/A
instruments
{(f) Others {Specify) N/A N/A N/A

861,666.64 1,726,666.64

1) Advances N/A N/A N/A
2) Credit granted N/A N/A N/A
3) Pension Plan/s
Contributions N/A N/A N/A
(d) Pension Plans,
Obligations incurred N/A N/A N/A
(e} Life Insurance Premium N/A N/A N/A
(f) Hospitalization Plan N/A N/A N/A
(g) CarPlan N/A N/A N/A
(h) Others (Specify) N/A N/A N/A
N/A N/A N/A

4) Stock Rights, Options and Warrants
(a) Board of Directors

Complete the following table, on the members of the company’s Board of Directors who own or are
entitled to stock rights, options or warrants over the company’s shares:

No stock option has been granted from the time the stock option plan was approved.

N/A

(b) Amendments of Incentive Programs

Indicate any amendments and discontinuation of any incentive programs introduced, including the criteria
used in the creation of the program, Disclose whether these are subject to approval during the Annual
Stockholders’ Meeting:

None.
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5) Remuneration of Management

Identify the five (5) members of management who are not at the same time executive directors and indicate
the total remuneration received during the financial year:

Members of Management are at the same time executive directors of the Company.

N/A

BOARD COMMITTEES

Number of Members, Functions and Responsibilities

Provide details on the number of members of each committee, its functions, key responsibilities and the
power/authority delegated to it by the Board:

Executive N/A Make decisions | Decide on Pass and act
on matters matters that it upon such
affecting the may be matters as
general policy entrusted with the Board
of the by the Board. may entrust
Corporation. to it for

action,
between
meetings of
Board.
Audit Being | Perform Check all Pre-approve
finalize | oversight financial reports | all audit
d financial against its plans, scope
management compliance with | and
functions both the internal | frequency
specifically in financial one{1)
the areas of management month before
managing handbook and the conduct
credit, market, pertinent of external
liquidity, accounting audit
operational, standards,
legal and other | including
risks of the regulatory
Corporation, requirements;
and crisis Develop a
management transparent
financial
management
system that will
ensure the
integrity of
internal contro!
activities
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throughout the

company

through a step-
by-step
procedures and
policies
handbook that
will be used by
the entire
organization.

Nomination 2 2 N/A Review and Pre-screen and Assess the
evaluate the shortlist all qualifications
qualifications of | candidates of all
all persons nominated to candidates
nominated to become member | nominated to
the Board and of the Board become
other member of
appointments the Board
that require
Board approval

Remuneration 2 1 N/A Establish a Establish a Designate
formal and formal and amount of
transparent transparent remuneration
procedure for procedure for , which shall
developing a developing a be sufficient
policy on policy on level to
executive executive attract and
remuneration remuneration retain
and for fixing and for fixing the | directors and
the remuneration officers who
remuneration packages of are needed
packages of corporate to run the
individual officers and company
directors, if any, | directors, and successfully;
and officers provide

oversight over
remuneration of
senior
management
and other key
personnel
ensuring that
compensation is
consistent with
the
Corporation’s
culture, strategy
and environment

Disallow any
director to
decide his or
her own
remuneration

2) Committee Members

(a) Executive Committee

Chairman

Wilfrido V. Vergara

May 26, 2015 44

39

89% 14

Member (ED)

Antonio B. Alvarez

May 26, 2015 44

44

100% 21
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Romuald Dy Tang May 26, 2015 44 43 98% 8
Member (NED) | George L. Go May 26, 2015 a4 37 84% 21
Member (ID) Victor C. Macalincag May 26, 2015 44 41 93% i3

{b) Audit Committee

Chairman Victor C. Macalincag May 26, 2015 1 1 100% 13

Member (NED) | Conrado G. Marty May 26, 2015 1 1 100% 10
Member (ID) Ramon A. Recto May 26, 2015 1 1 100% 14

Disclose the profile or qualifications of the Audit Committee members.

Mr. Victor C. Macalincag, 80 years old, Filipino, has been an Independent Director of the Corporation since May
27, 2003. He is the Chairman of the Audit Committee and a Member of the Executive Committee, Nominations
Committee and the Compensation and Remuneration Committee of the Corporation. He currently holds
Directorship ion the following Subsidiaries: Healthcare Systems of Asia Philippines, Inc. and FortMED Medical
Clinics Makati, Inc. Mr. Macalincag is also an Independent Director of Semirara Mining and Power Corporation,
Republic Glass Corp., SEM Calaca Power Corporation, ISM Corporation, Atok Big Wedge Corporation, Alphaland
Corporation and Philweb Corporation. He is also a director of One Wealth Nation {OWN) Balanced Fund and a
Director of Asian Alliance Investment Corporation. He was the President of Trade & investment Development
Corporation of the Philippines which is presently known as PHIL EXIM {formerly PhilGuarantee) from 1991 until his
resignation in 2001. He was the Deputy Minister of Finance from 1981 to 1986 and Undersecretary of Finance
from 1986 to 1991. He also held the position of National Treasurer from 1981 to 1988. Other positions he held
were as follows: Director of Home Guaranty Corporation, Philippine Overseas Construction Board, Philippine Long
Distance Telephone Co. (PLDT) from 1988 to 1995, National Power Corporation from 1978 to 1986 and the
Philippine Deposit Insurance Corporation from 1983 to 1991. He was also Chairman of Pilipinas Bank and
Executive Vice- President of Land Bank of the Philippines. Mr. Macalincag is a Certified public Accountant. He has
a Bachelor of Science in Business Administration from the University of the East. He also completed academic
requirements for a Masteral Degree in Economics from the same University. He finished a fellowship program
conducted by Economic Development Institute of the World Bank, Washington D.C. in1971.

Conrado G. Marty 70 years old, Filipino, has been a member of the Board of Directors of the Corporation since
2006. Mr. Marty is also a member of the Audit Committee of the Corporation. He is the President of Universal
LMS Finance and Leasing Corporation and is also the Vice Chairman of Hyundai Asia Resources, Inc. Mr. Marty
holds a Bachelor in Business Administration Major in Accounting from University of the East and is a Certified
Public Accountant. He obtained his Master in Business Administration major in Finance from the Wharton School,
University of Pennsylvania.

Ramon A. Recto 83 years old, Filipino, has been an Independent Director of the Corporation since May 2002. He
has been a Member of the Audit Committee and the Nominations Committee since May 2003. Mr. Recto was the
President of Marcventures Holdings, Inc. and Lepanto Consolidated Mining Corporation. Mr. Recto obtained both
of his Bachelor’s Degrees in Electrical Engineering and in Mechanical Engineering from the University of the
philippines. He also earned his Master’s Degree in Industrial Management from the same University.

Describe the Audit Committee’s responsibility relative to the external auditor.

The Audit Committee shall perform direct interface functions with the external auditors. The Audit Committee shall
also pre-approve all audit plans, scope and frequency one (1) month before the conduct of external audit. The Audit
Committee reviews all proposals for services to be rendered by the independent auditor.
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{c) Nomination Committee

Chairman George L. Go May 26, 2015 1 1 100% 21
Member (ED) Antonio A. Alvarez May 26, 2015 1 1 100% 21
Romuald U. Dy Tang May 26, 2015 1 1 100% 8
Member (NED) | Wilfrido V. Vergara May 26, 2015 1 1 100% 2
Member (ID) Ramon A. Recto May 26, 2015 1 1 100% 14
Victor C. Macalincag May 26, 2015 1 1 100% 13

{(d) Remuneration Committee

Chairman Wilfrido V. Vergara May 26, 2015 1 1 100% 2
Member (ED) Antonio B. Alvarez May 26, 2015 1 1 100% 21

Romuald U. Dy Tang May 26, 2015 1 1 100% 8
Member {NED) | George L. Go May 26, 2015 1 1 100% 21
Member (ID} Victor C. Macalincag May 26, 2015 1 1 100% 13

(e) Others (Specify)

Provide the same information on all other committees constituted by the Board of Directors:

N/A

Chairman

Member (ED)

Member (NED)

Member (ID)

Member

3) Changes in Committee Members

Indicate any changes in committee membership that occurred during the year and the reason for the changes:

These changes in committee membership occurred during the year 2015:

Executive N/A N/A
Audit N/A N/A
Nomination N/A N/A
Remuneration N/A N/A
Others {specify) N/A N/A
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4) Work Done and Issues Addressed

Describe the work done by each committee and the significant issues addressed during the year.

Executive Regularly met with Management to No significant issues within the
update and get guidance from the responsibility of the Executive
committee on day-to-day operations | Committee arose during the year
and ordinary course of business
transactions of the Company
Audit Provided oversight responsibility for | No significant issues within the
the Company’s financial reporting responsibility of the Audit
process, and regulatory compliance | Committee arose during the year
Nomination Reviewed and evaluated No significant issues within the
qualifications of nominees to the responsibility of the Nomination
Board; pre-screened and shortlisted | Committee arose during the year
all candidates nominated to the

Board

Remuneration Designation of amount of No significant issues within the
remuneration to attract and retain responsibility of the Remuneration
directors and officers Committee arose during the year

5) Committee Program

Provide a list of programs that each committee plans to undertake to address relevant issues in the
improvement or enforcement of effective governance for the coming year.

Executive None No significant issues notes
Audit None No significant issues notes
Nomination None No significant issues notes
Remuneration None No significant issues notes

F. RISK MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

1) Disclose the following:
(a) Overall risk management philosophy of the company;
Risk management rests on the Board who is responsible for establishing and maintaining a sound risk
management system. The Board assumes oversight over the entire risk management process. In addition, the
Board’s Audit Committee performs oversight functions over Management's activities in the areas of
managing credit, market, liquidity, operation, legal and other risks of the Company, and crisis management,

including requiring regular report from Management on risk exposures and risk management activities.

(b) A statement that the directors have reviewed the effectiveness of the risk management system and
commenting on the adequacy thereof

The Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the Company’s risk management system and has found the same
adequate.

(c) Period covered by the review

As of December 31, 2015

26




(d) How often the risk management system is reviewed and the directors’ criteria for assessing its

effectiveness

The Company’s risk management system is reviewed at least annually by the Board, with the aim of
constantly improving its corporate governance.

(e) Where no review was conducted during the year, an explanation why not.

N/A
2) Risk Policy

(a) Company

Give a general description of the company’s risk management policy, setting out and assessing the risk/s
covered by the system (ranked according to priority), along with the objective behind the policy for each
kind of risk:

Credit Risk

To deal only with credit worthy
counterparties

To manage and control credit
exposures within acceptable
parameters, ensure continuous
monitoring of compliance with
arrangements or credit terms
granted to counterparties

Liquidity Risk

(a) To ensure that adequate
funding is available at all times;
(b) to meet commitments as they
arise without incurring
unnecessary costs; (c) to be able
to access funding when needed at
the least possible costs; and {d) to
maintain an adequate time
spread of refinancing maturities

Market Risk

Manage risk arising from changes
in value of investments carried at
fair market value through profit or
loss by monitoring changes in the
market price of the investments

To manage and control market
risk exposures within acceptable
parameters, while optimizing
return

(b) Group

Give a general description of the Group’s risk management policy, setting out and assessing the risk/s
covered by the system (ranked according to priority), along with the objective behind the policy for each
kind of risk:

Credit Risk

To deal only with credit worthy
counterparties

To manage and control credit
exposures within acceptable
parameters, ensure continuous
monitoring of compliance with
arrangements or credit terms
granted to counterparties

Liquidity Risk

Ensure that liquidity risk is kept
within acceptable levels

(a) To ensure that adequate
funding is available at all times;
{b) to meet commitments as they
arise without incurring
unnecessary costs; (c) to be able
to access funding when needed at
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the least possible costs; and (d) to
maintain an adequate time
spread of refinancing maturities
Market Risk Manage risk arising from changes | To manage and control market

in value of investments carried at | risk exposures within acceptable
fair market value through profit or | parameters, while optimizing

loss by monitoring changes in the | return

market price of the investments

{c) Minority Shareholders

indicate the principal risk of the exercise of controlling shareholders’ voting power.

sk inor a |

In the event of exercise of controlling shareholders’ voting power, they may overcome the vote of
the minority stockholder in case the proposed corporate actions approved are in contrast with
each other, in effect preventing the minority stockholder to have its choice declared as the
approved corporate action.

3) Control System Set Up

(a) Company

Briefly describe the control systems set up to assess, manage and control the main issue/s faced by the
company:

Structure: oceaure ti n
This refers to the risk of financial The Company continuously monitors
loss to the Company if a customer | compliance with the arrangements
or counterparty to a financial or credit terms granted to
instrument fails to meet its counterparties. Indication of default
contractual obligations. Generally, | identified is discussed and resolved
the maximum credit risk exposure | during management meetings.

of financial assets is the carrying Where available at a reasonable
amount of the financial assets as cost, external credit ratings and/or
shown on the consolidated reports on customers and other
statements of financial position. counterparties are obtained and
used.
Liquidity Risk This refers to the risk that the To manage this risk, the Company

Company will encounter difficulty | ensures that it has adequate funding
in meeting obligations associated available at all times, it meets

with financial liabilities that are commitments as they arise without
settled in cash or another financial | incurring unnecessary costs, it is able
asset to access funding when needed at

the least possible cost, and it
maintains adequate time spread of
refinancing maturities

Market Risk This refers to the risk that changes | The Company manages its risk
in market prices will affect the arising from changes in value of
values of the Company's holdings | investments carried at fair value
of financial instruments. The through profit or loss by monitoring
Company’s market risk is limited the changes in the market price of
to its investments carried at fair the investments.

value through profit or loss and
AFS financial statements.
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(b) Group

Briefly describe the control systems set up to assess, manage and control the main issue/s faced by the
company:

|

Credit Risk

This refers to the risk of financial
loss to the Group if a customer or
counterparty to a financial
instrument fails to meet its
contractual obligations, and arises
principally from the Group’s
receivables. Generally, the
maximum credit risk exposure of
financial assets is the carrying
amount of the financial assets as
shown on the consolidated
statements of financial position.

The Group continuously monitors

compliance with the arrangements
or credit terms granted to
counterparties. Indication of default
identified is discussed and resolved
during management meetings.
Where available at a reasonable
cost, external credit ratings and/or
reports on customers and other
counterparties are obtained and
used.

Liquidity Risk

This refers to the risk that the
Group will encounter difficulty in
meeting obligations associated
with financial liabilities that are
settled in cash or another financial
asset

To manage this risk, the Group
ensures that it has adequate funding
available at all times, it meets
commitments as they arise without
incurring unnecessary costs, it is able
to access funding when needed at
the least possible cost, and it
maintains adequate time spread of
refinancing maturities

Market Risk

This refers to the risk that changes
in market prices will affect the
values of the Group’s holdings of
financial instruments. The Group's
market risk is limited to its
investments carried at fair value
through profit or loss and AFS
financial statements.

The Group manages its risk arising
from changes in value of
investments carried at fair value
through profit or loss by monitoring
the changes in the market price of
the investments.

{c) Committee

Identify the committee or any other body of corporate governance in charge of laying down and
supervising these control mechanisms, and give details of its functions:

Audit Committee

Oversight functions over

activities

Management’s risk-related

Performs oversight functions
over Management's activities
in the areas of managing
credit, market, liquidity,
operation, legal and other risks
of the Company, and crisis
management, including
requiring regular report from
Management on risk
exposures and risk
management activities
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G. INTERNAL AUDIT AND CONTROL

IARE CLAA Dot i AR S st

1)

2)

Internal Control System

Disclose the following information pertaining to the internal control system of the company:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Explain how the internal control system is defined for the company

The Company has in place an independent internal audit function, performed by an internal Auditor or a
group of Internal Auditors, through which its Board, senior management, and stockholders shall provide with
reasonable assurance that its key organizational and procedural controls are effective, appropriate and
complied with.

The minimum internal control mechanisms for management’s operational responsibility center on the
CEO/President, being ultimately accountable for the Company organizational and procedural controls.

The scope and particulars of a system of effective organizational and procedural controls shall be based on
the following factors: a) the nature and complexity of business and business culture; b) the volume, size and
complexity of transactions; c) the degree of risk; d) the degree of centralization and delegation of authority;
the extent and effectiveness of information technology; and e} the extent of regulatory compliance.

A statement that the directors have reviewed the effectiveness of the internal control system and whether
they consider them effective and adequate

The Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the internal control system, as provided in the Company’s
Manual of Corporate Governance, and considers the same effective and adequate. Since the implementation
of its Manual of Corporate Governance in 2003, compliance with it has been satisfactory and no sanction has
been imposed on any member of its organization for deviating therefrom.

Period covered by the review

Year ending December 31, 2015.

How often internal controls are reviewed and the directors’ criteria for assessing the effectiveness of the
internal control system

Internal controls are reviewed at least annually by the Board, with the aim of constantly improving its
corporate governance.

Where no review was conducted during the year, an explanation why not.

N/A

Internal Audit

(a)

Role, Scope and Internal Audit Function

Give a general description of the role, scope of internal audit work and other details of the internal audit
function.

Ensures that key The scope and Reports and
organizational and particulars of a submits to the
procedural controls | system of effective Audit Committee
are effective, organizational and and
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appropriate and
complied with

procedural controls
shall be based on
the following
factors: a) the
nature and
complexity of
business and
business culture; b)

Management an
annual report on
the internal audit
department’s
activities,
responsibilities
and performance
relative to audit

the volume, size plans and

and complexity of strategies, as
transactions; c} the approved by the
degree of risk; d) Audit

the degree of Committee,
centralization and including
delegation of significant risk
authority; the exposures,
extent and control issues,
effectiveness of and such other
information matters as may
technology; and e) be requested by
the extent of the Board and
regulatory Management.
compliance.

(b) Do the appointment and/or removal of the Internal Auditor or the accounting /auditing firm or corporation
to which the internal audit function is outsourced require the approval of the audit committee?

Yes. The Audit Committee recommends for Board approval the appointment and/or removal of the Internal
Auditor.

(c) Discuss the internal auditor’s reporting relationship with the audit committee. Does the internal auditor
have direct and unfettered access to the board of directors and the audit committee and to all records,
properties and personnel?

Reports and submits to the Audit Committee and Management an annual report on the internal audit
department’s activities, responsibilities and performance relative to audit plans and strategies, as approved
by the Audit Committee, including significant risk exposures, control issues, and such other matters as may be
requested by the Board and Management.

(d) Resignation, Re-assignment and Reasons

Disclose any resignation/s or re-assignment of the internal audit staff (including those employed by the
third-party auditing firm) and the reason/s for them.

None.

N/A

{e) Progress against Plans, Issues, Findings and Examination Trends

State the internal audit’s progress against plans, significant issues, significant findings and examination
trends.

5 wssues” are compliance matters that arise from adopting different interpretations.
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[The relationship among progress, plans, issues and findings should be viewed as an internal control review
cycle which involves the following step-by-step activities:

1) Preparation of an audit plan inclusive of a timeline and milestones;

2) Conduct of examination based on the plan;

3) Evaluation of the progress in the implementation of the plan;

4) Documentation of issues and findings as a result of the examination;

5) Determination of the pervasive issues and findings (“examination trends”) based on single year

result and/or year-to-year results;
6) Conduct of the foregoing procedures on a regular basis.]

Audit Control Policies and Procedures

Disclose all internal audit controls, policies and procedures that have been established by the company and
the result of an assessment as to whether the established controls, policies and procedures have been
implemented under the column “Implementation.”

Establish the internal audit function as a separate unit in the Imolemented
company which would be overseen at the Board level P
Have a comprehensive enterprise-wide compliance program

. P - P comp prog Implemented
that is annually reviewed
Institutionalize quality service programs for the internal audit

. Implemented
function
Have in place a mechanism that allows employees, suppliers

. s Implemented

and other stakeholders to raise valid issues P v
Have the responsible officers attest in writing, at least
annually, that a sound internal audit, control and compliance Implemented
system is in place and working effectively
Timely disclosure of financial reports Implemented

(g) Mechanisms and Safeguards

State the mechanism established by the company to safeguard the independence of the auditors, financial
analysts, investment banks and rating agencies {example, restrictions on trading in the company’s shares
and imposition of internal approval procedures for these transactions, limitation on the non-audit services
that an external auditor may provide to the company):

EXTERNAL: May not serve at the same time | Non-interference None. Non-interference
as an internal auditor of the Company by the Company by the Company
EXTERNAL: Rotation of handling partner and freedom of and freedom of
every five years or earlier analysts to rating agencies to
EXTERNAL: Stockholders’ approval for publish their work publish their
appointment of external auditor, following without pressure work without
audit committee recommendation or scrutiny pressure or
INTERNAL AND EXTERNAL: Audit findings scrutiny

are assured free from interference from

Management

8 “Findings” are those with concrete basis under the company’s policies and rules.
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(h) State the officers (preferably the Chairman and the CEO) who will have to attest to the company’s full
compliance with the SEC Code of Corporate Governance. Such confirmation must state that all directors,
officers and employees of the company have been given proper instruction on their respective duties as
mandated by the Code and that internal mechanisms are in place to ensure that compliance.

The Compliance Officer with the Chairman will attest to the Company’s full compliance with the SEC Code of

Corporate Governance.

H. ROLE OF STAKEHOLDERS

1) Disclose the company’s policy and activities relative to the following:

Customers' welfare

Provide useful products and services
that are valued by customers

Dedicated officer overseeing
operations of its subsidiaries; for
its real estate subsidiaries, close
communication with its sales
representatives to ensure that
customer complaints/queries are
addressed at the soonest possible
time

Supplier/contractor selection
practice

Cooperative efforts with suppliers
and contractors to ensure timely and
complete delivery of the Company’s
goods and services to its customers

Conduct of due diligence in
selecting suppliers/contractors;
ensuring strict compliance by
both the Company and its
suppliers/contractors with the
terms of the contract, including
timely payment

Environmentally friendly value-
chain

Conduct operations in an economic,
social and environmentally
sustainable manner

The Company is currently in the
process of adopting and
implementing its community
involvement and environment-
related programs.

Community interaction

Conduct operations in an economic,
social and environmentally
sustainable manner

The Company is currently in the
process of adopting and
implementing its community
involvement and environment-
related programs.

Anti-corruption programmes and
procedures?

Compliance with laws, rules and
regulations dealing with anti-graft
and corruption

The Company encourages full
disclosure of all matters affecting
the Company and provides full
confidentiality on whistleblower
matters

Safeguarding creditors' rights

Full compliance with terms of credit
agreements

Ensuring timely payment
and compliance with terms and
conditions of the debt agreement

2) Does the company have a separate corporate responsibility

report/section?

(CR) report/section or sustainability

The Company is currently in the process of adopting and implementing its community involvement and

environment-related programs.

3) Performance-enhancing mechanisms for employee participation.

(a) What are the company’s policy for its employees’ safety, health, and welfare?
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The Company respects and protects the rights and interests of its employees, recognizing their valuable role
to the growth of the Company.

(b) Show data relating to health, safety and welfare of its employees.

The Company is compliant with relevant Philippine labor and employment laws on employee safety, health
and welfare, including those relating to labor standards, government insurance, etc.

(c) State the company’s training and development programmes for its employees. Show the data.

Employees of the Company’s affiliate, FortMed Medical Clinics Makati, Inc., undergo regular training in
respect of medical and laboratory procedures.

(d) State the company’s reward/compensation policy that accounts for the performance of the company
beyond short-term financial measures

The Company has in place a merit-based performance incentive mechanism (such as its stock option plan and
bonus/incentive packages) that awards and incentivizes its employees, and at the same time aligns their
interests with those of the shareholders.

4) What are the company’s procedures for handling complaints by employees concerning illegal (including

1.

corruption) and unethical behaviour? Explain how employees are protected from retaliation.
The Company has established and committed itself to an alternative dispute resolution system so that conflicts
and difference with counterparties, particularly with shareholders and other key stakeholders, would be settled in

a fair and expeditious manner.

The Company encourages full disclosure of all matters affecting the Company and provides full confidentiality on
whistleblower matters.

DISCLOSURE AND TRANSPARENCY

1) Ownership Structure

{(a) Holding 5% shareholding or more

PCD Nominee Corp. 8,753,133,904 {r) 64.3613%
Guild Securities, Inc. 3,774,995,712 (r) 27.7573%

** pCD Nominee Corp. (PCD), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Philippine Central Depository, Inc., Is the registered owner of certain shares
in the books of the Company’s transfer agents in the Philippines, The beneficial owners of such shares are PCD's participants, who hold
shares on their behalf or in behalf of thelr clients. PCD Is a private Corporation organized by the major institutions actively participating
in the Philippine capital markets to implement an automated book-entry system of handiing securities transactions in the Philippines.
The beneficial owners of PCD shares that owns 5% and above are indicated as follows:

Guild Securities, Inc. (Filipino) 3,774,995,712 27.76%
Unit 1215 Tower One and Exchange Plaza
Ayala Avenue, Makati City

Marian Securities, Inc. {Filipino) 977,066,000 7.18%
Unit B 26-1-11 Floor Export Bank Plaza
Chino Roces Ave. cor. Gil Puyat Ave., Makati City

Wilfrido V. Vergara 19,296,000 3,280,000 (PCD member company) 0.166%
Antonio B. Alvarez 177,600 0 0.001%
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2)

3)

4)

5)

6)

Romuald Dy Tang 20,000 76,700,000 (PCD member company) 0.564%
Eugene B. Macalalag 80 6,800,000 (PCD member company) 0.050%
TOTAL 19,493,680 86,780,000 0.781%

Does the Annual Report disclose the following:

Key risks Yes
Corporate objectives Yes
Financial performance indicators Yes
Non-financial performance indicators Yes
Dividend policy Yes

Details of whistle-blowing policy

Biographical details (at least age, qualifications, date of first appointment, relevant experience, and any

other directorships of listed companies) of directors/commissioners ves
Training and/or continuing education programme attended by each director/commissioner No
Number of board of directors/commissioners meetings held during the year No
Attendance details of each director/commissioner In respect of meetings held No
Details of remuneration of the CEO and each member of the board of directors/commissioners Yes

Should the Annual Report not disclose any of the above, please indicate the reason for the non-
disclosure.

Disclosure is provided in the other reports submitted to the PSE and the SEC.

External Auditor’s fee

R.G. Manabat & Co. £800,000.00

Medium of Communication
List down the mode/s of communication that the company is using for disseminating information.
»  Company website at http://crowneguitiesinc.com

= PSE ODiSy (Online Disclosure System)
= SEC reports

Date of release of audited financial report: March 30, 2016
Company Website

Does the company have a website disclosing up-to-date information about the following?

Business operations Yes
Financial statements/reports {current and prior years) Yes
Materials provided in briefings to analysts and media Yes
Shareholding structure Yes
Group corporate structure Yes
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Downloadable annual report Yes

Notice of AGM and/or EGM Yes

Company's constitution {company's by-laws, memorandum and articles of association) Yes

should any of the foregoing information be not disclosed, please indicate the reason thereto.

7) Disclosure of RPT

J.

1)

During the last three years, there were no transactions or series of similar transactions with or involving the
Company or any of its subsidiaries in which a director, executive officer, nominee for election as a director or
stockholder owning ten percent (10%) or more of total outstanding shares and members of their immediate
family, had or is to have a direct or indirect material interest.

When RPTs are involved, what processes are in place to address them in the manner that will safeguard the
interest of the company and in particular of its minority shareholders and other stakeholders?

The Company ensures that related party transactions are made on an arms-length basis and no undue advantage
or benefit is accorded to either party.

RIGHTS OF STOCKHOLDERS

RIGHTS OF STOCKROLDERS
Right to participate effectively in and vote in Annual/Special Stockholders’ Meetings
{a) Quorum

Give details on the quorum required to convene the Annual/Special Stockholders’ Meeting as set forth in
its By-laws.

Majority of the subscribed capital is present or represented J

(b) System Used to Approve Corporate Acts

Explain the system used to approve corporate acts.

Straight voting

A stockholder is entitled to one vote per share

{c) Stockholders’ Rights

List any Stockholders’ Rights concerning Annual/Special stockholders’ Meeting that differ from those laid
down in the Corporation Code.

None.

Dividends

None,
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(d) Stockholders’ Participation

1. State, if any, the measures adopted to promote stockholder participation in the Annual/Special
stockholders’ Meeting, including the procedure on how stockholders and other parties interested may
communicate directly with the Chairman of the Board, individual directors or board committees.
include in the discussion the steps the Board has taken to solicit and understand the views of the
stockholders as well as procedures for putting forward proposals at stockholders’ meetings.

Stockholder Q&A The stockholders are advised prior to the start of
the annual meeting that questions will be
entertained after each agenda item. Stockholders
are likewise encouraged to approach the Board
or Management should they have questions
relating to the Company even after the
stockholders’ meeting

Individual voting, abstention, Stockholders are given the right to vote, explain
disapproval of corporate actions their vote and ask clarificatory questions
regarding proposed corporate actions requiring
stockholder approval

2. State the company policy of asking shareholders to actively participate in corporate decisions regarding:
a. Amendments to the company's constitution

b. Authorization of additional shares

c. Transfer of all or substantially all assets, which in effect results in the sale of the company

All the above matters are brought before the stockholders for their approval.

3. Does the company observe a minimum of 21 business days for giving out of notices to the AGM where
items to be resolved by shareholders are taken up?

The Company complies with the 15-business day requirement for sending out of notices and meeting
materials under the SRC.

a. Date of sending out notices: May 5, 2015

b. Date of the Annual/Special Stockholders’ Meeting: May 26,2015

4. State, if any, questions and answers during the Annual/Special Stockholders’ Meeting.

No questions were asked by a stockholder during the 2015 annual meeting of the stockholders.

5. Result of Annual/Special Stockholders’ Meeting’s Resolutions

Approval of minutes of 2014 Annual Stockholders' 10,843, ,473‘ 0
Meeting

Election of Directors 10,843,274,473 0 0
Approval of President’s Report on Operations and 10,843,274,473 0 0
Audited Financial Statements as of December 31, 2014

Approval and Ratification of Acts of Board of Directors 10,843,274,473 0 0
and Management for the Year 2014

Appointment of External Auditor 10,843,274,473 0 o
Extension of Corporate Term for another 50 years from 10,843,274,473 0 0
October 24, 2019
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6. Date of publishing of the resul

The result of the annual stockholders’ meeting of the Company held on Ma

the PSE on the same date, and to the SEC within 5 days therefrom.

{e) Modifications

State, if any, the modifications mad

most recent year and the reason for such modification:

No modifications were made for the annual meeting of stockholders held last May 26, 2015.

t of the votes taken during the most recent AGM for all resolutions:

y 26, 2015 was disclosed with

(f) Stockholders’ Attendance

(i) Details of Attendance in the Annual/Special Stockholders’ Meeting Held:

Annual

Wilfrido V. Vergara
Romuald U. Dy Tang
Antonio B. Alvarez
Eugene B. Macalalag
Victor C. Macalincag
Conrado G. Marty
Patrick D. Go
Christopher Brian C. Dy
Ramon A. Recto
David O. Chua
Salvador P. Escano

May 26, 2015

By poll

nil

79.72%

e in the Annual/Special Stockholders’ Meeting regulations during the

Special

N/A

(i} Does the company appoint an independent party (inspectors) to count and/or validate the vote
ASM/SSMs?

Yes. The stock transfer agent is tasked to count and/or validate the votes at the annual meeting.

{iii) Do the company’s common shares carry one vote for one sl
any divergence to this standard. Where the company has m

voting rights attached to each class of shares.

Yes.

{(g) Proxy Voting Policies

State the policies followed by the company regarding proxy v

Meeting.

s at the

hare? If not, disclose and give reasons for
ore than one class of shares, describe the

oting in the Annual/Special Stockholders’
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Execution and acceptance of proxies

Stockholders allowed to vote by written proxy

Notary

Proxies are not required to be notarized

Submission of Proxy

Duly given in writing and presented to the Secretary for
inspection and record at least five {5) days before the
meeting and during such additional time as the Board may
determine from time to time.

Several Proxies

Not allowed

Validity of Proxy

Unless otherwise provided in the written proxy, shall be valid
only for the meeting specified in the proxy

Proxies executed abroad

Allowed

Invalidated Proxy

Shall have no effect and shall not empower the proxy named
therein to represent the shareholder

Validation of Proxy

Whenever deemed necessary or when directed by the
President, a forum for the validation of proxies shall be
convened not less than five (5) days before stockholders’
meeting. All questions and issued relating to the validity and
sufficiency, both as to form and substance of proxies shall be
presented during this forum to a proxy validation committee
to be formed by the President for such purpose.

In all other cases where no forum for validation of proxies is
convened, the decision of the Corporate Secretary on the
validity of submitted proxies shall be final and binding.

Violation of Proxy

Waiver of terms of proxy shall be upon express instruction of
the shareholder

(h) Sending of Notices

State the company’s policies and procedure on the sending of notice
Meeting.

to stockholders’ of record

Timely delivery of notice and meeting materials | Notices and agenda are sent to the stockholders at

jeast 15 business days prior to the annual meeting
by mail.

the annual shareholders’ meeting

Full disclosure of matters to be taken up during

The Company complies with the rules and
regulations of the SEC in relation to the disclosure
of matters relating to meetings of shareholders, in
particular, the requirements on SEC approval of
the Company'’s Information Statement

(i) Definitive Information Statements and Management Report

Stockholders as of the record date designated

Definitive Information Statement.

by the Board are entitled to receive the

scheduled date of the stockholders’ meeting.

At least fifteen (15) business days prior to the

scheduled date of the stockholders’ meeting.

At least fifteen (15) business days prior to the

s of Annual/Special Stockholders’
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CD copies are distributed however, the
company undertakes to provide requesting
stockholders with hard copies.

Yes

(i) Does the Notice of Annual/Special Stockholders’ Meeting include the following:

Each resolution to be taken up deals with only one item. Yes

Profiles of directors (at least age, qualification, date of first appointment,
experience, and directorships in other listed companies) nominated for Yes
election/re-election.

The auditors to be appointed or re-appointed. Yes
An explanation of the dividend policy, if any dividend is to be declared. Yes
The amount payable for final dividends. Yes
Documents required for proxy vote. Yes

should any of the foregoing information be not disclosed, please indicate the reason thereto.
Treatment of Minority Stockholders

(a) State the company’s policies with respect to the treatment of minority stockholders.

Minority stockholders enjoy equal footing with
other stockholders on all matters involving the
company, entitled to 1 vote for each share
owned and entitled to access to company
information.

Minority stockholders are afforded equal
protection and rights as any stockholder

(b) Do minority stockholders have a right to nominate candidates for board of directors?

Yes.

INVESTORS RELATIONS PROGRAM

AR SRR AT MALS e bl L e et

Discuss the company’s external and internal communications policies and how frequently they are reviewed.
Disclose who reviews and approves major company announcements. Identify the committee with this
responsibility, if it has been assigned to a committee.

The Company has an investor relations officer in charge of handling external and internal communication and
investor concerns. Management, through the guidance of the Board, approves major company disclosures and
announcements,

Describe the company’s investor relations program including its communications strategy to promote effective
communication with its stockholders, other stakeholders and the public in general. Disclose the contact details
(e.g. telephone, fax and email) of the officer responsible for investor relations.

(1) Objectives To enable investors and shareholders to have prompt, complete
and accurate information on the company.
{2) Principles To promote full transparency and disclosure and ensure the
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3)

L.

public that the company is reachable at all times.
(3) Modes of Communications Telephone, e-mail, fax, regular mail

{4) investors Relations Officer Eugene B. Macalalag

What are the company’s rules and procedures governing the acquisition of corporate control in the capital
markets, and extraordinary transactions such as mergers, and sales of substantial portions of corporate assets?

Upon the majority vote of the 8oard of Directors, at least 2/3 vote of the shareholders is required for major
corporate actions such as acquisition of corporate control and extraordinary transactions such as merger, and sale
of substantial portion of company assets.

Name of the independent party the board of directors of the company appointed to evaluate the fairness of the
transaction price.

N/A.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY INITIATIVES

ORI URA I AL e e

Discuss any initiative undertaken or proposed to be undertaken by the company.

The Company believes that it conducts its activities in a socially and environmentally responsible manner. Valuing
its corporate social responsibility, the Company is currently identifying activities and initiatives to further integrate
in its operations as would ensure that its business is conducted in an economic, social and environmentally
sustainable manner.

N/A

BOARD, DIRECTOR, COMMITTEE AND CEO APPRAISAL

Disclose the process followed and criteria used in assessing the annual performance of the board and its
committees, individual director, and the CEO/President.

The nomination committee Qualifications and

screens the qualifications and disqualifications under the law
disqualifications of the Board and for directors for re-election,
Board of Directors attendance in board meetings

and performance (contribution
to discussions on corporate

actions)
. The Board assesses past Number of meetings held and
Board Committees
performance matters taken up and approved
The Nomination Committee Qualifications and
screens the qualifications and disqualifications under the law
disqualifications of the Board and for directors for re-election,
individual Directors attendance in board meetings

and performance (contribution
to discussions on corporate

actions)
CEO/President The Board assesses past f:ompany performance, growth,
performance issues resolved
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N.

INTERNAL BREACHES AND SANCTIONS

N ERINAE DR e e

Discuss the internal policies on sanctions imposed for any violation or breach of the corporate governance
manual involving directors, officers, management and employees

First Violation ' Reprimand
Second Violation Suspension from office depending on the gravity of the violation
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